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DISCLOSURE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Report, including any documents which may be incorporated by reference into this Report, contains “Forward-Looking Statements” within the meaning of
Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. All statements other than statements of historical
fact are “Forward-Looking Statements” for purposes of these provisions, including any projections of revenues or other financial items, any statements of the plans and
objectives of management for future operations, any statements concerning proposed new products or services, any statements regarding future economic conditions or
performance, and any statements of assumptions underlying any of the foregoing. All Forward-Looking Statements included in this document are made as of the date hereof and
are based on information available to us as of such date. We assume no obligation to update any Forward-Looking Statement. In some cases, Forward-Looking Statements can
be identified by the use of terminology such as “may,” “will,” “expects,” “plans, ”
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anticipates,” “intends,” “believes,” “estimates,” “potential,” or “continue,” or the negative
thereof or other comparable terminology. Although we believe that the expectations reflected in the Forward-Looking Statements contained herein are reasonable, there can be
no assurance that such expectations or any of the Forward-Looking Statements will prove to be correct, and actual results could differ materially from those projected or
assumed in the Forward-Looking Statements. Future financial condition and results of operations, as well as any Forward-Looking Statements are subject to inherent risks and
uncertainties, including any other factors referred to in our press releases and reports filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). All subsequent Forward-
Looking Statements attributable to the Company or persons acting on its behalf are expressly qualified in their entirety by these cautionary statements. Additional factors that
may have a direct bearing on our operating results are described under “Risk Factors” and elsewhere in this report.

Introductory Comment

Throughout this Annual Report on Form 10-K, unless otherwise indicated or the context otherwise requires, the term “B6 Sigma” refers to B6 Sigma, Inc., a Delaware
corporation, which, until the short-form merger referenced below, was our wholly-owned, operating company acquired in September 2010; the terms the “Company,” “Sigma,”
“we,” “us” and “our” refer to Sigma Labs, Inc., together with B6 Sigma, Inc. Prior to December 29, 2015, we conducted substantially all of our operations through B6 Sigma.
On December 29, 2015, we completed a short-form merger of B6 Sigma into Sigma. As a result, B6 Sigma became part of Sigma and no longer exists as a subsidiary.
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PART I
ITEM 1. BUSINESS.
Summary

Sigma is a software company that has developed In-Process-Quality-Assurance (“IPQA”) software known as PrintRite3D®. This technology is also sometimes
referred to as Real-Time-Computer-Aided Inspection (“CAI”). Sigma believes that its PrintRite3D® solves the major problem that has prevented large-scale metal part
production using 3D printers for cost efficient production runs.

3D metal manufacturing, also known as Additive Manufacturing, is a technology that uses lasers to sculpt parts by welding powdered metals into 3-dimensional (3D)
objects and, to date, the quality of these parts can vary from part to part in a single production run, as well as from machine to machine in a production line Traditional quality
assurance methods relying on statistically based post-process inspection methods so well proven by “Subtractive Manufacturing” cannot be used effectively to improve and
assure quality of parts manufactured using 3D metal printers. The aforementioned traditional quality assurance methods are based on a manufacturing process that is the
opposite of 3D Additive Manufacturing; Subtractive Manufacturing begins with quality-assured already formed pieces of metal as a raw material (not powdered metal as is used
as raw material in 3D) and machines it with equipment such as lathes, milling machines, and CNC machines to subtract metal and thus form finished metal parts, or by casting
molten metal into molded parts usually to then be further machined. Since the metal used in Subtractive Manufacturing is already of proven quality, the quality of the metal for
all parts in a production run is known to be the uniform, subject to post process inspection of a statistically significant sample.

The lynchpin reality of 3D Additive Manufacturing quality assurance is illustrated by the fact that if a 3D metal manufacturing machine fabricates 10 parts, and quality
inspectors then rigorously inspect three of them, the inspectors will have learned about the quality of only the three parts they destroyed or CT scanned and nothing that is
sufficient to confirm or reject the quality of the remaining seven. Quality assurance of 3D Additive metal parts requires manufacturers to institute procedures to inspect 100% of
the parts being made. Sigma believes that the best, indeed, the only known way to attain high yields for both manufacturing quality and cost efficiency is an In-Process-Quality-
Assurance (IPQA®) approach that examines each part in real time as it is being manufactured, determines in real time whether it meets quality specifications and permits
machine operators to act on the information if a part is beginning to deviate from its design specifications.

GE Aviation stated in 2016 that it planned to commit $3.5 billion by 2020 to, among other things, build a metal 3D production facility to produce 3D printed metal
parts for its Leap engine and other engines. Starting in September 2016 and continuing into 2017 GE has spent over $1 billion buying controlling interests in AM equipment
manufacturers, Concept Laser and Arcam AB, has announced that it invested over $300 million creating AM manufacturing capability in both the United States and India, and
was an investor in a $115 million series D investment round of Desktop Metal, a metal 3D printing company. Sigma Labs has learned from its interactions in the marketplace
that the pent-up demand apparent from GE and others, such as Airbus, to press forward into advanced 3D manufacturing production are taking place with the assumption that
in-process quality assurance capacity will likely emerge either from their own internal efforts or be attained through licensing, or possibly acquisition. In the meantime, CT
scans and other costly post-process inspection appear to be an accepted cost as initially sustainable in the startup phase of production. However, until companies that utilize 3D
production facilities like GE Aviation are able to effectively verify that each part conforms to design specifications of attributes of shape, density, strength and consistency in
real-time during the manufacturing process, we believe that such companies will be at risk of letting some substandard parts through and, also, be unable to improve the
workflow to high quality cost-optimum yields of 3D printed metal parts. We believe that our principal product, PrintRite3D®, which can be positioned “inside” a 3D metal
printer, solves these problems by determining if each part is being made to the quality specifications of the Design/Specification file as each part is being made. Our software
enables 3D prototyping to evolve forward into 3D manufacturing by providing a software with an algorithms-based tool that addresses and overcomes the quality issues that are
specific to 3D Metal Additive Manufacturing and that are not solved using the quality methods derived for Subtractive manufacturing. No matter how much acuity and at what
cost of a suite of post process inspection tools might provide 3D manufactured metal parts, it currently can only assure quality by rejecting fully formed parts. PrintRite3D® is
able to replace these ‘interim’ post process solutions such as CT scanning with a tool that has substantially lower operating costs and can attain higher yields by inspecting parts
as they are being made and providing machines and their operators actionable information that includes the option of stopping manufacture of given part(s) while operations
continue to complete parts that are in specification, thus saving time and money while raising yields. PrintRite3D® also gives operators information from run to run that
enables them to ‘learn up’ quality for a given machine by using PrintRite3D® data about machine behaviors that can then be offset by making adjustments to power settings
directed at a given sector.




We have filed 18 patent applications on our In-Process Quality Assurance™ (“IPQA®”) process and procedure for advanced manufacturing. In addition, we anticipate
that our core PrintRite3D® software will enable our customers to combine their digital manufacturing technologies with our 3D manufacturing QA to achieve both cost savings
and more reliable parts. We believe that certain vertical markets would benefit from our technology and software, including aerospace, defense, bio-medical, power generation,
and oil & gas industries because: (1) they each stand to benefit by taking advantage of the weight/strength/performance ratios that can often be optimized by taking advantage of
3D design; (2) they each stand to benefit by taking maximum advantage of 3D manufacturing’s material cost savings resulting from designing parts to needed tolerances while
requiring less metal; and (3) there are severe consequences for quality failures in some of their products. We provide our software products to customers in the form of Software
as a Service (“SaaS”).

About 3D Printing

3D printing (“3DP”) or additive manufacturing (“AM”) is changing the world by producing real metal parts from a computerized input. 3D printing has been applied
to the manufacture of plastic parts for decades. 3D manufacturing of metal parts involves directing a laser or other energy source at a layer of powdered metal and melting it.
These layers become melted together from the bottom up. Worldwide revenues attributable to 3D manufacturing for metal products were $88.1 million in 2015 (Wohlers Report
2016, 3D Printing and Additive Manufacturing State of the Industry — Annual Worldwide Progress Report). By 2016, annual sales of the powdered metals used for raw material
in metal Additive Manufacturing had grown to $126 million. Large powdered metal suppliers surveyed by Wohlers about their growth forecasts for 2017 averaged expectations
of a 59% increase for 2017. . According to Sigma’s experience in costing and pricing the manufacturing of AM metal parts, as confirmed by consultation with other service
providers, the total powdered metal sales forecast for 2017 is enough raw material to produce a “retail value” of the metal parts of ~$800 million.

The application of 3D printing to high-tolerance, precision manufactured metal parts has only recently emerged. 3D printing of metal parts today represents only a
minor percentage of all 3D manufacturing. However, we believe the greatest future growth for 3D printing appears to be in metal parts, given the interest and investment being
made by Fortune 100 companies, Federal government laboratories and agencies as well as university-based institutions. These high-end manufacturers and technology leaders
are strongly focused on helping transform analog manufacturing of precision, high-tolerance parts in the U.S. to a digital manufacturing encompassing automation, robotics and
closed-loop process control. We believe that the on-going success of 3D printing for metal parts will be highly dependent upon the evolution of digital quality assurance
procedures used, such as our PrintRite3D® process control.

About Quality Assurance in 3D Printing

Current methods for providing quality in 3DP are generally either (i) inaccurate due to use of procedures that do not recognize and measure the primary quality issues
of 3D metal manufacturing or due to the misuse of statistically based assessments, or (ii) are cost prohibitive due to the expense of equipment required to examine the interior of
complex dense parts that 3D manufacturing can create. After 3D-manufacture, costs are normally incurred by using non-destructive technologies such as ultrasound and non-
traditional CT technology on these parts, and old-fashioned visual inspection. Destructive testing of 3D parts is a mis-applied carryover from current Subtractive Manufacturing
quality assurance practice, in which the great part to part consistency of traditional metal machining equipment permits quality inspectors to infer the quality of a production run
by cutting up and analyzing a statistically relevant number of parts. The test result of the parts that are destroyed and analyzed have been, at great time and expense, statistically
demonstrated to be representative of the rest of the parts in the production lot. The underlying premise of quality assurance for Subtractive Manufactured parts is that if a
machine is set up properly, then all parts it produces will be the same. This simple, effective and accurate quality system does not apply to Additive Manufacturing, in which
each part is built in an average production lot of 5-20, and in which quality variance may occur from part to part and within any part notwithstanding that the AM machine
settings are the same. Therefore, unable to rely on a traditional statistically based quality system, 3D Manufacturing’s optimum quality assurance system would evaluate the
quality of each individual part. PrintRite3D®’s in-process quality inspection approach of each part individually allows a manufacturer to use AM to form a single part, such as a
hip replacement or one spare aircraft part needed on an aircraft carrier, or several lots of the same part, in large quality — each approved or rejected in real time and based upon
complete inspection during fabrication. We offer our customers the ability to use real-time sensors to track individual scans of each layer, and our software continuously
analyzes the part health so that when it is finished we can determine if it meets the production quality standard set by the customer. We believe our PrintRite3D® software could
reduce inspection costs by a factor of 10 and development time for new parts by 50% or more because IPQA permits factories to make the part manufactured the constant and
the machines manufacturing them the variable. Consequently, the lower cost statistical based post-process inspection methods that work well with Subtractive Manufacturing
could be successfully and economically applied to parts made with 3D Metal machines, and because utilizing PrintRite3D® for design reduces the number and iterations of
development parts required to lead to a final design. Most importantly is the ability of our software to reduce risk associated with the qualification and certification of printed
parts.




By using PrintRite3D® software, a high-precision manufacturer would have the ability to offer its customers product warranties and assurances that its printed parts
were produced in compliance with stringent quality requirements. Orders for our software have been received from Honeywell Aerospace, Aerojet Rocketdyne, Woodward,
Siemens Turbomachinery, Pratt and Whitney, and Solar Turbines.

We believe there is potential for our PrintRite3D® software to be incorporated into a majority of 3D metal printing devices made by companies like Electro-Optical
Systems (“EOS”), Additive Industries, Concept Lasers, Trumpf Lasers, Renishaw, Sentrol, Farsoon, Desktop Metal and others.

Sigma’s Cloud-Based IIoT Solutions

The process of making a 3D printed part could start with our customers loading a computer aided design (“CAD”) model of the part into the Cloud as shown in “A” in
Figure 1. Next, computer aided engineering (“CAE”) and/or computer aided manufacturing (“CAM?”) instructions are sent to the 3D printer (see “B”, as shown in Figure 1).
Metal powder in the machine is then deposited onto the build platform where a laser beam, or other energy source, focused onto the build platform melts each successive layer
of powder in 20-60 micron increments. Our PrintRite3D SENSORPAK® (see “C” in Figure 1) detects, records, analyzes and compares the part as it is being made layer-by-
layer against the CAD/CAM specifications and physical reference points for quality assurance during manufacturing. Our PrintRite3D INSPECT®, Version 3.02 software
utilizes our patent applied for TED tool to determine compliance of each part for its metallurgical quality. Our alpha version of PrintRite3D CONTOUR® software determines
the shape and conformity of a part in real-time manufacture with its geometric design specification.

Our PrintRite3D® CAI web-based software suite (see “D” in Figure 1) resides in situ and/or in the Cloud (see “A” in Figure 1) of the Industrial Internet of Things
(“IIoT”). We enable manufacturing engineers to confirm the part quality layer-by-layer, provide for manufacturing statistical process control and harvest, aggregate, and analyze
big data from the real-time manufacturing data collected from our PrintRite3D SENSORPAK® (see “C” in Figure 1), as well as post-process manufacturing data collected by
our customers (see “E” in Figure 1).

Our specialized sensor suite (see “C” in Figure 1), known as PrintRite3D SENSORPAK®), is an edge computing device, which means that it can be operated outside of a
customer’s primary computer hardware and software systems while delivering actionable information to these systems. Thus, PrintRite3D SENSORPAK® contains the
modular hardware and software necessary to connect to “cyber-physical” objects (see “B” in Figure 1) living on the manufacturing floor. It allows for bi-directional information
flow between the manufacturing floor and the Cloud (see “A” in Figure 1). It starts with a million-fold data reduction required to manage and analyze the very large quantities
of data garnered that layer by layer monitoring +/- 30 Micron thicknesses create. It finishes with our PrintRite3D® Digital Quality Record (“DQR”) and report, which provides
customers with product guarantees and assurances that parts were produced in compliance with stringent quality standards. It can collect, analyze, aggregate, filter, and then
further communicate data from the manufacturing floor to the Cloud (see “A” in Figure 1) and enable links to other areas (see “F” in Figure 1) of the IIoT.
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Figure 1. Sigma’s Industrial [oT / PrintRite 3D® Cloud Architecture
Business Activities and Industry Applications
Our business is currently focused on the continued development and commercialization of our PrintRite3D® suite of software applications. We are specifically
focusing on the 3DP and AM industries and further developing our contract additive manufacturing business for metal 3DP to be a customer prototype center available for
cutting edge 3D challenges and a concurrent means of demonstrating and proving the merit of PrintRite3D® for customers’ parts or application. Our strategy is to continue to

leverage our advanced manufacturing knowledge, experience and capabilities through the following means:

o Identify, develop and commercialize our quality assurance software applications for advanced manufacturing technologies. The applications are designed to assure part
quality in real time, and improve process control practices for a variety of industries;

e Provide materials and process engineering consulting services with our PrintRite3D® CAI quality assurance software applications for advanced manufacturing to
customers that need:

e  to learn and characterize the individual performance parameters of each machine intended to produce 3CD metal parts;
e to determine and characterize the traits, signatures, and in-process behaviors of the materials designated for a given part’s production,
e to improve manufacturing quality yields by utilizing IPQA;
e to improve, perhaps for the first time, documentable third party part-by-part quality certification.
e Build and run a prototype and small lot contract manufacturing and demonstration division for metal 3DP beginning with our EOSM290 state-of-the-art metal printer.
We are presently engaged with and focused primarily on the following industry sectors:
e Aecrospace and defense manufacturing;
e Energy and power generation;

e  Bio-medical manufacturing




We generate revenues through PrintRite3D® hardware and CAI software licensing of our PrintRite3D® technology to customers that seek to improve their
manufacturing production processes, and through ongoing annual software upgrades and maintenance fees. Additionally, we generate revenues from our contract manufacturing
activities in metal AM. By running a small-scale contract AM services operation, we are able to understand the current needs of our customers and where they are going with
their next-generation product development efforts. Contract AM further allows us a means for material on-going partial self-funding of our IPQA®-enabled R&D and product
development activities for CAI software. We provide our AM contract manufacturing services to customers in the form of Quality as a Service (“QaaS”). Starting with our
PrintRite3D® cloud-based SaaS model, customers will contract with us for CAE, CAM and CALI services to generate and establish a Digital Quality Record (DQR) for AM built
parts. Each DQR is cloud-based and allows for archiving and storage of quality data, access to our big data ANALYTICS™ software App for continuous quality monitoring and
improvement, and automatic industry benchmarking while maintaining firewalls between company-specific data.

In late 2015, we launched two programs — an Early Adopter Program (“EAP”) and an Original Equipment Manufacturer (“OEM”) Partner Program — designed to
broaden our market presence and speed adoption of our PrintRite3D® technology. The EAP was designed to attract end user customers who have an existing, installed base of
3D metal printers and to offer them incentivized pricing in return for feedback on engineering and beta releases of our PrintRite3D® software Apps. Our OEM Partner Program
was specifically designed for AM machine manufacturers seeking to embed our PrintRite3D® quality assurance software Apps directly into their machines for customers
purchasing a turnkey solution for their new AM machine purchases.

We possess the resident expertise to provide manufacturing materials and process (“M&P”) engineering services and support to companies using our PrintRite3D®
software Apps for metal AM. Accordingly, in addition to our primary business focus, we intend to generate revenues by providing such engineering services and support to
businesses that license our PrintRite3D® software Apps.

Our President and Chief Technology Officer has worked at or with the Edison Welding Institute and United States Department of Energy (“DOE”) national
laboratories (including the Knolls Atomic Power Laboratory, Bettis Atomic Power Laboratory, Los Alamos National Laboratory and Sandia National Laboratory) over the past
34 years. Due to his work with the DOE, our President and Chief Technology Officer has developed extensive relationships with the DOE and its network of national
laboratories. Accordingly, we expect to leverage these relationships in connection with licensing and developing technologies created at such national laboratories for
commercialization in the private sector.

Early-Stage Technology Commercialization and Market Positioning

Since our inception in 2010, we have made progress in bringing early-stage disruptive technology from scientific concept and curiosity to practical reality, as
described below.

PrintRite3D® Quality Assurance Software for Computer-Aided Inspection of Metal Additive Manufacturing

We believe that AM will significantly impact the manufacturing landscape. AM results in very efficient metal utilization for parts made on-demand, and utilizes a wide
variety of rapid prototyping methods. As a result of AM, parts can go straight from computer-aided designs (CAD) and 3D computer models to actual, physical parts through
the use of computer-aided engineering (CAE) and computer-aided manufacturing (CAM) steps. However, there are severe challenges in connection with 3D printing of metal
parts. Current manufacturing processes are not capable of making every part right the first time. Also, process consistency and repeatability require further development for
metal parts and this is a typical case for emerging technologies. Although many industry experts have lamented that 3D Printing for metal parts is limited in current
applications, we are developing our [IPQA®-enabled technology into a hardware and software suite of products for CAI of AM known as PrintRite3D®, which we expect will
address some these shortcomings and enable mass production for metals AM technology to be realized sooner than would otherwise be possible given its current state of
maturity. PrintRite3D® comprises a suite of CAI software apps that address the three fundamental problems facing metal AM today, namely: assuring the metal integrity or
quality of the product; assuring the as-built geometry of the product; and, increasing the productivity or speed of the AM process.

Contract Manufacturing for Metal Additive Manufacturing

According to the Wohlers 2017 Annual Report, industry growth in the independent service provider segment including the secondary market of dies and molds
produced for and by AM machines for AM manufacturing in 2016 was an estimated $4.2 billion, up from $3.6 billion in 2015. End users are still in the early stages of adding
metal AM systems to supply production parts to aerospace and defense OEMs, such as GE Aviation (“GEA”), Honeywell Aerospace, Pratt & Whitney, and Siemens
Turbomachinery. We believe that most AM machines produced through October 2017 are still not well suited for production applications. They have limited feedback
measurement and control sensors to guarantee part quality real time. Some of the latest machines available, such as EOS’s M290 machine, are beginning to be sold with limited
advanced measurement system capability.




We believe that this service provider market segment represents an opportunity for us to capture significant future portions of the demand for metal production parts by
enhancing service bureaus quality through the licensing of PrintRite3D®. Accordingly, we acquired our first EOS M290 metal printing machine in 2014. Using the M280 as its
base, the M290 adds improved energy efficiencies, faster build times, and slightly larger build platform capabilities. Through our EOS M290 machine, our customers gain the
benefits of many years of M280-proven applications while accessing the latest in DMLS® technology, as well as receiving parts certifiably produced using our state-of-the-art
PrintRite3D® quality assurance software Apps. We provide our AM contract manufacturing services to customers in the form of Quality as a Service.

A detailed description of our technologies and business follows.
PrintRite3D® Quality Assurance Software for Additive Manufacturing
The Market

An area of increasing interest in the manufacturing world is AM or 3DP. AM is a method of producing functional parts directly from computer design or CAD files
without any tooling or other processing.

The sale of AM products and services in 2016 composed of all AM products and services, but not including the aerospace and medical industries which are deemed by
Wohlers as currently too difficult to document, grew 17.8% to $6.1 billion according to Wohler’s Annual 2017 report. The AM industry is expected to grow to about $15.8
billion in 2019. In 2021, the AM industry is forecasted to grow to about $26.5 billion, all according to the Wohlers 2016 Annual Report.

Metal parts are a small and rapidly growing segment of this overall market space as AM or 3D printing moves from just making models to making actual, fully
functional parts. Large end users such as Honeywell Aerospace, GEA and Boeing Defense view AM as an enabling process for many components. A report in a series by
Deloitte University Press on additive manufacturing published in Fall 2015 titled, “3D Opportunity For Quality Assurance and Parts Qualification,” states that, “[o]ne of the
most important barriers is the qualification of AM-produced parts. So crucial is this issue, in fact, that many characterize quality assurance (QA) as the single biggest hurdle to
widespread adoption of AM technology, particularly for metal.” We believe that OEM end user companies as well as first-tier suppliers cannot achieve their long-term AM
production goals without advanced quality assurance and control technologies for metal AM parts because current quality control methods are not sufficient to reliably allow
cost-effective manufacturing of safety- and performance-critical metal parts. We believe that our PrintRite3D® CALI technology would directly address this “important barrier”
for metal parts and allow such AM applications to move forward. In response to this need, we have experienced an increase in our installed base of PrintRite3D® systems and
we are beginning to provide material & process engineering services and support for our PrintRite3D® software licenses for our installed base at GEA, Honeywell Aerospace,
Spartacus3D, Additive Industries, Aerojet Rocketdyne, 3D Material Technologies, LLC, Woodward, Siemens, Pratt & Whitney, and the Edison Welding Institute (“EWI”).

We have ongoing contracts that include a Phase 3 project with Honeywell Aerospace funded by the Defense Advanced Projects Agency (“DARPA”) on the application
of our PrintRite3D® technology to performance-critical AM metal parts for aerospace. This project is vitally important because it provided an early opportunity to demonstrate
how our IPQA®-enabled PrintRite3D® software Apps will reduce our customers’ reliance on unnecessary post process inspection, ultimately reducing costs and improving
quality for AM of highly critical aerospace metal components. Also, we were a participant on a GEA led team of companies and universities, which was awarded a research
contract by the National Additive Manufacturing Innovation Institute (“NAMII” or America Makes) titled, “In-Process Quality Assurance™ for Laser Powder Bed Production
of Aerospace Components”. The contract has the stated objective of maturing our In-Process-Quality-Assurance™ (IPQA®) technology for aerospace applications by
leveraging a development approach incorporating multiple AM OEM machines, multiple superalloys, and multiple product intent aerospace components. In support of this
effort, we were awarded related contracts from the subcontractor Aerojet Rocketdyne to install one of our PrintRite3D® systems and software Apps on a Concept Laser M2
metal AM machine at Aerojet Rocketdyne’s Canoga Park, California facility, as well as a contract from Honeywell Aerospace to make initial test specimens for reliability and
repeatability testing using our EOS M290 printer. We were also part of a large research team, led by the Edison Welding Institute that was awarded a grant funded by the
National Institute of Standards (“NIST”) to ensure that quality parts are produced and certified for use in products made by a variety of industries and their supply chains. The
emphasis was on providing tools needed for additive manufacturing applications to progress from prototype to serial production. This program was successfully completed in
Fall 2015. We are currently a subcontractor to Honeywell Aerospace who was awarded a program in 2015 by America Makes which is designed to address Design for Additive
Manufacturing (“DFAM?”) issues. In support of this program, we will use our EOS M290 printer to build canonical shapes and mechanical test specimens for evaluation by
Honeywell Aerospace.




Technology and Competitive Advantage

The evolution of AM from prototyping to volume manufacturing in production runs is occurring in, and led by, aerospace while also appearing in niche products such
as medical appliances and replacement parts of diverse applications, including unavailable parts required by still deployed but aging technologies. A major problem for 3D
metal products production-run manufacturing today is that traditional quality systems that rely heavily on other industries’ experiences with high precision CNC machines in
Subtractive Manufacturing that lathe, mill, or drill with high precision consistency and can successfully rely on after-manufacture statistically based part sample destruction and
inspection procedures simply do not export and apply to Additive manufacturing machines. Further, post-production non-destructive test instruments from ultrasound to CT
Scans are either not effective or not cost efficient on many complex part configurations that take advantage of 3D capability, and in the case of CT scans, are prohibitively
expensive for production cost efficiency. The most important feature of our PrintRite3D® is that it develops actionable quality and process control data of manufacturing
information in real-time and, when no flaws are detected, can provide manufacturers and their end-users with a part-by-part quality certification backed up by a file of
supporting data.

Our PrintRite3D® suite, as described below, is composed of hardware, software, data analytics, and proprietary algorithms. The hardware is an array of photodiodes,
non-contact pyrometer, and a data processing unit that can be either sold with an AM manufacturing machine unit by an OEM manufacturer or retrofitted on customers’ sites.

e PrintRite3D® SENSORPAK™ — the auxiliary sensor and hardware kit that sits on every AM machine to collect the data to drive the software.

e  PrintRite3D® INSPECT™ — software which verifies quality layer by layer.

The following software modules are currently in development:

e  PrintRite3D® CONTOUR™ — software which assures the as-built geometry.

e PrintRite3D® ANALYTICS™ — software that harvests, aggregates, and analyzes big data from in-process manufacturing data and post-process manufacturing data.
e PrintRite3D® THERMAL™ — software which predicts the residual stress and distortion in the part.

e PrintRite3D® CLOSED LOOP CONTROL- software that signals for laser adjustments required to correct a developing deviance from design specification detected
by other PrintRite3D® modules.

The proprietary software and its embedded algorithms process the substantial amount of layer by layer data gathered and then informs operators of the Quality
Compliance status of each part in a build. We have been active in patent protecting our in-depth data analysis and quality algorithms to link our analysis to root cause metallurgy
for determining the granular quantification of the part conformance to metallurgical requirements such as tensile strength. Concurrent with assessing the internal quality features
of all parts in a build, PrintRite3D® deploys its CONTOUR™ module that measures each part’s adherence to the configuration specification of both internal channels and
external form. OEM machine manufacturers as well as control system manufacturers may use the Sigma data stream to direct machine performance adjustments.

We have developed a tool that enables companies using Additive Manufacturing equipment for metal parts to move from prototyping on into production runs by
assuring quality in a uniquely reliable and cost-effective fashion. Not only does PrintRite3D® enable a single AM machine to operate at high quality yields, by measuring the
product of the manufacturing equipment rather than just the equipment settings, it also is a reliable method to assure and document uniform quality assurance of a single part’s
specification being manufactured by factories utilizing a number of different AM machines.

We believe that the broad domain coverage of our PrintRite3D® patents and metallurgical know-how make the licensing of our product suite to be the best means by
which Additive Manufacturing OEM equipment manufacturers can offer in-process-quality-monitoring that certifies and documents the quality of all parts that pass continuous
inspection. PrintRite3D® provides 3D metal manufacturing equipment makers with a patent protected data configuration of information that the manufacturers may use to
adjust controls of their equipment in response to real-time quality information by, for example, precisely adjusting laser power to sustain manufacturing to design and
specification.

Our IPQA®-enabled PrintRite3D® software Apps appear well suited to meet the needs of metal AM at this critical juncture in its development. Our technology will
allow metal AM to be used during manufacturing of safety-critical or performance-critical metal parts, such as used in aerospace, defense and biomedical. Currently, these
applications are difficult because the part quality cannot be completely guaranteed using today’s conventional nondestructive inspection technologies, because using inspection
after manufacturing is difficult, costly and does not find all defects of concern. Therefore, we believe that PrintRite3D® could be an enabler for metal AM to realize its full
potential. We have unique and patent protected offerings in this field. Furthermore, as a greater number of these AM applications could be cloud-based, the PrintRite3D®
technology is fully compatible with highly networked, cloud- or web-based implementation — subject to the data and intellectual property restrictions which may be imposed by
some companies for competitive reasons.
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Our proprietary PrintRite3D® software Apps have been demonstrated and tested at many manufacturing sites around the world. We believe these demonstrations have
served to validate the underlying technology of PrintRite3D® INSPECT™ and SENSORPAK™ software and hardware modules, respectively. In addition, we have developed
relationships with experienced aerospace companies in North America that have assisted in the validation of the underlying technology for our PrintRite3D® software App
known as CONTOUR™.

We are continuing to work with Honeywell Aerospace on the separate development of our PrintRite3D® CONTOUR™ software App for metal-based AM under our
Trial Evaluation Agreement with Honeywell Aerospace, which sets forth the parties’ intent to use Honeywell’s Advanced Manufacturing Engineering Center as a beta test site
for our PrintRite3D® CONTOUR™ software module. In further support of this effort, in 2015 Honeywell Aerospace installed its second PrintRite3D® system on one of its
Concept Laser M2 machines at their Advanced Manufacturing Engineering Center in Phoenix, Arizona.

We have expanded our market presence and associated installed base of PrintRite3D® systems through our Early Adopter Program (“EAP”) and our Original
Equipment Manufacturer (“OEM”) Partner Program to include European companies in France, Germany and The Netherlands. These European partners’ installations are key to
our long-term strategy to broaden its installed base through our EAP as well as gain market presence though embedded OEM offerings of our PrintRite3D® technology. Our
PrintRite3D® product commercialization efforts reflect the strategic nature of our selective alliance partnerships.

We believe PrintRite3D® is uniquely positioned to grow into this market as its technology is platform independent and deployable with all currently known metal AM
manufacturing units.

Business Model
Our commercialization strategy for PrintRite3D® products is:
e  Enter into early adopter license agreements with high potential future AM equipment manufacturers and complex part AM manufacturing service bureaus;
e Enter into OEM license agreements for PrintRite3D® to be integrated directly into the printers of major AM equipment manufacturers;
e Effective September 1, 2017, target and install units only at companies that are already manufacturing 3D metal parts and need to solve a quality yield problem; and
e Provide manufacturing engineering consulting services to third parties that have needs in developing quality assurance tactical methods for manufacturing.

PrintRite3D® is designed to run on different machine platforms which allow us to maximize our product offering to the entire AM metal market. The target markets
include OEMs both on the AM software side as well as OEM machine producers and end users.

We believe another much-needed area for AM metal parts manufacturing is in software Apps for reducing design and development cycle times, saving the end
customer time and money. In support of that, in 2016, we entered into a Technology Development Agreement with 3DSIM, LLC of Park City, Utah, to pursue commercial metal
AM software opportunities for rapid qualification and part certification. These software Apps could form the underpinnings and backbone of a conceptual software App known
as THERMAL™, We expect in the future to attempt to develop and offer a PrintRite3D® suite of Apps which would be specifically developed to improve part designs and
reduce traditional trial and error design approaches for features such as distortion control.

To summarize, we have formed an operating division focused on real-time, advanced quality assurance solutions for additive manufacturing thereby increasing the
value of the AM part. Although in the past our revenues have been generated mainly through engineering consulting services we provided to third parties, we have generated

revenues from December 2013 through January 2018 through sales and licensing of our PrintRite3D® systems and software.
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Technology and Competitive Advantage Demonstrated On-site

We currently have an AM 3D metal printing facility that employs state-of-the-art technology from the leading provider of metal AM systems, Electro-Optical Systems.
While our current printing capacity is limited, we believe that a unique selling point or competitive advantage both for system sales of PrintRite3D® as well as local service
bureau part sales is our demonstrable on-site PrintRite3D® technology. Our EOS M290 printer is outfitted with our latest PrintRite3D®-enabled technology allowing us to
provide customers with the necessary documented objective evidence that a part is being built (and has been completed) in precise accord with the design specification, or
Quality-as-a- Service (QaaS) data package, to ensure they can meet compliance with their design intent and ultimately end-user performance requirements for their highly-
critical and demanding components. Our Qaa$ starts with our PrintRite3D® cloud-based SaaS model. Customers will contract with us to generate and establish a digital quality
record for AM built parts based on Design for Additive Manufacturing (“DFAM”) principles. Each DQR is cloud-based and allows for archiving and storage of quality data.
The Reports both provide data to and have retrieval access from our big data ANALYTICS™ software App. The cloud based system provides capability and resources for
continuous quality monitoring and improvement. Concurrently, it will automatically compare build-data to industry benchmarking. Sigma has built in firewalls to shield
company-specific data. Our QaaS service benefits our customers by providing independent quality assurance and increased process intelligence and access to our latest
proprietary big data ANALYTICS™ software Apps for trending and additional manufacturing intelligence.

Business Purpose

Our AM 3D metal printing facility serves three business purposes. First, it is a demonstration facility that allows us a means of demonstrating our IPQA products for a
prospective customer without them having to first install it on their equipment. Second, the printing facility allows us to stay current with the market’s needs by manufacturing
high technology prototypes and then evaluating the challenges that each new configuration poses. Third, the in-house printing facility enables us to conduct research that
deepens our own IPQA products.

Recent Developments (in reverse chronological order)

On April 6, 2018, the Company closed a private placement of equity securities resulting in net proceeds of approximately $840,000 after deducting commissions and
other offering expenses payable by the Company.

On March 28, 2018, Morf3D repaid Sigma in full for the $500,000 loan with interest that Sigma had extended to Morf3D on March 27, 2017.

On March 26, 2018, we announced that we entered into a Cooperative Research and Development Agreement (CRADA) with the National Institute of Standards and
Technology (NIST). NIST and Sigma will study the effects of recycled powder and part placement on process variability and part quality using Sigma’s PrintRite3D®
technology. The study will be the first of its kind to characterize the use of recycled powder in the Laser Powder Bed Fusion (LPBF) process using both in-situ monitoring
technology and post process mechanical property characterization, and is vitally important to the global Additive Manufacturing (AM) community because today it is known
that changes in powder characteristics and chemistry may impact the build process and resulting part quality. This collaboration represents an important step forward in
providing a much-awaited technical solution and understanding of powder reuse and its implicit cost savings. The results from this study will be disseminated to the AM
community through journal articles while the in-situ and ex-situ data will be made available via the NIST AM Material Database. During this study, Sigma’s In-Process Quality
Assurance™ PrintRite3D INSPECT® software will play a key role in quantifying process variability and part quality using its proprietary Thermal Energy Density™ (TED™)
In Process Quality Metric™, an industry first for quantitatively measuring melt pool variation and part quality.

On March 1, 2018, we announced we were releasing Version 3.0.2 of our PrintRite3D INSPECT® In-Process Quality Assurance™ (IPQA®) software. This
evolutionary version of PrintRite3D® is now available for new installations and upgrades to existing customers. This latest release features Sigma Labs’ new and proprietary
Thermal Energy Density™ (TED™) In Process Quality Metric™ (IPQM®), setting what the Company views as a new industry standard for quantitatively measuring melt pool
and part quality. Armed with Sigma Labs’ new PrintRite3D INSPECT® Version 3.0.2 software, process engineers will now be able to produce an alloy-specific process map
generated using Sigma Labs’ in-process TED™ metric, an industry first. This industry first approach to in-process monitoring is designed to enable rapid process qualification,
which Sigma Labs believes will result in increased production yields and faster product to market times.

On December 22, 2017, we announced that we had received a contract from Laser Zentrum Nord (LZN) GmbH, a leading Additive Manufacturing (AM) technology
and research innovator located in Hamburg, Germany for PrintRite 3D INSPECT®. Terms of the contract have not been disclosed. The two companies have also agreed to

actively collaborate to certify Sigma’s PQA® methodology and solutions for serial production 3D printing in the aerospace industry. The PrintRite30° system will be installed
onto a SLM Solutions selective laser melting machine located at Laser Zentrum Nord GmbH in Hamburg, Germany.
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On October 16, 2017, we announced that we would unveil our PrintRite3D® INSPECT™ V3.0 quality assurance software at the international Formnext 2017
(www.formnext.com), that showcased current and future cutting-edge applications of additive technologies. Sigma Labs’ PrintRite3D® INSPECT™ V3.0 software is a web-
based, distributed application featuring 3D Thermal Mapping of the melt pool using Sigma Labs’ proprietary TED™ (Thermal Emission Density™) metrics. These metrics are
an industry first and powered by an advanced analytics engine, designed to meet the needs of users focused on research, development and qualification-level activities as well as
day-to-day production activities. The researcher tools utilize in-process sensor data without the need for baseline comparisons providing users the data and framework for
focused characterization and analysis leading to rapid process qualification and part certification. Quantitative, in-situ thermal history maps can also be used to validate
modeling and simulation (M&S) results prior to process characterization studies, process qualification & validation phases, as well as in conjunction with design optimization
evaluations.

On August 22, 2017, we announced that we had entered into an agreement with Digital-CAN Tech Co., LTD to serve as the Company’s non-exclusive sales agent in
Taiwan. Digital-CAN is at Taiwan’s forefront in the additive manufacturing (“AM?”) industry with over a decade of experience in industrial 3D printing and rapid prototyping.
Digital-CAN is AS9100 and ISO13485 certificated (Quality Systems Standards for Aircraft, Space, Defense and Medical Devices industry suppliers), and is one of Taiwan’s
largest additive manufacturing centers. Digital-CAN has experience in a variety of industries such as aerospace, medical, tooling, industrial manufacturing 4.0 applications,
architecture, product design, automotive design, & lifestyle applications. The Company has agreed to pay Digital-CAN a commission tied to revenue generated by the Company
as a result of customers identified by Digital-CAN.

On July 27, 2017, we announced changes in our senior management. Co-founder Mark Cola, who serves as President, was appointed as Sigma Labs’ Chief
Technology Officer, responsible for building and implementing the Sigma Labs technological strategy and guiding key technical advancements towards digitalization in the
context of the Industrial Internet of Things (IIoT). Together with the other executive team members, Mr. Cola will seek to expand and grow the Company through next-
generation products and key customer development in a broad range of industries. John Rice, Chairman of the Board since his appointment in April 2017, serves as Interim
CEO, replacing Mr. Cola. As Chairman and Interim CEO, Mr. Rice oversees Sigma Labs’ implementation of internal and external growth. He brings substantial operating and
investment experience to the tasks.

On June 28, 2017, we announced that our PrintRite3D® INSPECT® software Version 2.0 had recently been installed at Honeywell Aerospace in Honeywell’s
Advanced Manufacturing Engineering Center in Phoenix, AZ, in connection with Sigma Labs’ ongoing participation in the Honeywell lead, DARPA-sponsored Period III Open
Manufacturing Program.Sigma Labs’ PrintRite3D® INSPECT® software Version 2.0 is now available as a cloud-based data API platform and allows for web-based access to
metal additive manufacturing (“AM”) machines, providing users the ability to monitor AM machines, and capture and record the entire build sequence.

On June 6, 2017, we announced that we had entered into agreements with two additional, non-exclusive sales agents in the Asia Pacific region, driven by strong
customer interest in the region for PrintRite3D®. One such agent, Enervision Inc., will target the high growth expectations in the South Korean AM market, driven by the
Korean government’s announcement in April 2017 of a $37 million investment to accelerate the development of 3D printing across the country. The nation’s Ministry of
Science, ICT and Future Planning will spend much of the budget on various 3D printing businesses to strengthen South Korea’s competitiveness and ability to meet demand.
Sigma Labs’ other new sales agent, Beijing Yida Sifang Technology Co., Ltd, a leading metal AM reseller with multiple offices in China, will assist Sigma Labs with its
expansion into the China AM market. The Company will pay the sales agents a commission tied to revenue generated by the Company through customers identified by the sales
agents. The addition of two new agents in the Asia-Pacific region follows Sigma Labs’ April 2016 announcement of an agreement with Creatz3D Pte Ltd to be the non-exclusive
sales and service agent for Sigma Labs in Singapore, Indonesia and Vietnam. Sigma Labs is exploring additional opportunities to engage agents throughout Asia-Pacific region.

On May 9, 2017, we announced that we would unveil our PrintRite3D® INSPECT™ V.2.0 quality assurance software at RAPID + TCT 2017
(www.rapid3devent.com), North America’s preeminent event for discovery, innovation, and networking in 3D manufacturing. Sigma Lab’s PrintRite3D® INSPECT™ V.2.0
innovates on the Company’s integrated, interactive system that combines inspection, feedback, data collection and critical analysis. The system pairs SENSORPAK™ multi-
sensors and hardware with INSPECT™, CONTOUR™ and ANALYTICS™ software modules for comprehensive management of Additive Manufacturing (“AM”) processes.
The V.2.0 release is now both web and IoT-enabled and features statistical process control and visualization, providing a real-time snapshot of the entire process, part-by-part
multivariate analysis; and allows for machine floor to cloud data communication with multiple machine system integration.

On April 18, 2017, we announced that we had received a contract from Solar Turbines Incorporated, a subsidiary of Caterpillar Inc. (NYSE:CAT) located in San
Diego, California. Solar Turbines will implement Sigma Labs’ In-Process Quality Assurance™ (IPQA®) technology for the production of gas turbine components using metal
additive manufacturing (“AM”). The division makes mid-size industrial turbines for use in electric power generation, gas compression, and pumping systems. Sigma Las
installed its PrintRite3D® software on a 3D Systems’ ProX300 machine, with the potential for multiple system orders as the company ramps up to full serial production.
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On April 5, 2017, we announced the release of our OEM Developer’s Kit for PrintRite3D® INSPECT™ quality assurance software version 2.0. The Company has
placed its alpha version of the OEM Developer’s Kit with a European OEM partner for immediate evaluation and incorporation into its 3D printers. The Developer’s Kit allows
an OEM to seamlessly and quickly embed PrintRite3D® technology directly into their products, speeding their product launch, rapidly reaching customers and achieving a
competitive advantage.

On March 29, 2017, we announced that we had entered into a long term non-exclusive commercial agreement with Additive Industries B.V. of The Netherlands. In the
course of 2017, Additive Industries advised Sigma that it rolled out its new equipment and was forced to delay initial steps with respect to this agreement, and informed Sigma
that it now intends to commence work with Sigma in 2018.

Also on March 29, 2017, and in an effort to bring enhanced solutions for additive manufacturing (“AM”) to the aerospace and defense (“A&D”) sector and capitalize
on growth in demand for 3D printed metal components within the A&D industry, we entered into a strategic alliance with Morf3D, a California-based company that specializes
in additive engineering and manufacturing with metals and that provides advisory services in additive manufacturing strategy and technology adoption road-mapping. By
leveraging our PrintRite3D® quality assurance software, we believe that Morf3D will be able to provide a means for its customers to increase AM production rates while
ensuring consistent part quality, thereby better meeting the high-quality demands of its aerospace customers. We also plan to work together with Morf3D to manufacture certain
3D printed parts.

On March 27, 2017, we completed funding of a loan in the principal amount of $500,000 to Morf3D pursuant to a Secured Convertible Promissory Note dated March
27,2017 delivered by Morf3D to us. The loan bears interest at the rate of 7% per annum, is due and payable in full on March 27, 2018, is secured by certain assets of Morf3D,
and is convertible at our option into 10% of the outstanding shares of the common stock of Morf3D unless Morf3D exercises its right under specified circumstances to repay all
principal and accrued interest on the loan. The purpose of the loan is to provide working capital to Morf3D to, among other things, lease an EOS M 400 system for Morf3D to
expand production for contracts related to AM of high-precision aerospace & defense components, in furtherance of our strategic alliance. Morf3D repaid the loan on March 28,
2018.

On February 21, 2017, we closed an underwritten public offering of 1,410,000 units, with each unit consisting of one share of our common stock and one warrant to
purchase one share of common stock. The underwriter exercised the over-allotment option covering additional warrants to purchase up to 211,500 additional shares of common
stock. Gross proceeds to us from the offering, including the exercise of the over-allotment option, were approximately $5.8 million, before deducting underwriting discounts and
commissions and other offering expenses payable by us.

Competition

We believe our technologies will be beneficial to several industries, including aerospace, defense, oil and gas, bio-medical, and power generation. However,
developments by others may render our current and proposed technologies noncompetitive or obsolete, or we may be unable to keep pace with technological developments or
other market factors. Additionally, our competitive position may be materially affected by our ability to develop or successfully commercialize certain technologies that we
have identified for commercialization. Other general external factors may also impact the ability of our products to meet expectations or effectively compete, including pricing
pressures.

We anticipate some of our principal competitors in the United States will include AM End Users, such as GE Aviation, Honeywell Aerospace, Rolls-Royce PLC, Pratt
& Whitney; AM OEM equipment manufacturers, such as EOS, Concept Lasers, 3D Systems, Renishaw, Arcam and SLM; third party solution providers like Stratonics Inc., and
Vibrant Corporation that specialize in designing and manufacturing quality control monitoring devices used in industrial applications. Most of these competitors have
significantly greater research and development capabilities than we do, as well as substantially more sales, marketing and financial and managerial resources. These entities
represent significant competition for us. In addition, acquisitions of, or investments in, competing companies by large corporations could increase such competitors’ research,
financial, manufacturing and other resources.

Research and Development
Research and development costs are expensed as incurred. Our research and development expenses relate to our engineering activities, which consist of the
development of our PrintRite3D® quality assurance technologies for specific customers and for the industry in general. During the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016,

we recognized $261,310 and $87,971, of research and development costs, respectively.
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Intellectual Property

We regard our patents, trademarks, domain names, trade secrets, know-how, and other intellectual property as critical to our success. We rely ona combination of
patent, trademark, trade secret, other intellectual property law, confidentiality procedures, and contractual provisions with employees, partners, and others to protectthe
technology and other proprietary rights, information and know-how that comprise the core of our business. The chart below summarizes our issued patents. We are currently
prosecuting eighteen foreign and U.S. patent applications related to our IPQA® technology and rapid qualification of additive manufacturing for metal parts. Twelve of these
eighteen patent applications published between November 2015 and December 2017. There is no guarantee that the patent applications we have submitted will issue or that if
issued, they will offer adequate protection under applicable law.

Title Type Patent No.
Controlled Weld Pool Volume Control of Welding Processes US Utility 8,354,608
Structurally Sound Reactive Materials US Utility 8,372,224
Composite Projectile US Utility 8,359,979

Government Regulation

Any contracts that we enter into with governmental agencies will be subject to a variety of federal, state and local laws and regulations. These regulations are aimed at
preventing the inadvertent disclosure of munitions related data or the export of technical knowledge to foreign countries. The work we do with governmental units may also be
subject to laws respecting the confidentiality of any classified or national security information we receive during the course of our activities under any government contract.

Additionally, with respect to our work with government agencies, our sales are driven by pricing based on costs incurred to produce products or perform services under
contracts with the U.S. government. U.S. government contracts generally are subject to Federal Acquisition Regulations (“FAR”), agency-specific regulations that implement or
supplement FAR, such as the DoD’s Defense Federal Acquisition Regulations and other applicable laws and regulations. These regulations impose a broad range of
requirements, many of which are unique to government contracting, including various procurement, import and export, security, contract pricing and cost, contract termination
and adjustment, and audit requirements. A contractor’s failure to comply with these regulations and requirements could result in reductions of the value of contracts, contract
modifications or termination, and the assessment of penalties and fines and could lead to suspension or debarment from government contracting or subcontracting for a period of
time. In addition, government contractors are also subject to routine audits and investigations by U.S. government agencies such as the Defense Contract Audit Agency
(“DCAA”). These agencies review a contractor’s performance, cost structure, and compliance with applicable laws, regulations, and standards. The DCAA also reviews the
adequacy of, and a contractor’s compliance with, its internal control systems and policies, including the contractor’s purchasing, property, estimating, compensation, and
information systems.

Employees

As of December 31, 2017, we had 12 full-time employees. We are actively searching for additional, qualified sales support and engineering staff, to support our
expanding operations in the area of IPQA® for AM.

Properties

We lease at 3900 Paseo del Sol, Santa Fe, New Mexico 87507, approximately (1) 1,306 square feet of office space at units C-15, C-16, C-17, C-20 and C-23 for a total
monthly rent expense of approximately $2,575 under the lease, which expires on July 31, 2018, (2) 172 square feet of office space at unit C-14 for a total monthly rent expense
of approximately $400 under the lease, which expires on September 30, 2018, (3) 202 square feet of office space at unit C-13 for a total monthly rent expense of approximately
$450 under the lease, which expires on October 31, 2018, (4) 708 square feet of production space at unit E-42, for a total monthly rent expense of approximately $775 under the
lease, which expires on September 30, 2018, (5) 708 square feet of production space at unit E-38, for a total monthly rent expense of approximately $800 under the lease, which
expires on July 31, 2018, and (6) 512 square feet of warehouse / production space at unit E-40, for a total monthly rent expense of approximately $650 under the lease, which
expires on September 30, 2018.

We believe that our facilities are suitable for our current needs.
Corporate Information

Our principal executive offices are located at 3900 Paseo del Sol, Santa Fe, New Mexico 87507, and our current telephone number at that address is (505) 438-2576.
Our website address is www.sigmalabsinc.com. The Company’s annual reports, quarterly reports, current reports on Form 8-K and amendments to such reports filed or
furnished pursuant to section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), and other information related to the Company, are
available, free of charge, on that website as soon as we electronically file those documents with, or otherwise furnish them to, the SEC. The Company’s website and the

information contained therein, or connected thereto, are not and are not intended to be incorporated into this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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We incorporated as Messidor Limited in Nevada on December 23, 1985 and changed our name to Framewaves Inc. in 2001. On September 27, 2010, we changed our
name from Framewaves Inc. to Sigma Labs, Inc.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS.

Investing in our securities involves a high degree of risk. Our business is subject to numerous risks. We caution you that the following important factors, among others,
could cause our actual results to differ materially from those expressed in statements made by us or on our behalf in filings with the SEC, press releases or communications with
investors and others. Any or all of our statements in this annual report and in any other public statements we make may turn out to be wrong. They can be affected by inaccurate
assumptions or by known or unknown risks and uncertainties. The factors mentioned in the discussion below will be important in determining future results. Consequently,
actual future results may vary materially from those anticipated in this annual report or our other public statements. You should carefully consider the risks described below, as
well as the other information in this annual report, including our financial statements and the related notes and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations,” before deciding whether to invest in our securities. The occurrence of any of the events or developments described below could harm our financial
condition, results of operations, business and prospects. In such an event, the market price of our securities could decline, and you could lose all or part of your investment.
Additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to us or that we currently deem immaterial also may have similar adverse effects on us.

Risks Related to Our Business
We have a limited operating history, are not currently profitable and may never become profitable.

We have incurred losses in every reporting period since we commenced business operations in 2010 and expect to continue to incur significant losses for the
foreseeable future. Our net loss for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 were $4,577,516, and $2,196,834, respectively. As of December 31, 2017, our accumulated
deficit was $14,411,470. There is no assurance that any revenues we generate will be sufficient for us to become profitable or to maintain profitability. Our revenues for the
years ended December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016 were $641,049 and $966,422, respectively, and our operating expenses for those periods were $4,420,667 and
$3,211,258, respectively. Our current revenues are not sufficient to fund our operations. We cannot predict when, if ever, we might achieve profitability and we are not certain
that we will be able to sustain profitability, if achieved. If we fail to achieve or maintain profitability, the market price of our securities is likely to be adversely affected.

We may require additional financing to continue our operations, and there is no assurance that we will be able to obtain such financing on acceptable terms, or at all.

As of December 31, 2017, we had cash in the amount of $1,515,674. We believe that the approximately $840,000 of net proceeds from our April 6, 2018 sale of
securities and receipt of $535,000 on a note receivable, together with our existing cash and anticipated revenues, will be sufficient to fund our operations until at least the end of
fiscal 2018. There is no assurance that any future financing that we require to fund our operations will be available on acceptable terms, or at all. Such financing, if in the form
of equity, may be highly dilutive to our existing stockholders and may otherwise include onerous terms. Such financing, if in the form of debt, may include debt covenants and
repayment obligations that are onerous and that adversely affect our business operations. If adequate funds are not available to us, we may be required to delay, limit or
terminate our business operations.

Our limited operating history makes evaluation of our business difficult.

We commenced business operations in 2010 and are continuing to develop our technologies and to implement our business plan. Our ability to implement a successful
business plan remains unproven, and there is no assurance that we will ever generate sufficient revenues to sustain our business. Our relatively short operating history, together
with the other risks discussed in this “Risk Factors” section, may make it difficult for you to evaluate our business in connection with making a decision about whether to invest
in our securities.

We face the risks normally associated with a new business.

We face all of the risks inherent in a new business, including the expenses, difficulties, complications and delays frequently encountered in connection with conducting
new operations and efforts to develop and commercialize technologies. These uncertainties include developing our technologies and our brand name, raising capital to meet our
working capital requirements and developing a customer base, among others. If we are not effective in addressing these risks, we will not be able to operate profitably in the

future, and we may not have adequate working capital to meet our obligations as they become due.
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Our business may be adversely affected by a global economic downturn.

Any economic downturn generally could cause a drop in government spending and business investment, which could have a material adverse effect on our business.
Further, as a result of the current global economic situation, there may be a disruption or delay in performance by our third-party contractors and suppliers. If such third parties
are unable to adequately satisfy their contractual commitments to us in a timely manner, our business could be adversely affected.

We could incur significant damages if we are unable to adequately discharge our contractual obligations.

Our failure to comply with contract requirements or to meet our clients’ performance expectations on a contract could materially and adversely affect our financial
performance and our reputation. This, in turn, would impact our ability to compete for new clients and contracts. Our failure to meet contractual obligations could also result in
substantial actual and consequential damages under the terms of such contracts. In addition, some of our contracts require us to indemnify clients for our failure to meet
performance standards and/or contain liquidated damages provisions and financial penalties related to performance failures. Although we do have liability insurance, the policy
limits may not be adequate to provide protection against all such potential liabilities.

Some of our clients may terminate our contracts prior to completion, which could result in revenue shortfalls and reduce profitability or cause losses on contracts.

Our small number of our contracts with clients contain initial or base periods of one or more years, as well as option periods typically covering more than one-half of
the contract’s initial duration. However, such clients are under no obligation to exercise the option to extend the contract term. The profitability of some of our contracts could
be adversely impacted if such options are not exercised and the contract term is not extended accordingly. Additionally, our contracts contain provisions permitting a client to
terminate the contract on short notice, with or without cause. The unexpected termination of significant contracts could result in significant revenue shortfalls. If revenue
shortfalls occur and are not offset by corresponding reductions in expenses, our business could be adversely affected. We cannot anticipate if, when or to what extent a client
might terminate its contracts with us.

We are subject to government audits, and our failure to comply with applicable laws, regulations and standards could subject us to civil and criminal penalties and
administrative sanctions.

The government agencies we contract with have the authority to audit and investigate our contracts with them. As part of that process, a government agency may
review our performance on a contract, our pricing practices, our cost structure and our compliance with applicable laws, regulations and standards. If the agency determines that
we have improperly allocated costs to a specific contract, we will not be reimbursed for those costs and we will be required to refund the amount of any such costs that have
been previously reimbursed. If a government audit identifies improper activities by us or we otherwise determine that these activities have occurred, we could be subject to civil
and criminal penalties and administrative sanctions, including termination of contracts, forfeitures of profits, suspension of payments, fines and suspension or disqualification
from doing business with the government. Any adverse determination could adversely impact our ability to bid for Request for Proposals (“RFPs”) in one or more jurisdictions.

We may not be able to effectively control and manage our growth, which would negatively impact our operations.

We have operated our current line of business for approximately seven years, and we expect to grow in the near future as our business develops and becomes
established. If our business grows as we anticipate, it will be necessary for us to manage our expansion in an orderly fashion. Any significant growth in our activities or in the
market for our services will require extension of our managerial, operational, marketing and other resources. Future growth will also impose significant additional
responsibilities upon the members of management to identify, recruit, maintain, integrate, and motivate new employees. Our failure to manage growth effectively may lead to
operational inefficiencies that will have a negative effect on our profitability. Additionally, if our growth comes at the expense of providing quality service and generating
reasonable profits, our ability to successfully bid for contracts and our profitability will be adversely affected. We cannot assure investors that we will be able to effectively
manage any future growth we may experience.

Failure to obtain adequate insurance coverage could put us at risk for uninsured losses.

Some or all of our customers may require insurance as a requirement to conduct business with us.Although we currently have liability insurance, we may be unable to
obtain or maintain adequate liability insurance on acceptable terms, if at all, and there is a risk that our insurance will not provide adequate coverage against our potential losses.
Additionally, there are certain types of losses that may not be insurable at a cost that we can afford, and insurance may not be available at any cost with respect to certain losses.
Claims or losses in excess of any insurance coverage we may obtain, or the lack of insurance coverage, could put us at risk of loss for any uninsured loss, which would have a
material adverse effect on our business and financial condition.
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We are dependent on our Interim Chief Executive Officer and other key personnel, and the loss of any of these individuals could harm our business.

We depend on John Rice, our interim Chief Executive Officer, as well as key scientific and other personnel. The loss of any of these individuals could harm our
business and significantly delay or prevent the achievement of our business objectives. In addition, our delivery of services will be labor-intensive: when we are awarded a
contract, we may need to quickly hire project leaders and project management personnel. The additional staff may also create a concurrent demand for increased administrative
personnel. The success of our business will require that we attract, develop, motivate and retain:

e experienced and innovative executive officers;
e  senior managers who have successfully managed or designed programs in the public sector; and
e information technology professionals who have designed or implemented complex information technology projects.

Innovative, experienced and technically proficient individuals are in great demand and are likely to remain a limited resource. We may be unable to continue to attract
and retain desirable executive officers, senior managers, and technology professionals. Our inability to hire sufficient personnel on a timely basis or the loss of significant
numbers of executive officers and senior managers could adversely affect our business.

We may be dependent on cash flow and payments from customers in order to meet our expense obligations.
A number of factors may cause our revenues, cash flow and operating results to vary from quarter to quarter, including the following:

e the progression of contracts;

e thelevels of revenues earned on fixed-price and performance-based contracts (including any adjustments in expectations for revenue recognition on fixed-price
contracts);

e the commencement, completion or termination of contracts during any particular quarter;
e the schedules of government agencies and large multinational corporations for awarding contracts;
o the failure of our customers to fulfill their obligations under contracts with us; and
e the term of awarded contracts and potential acquisitions.
Changes in the volume of activity and the number of contracts commenced, completed or terminated during any quarter may cause significant variations in our cash
flow from operations because a significant portion of our expenses are fixed. Fixed expenses include, rent, payroll, insurance, employee benefits, taxes and other administrative
costs and overhead. Moreover, we expect to incur significant operating expenses during the start-up and early stages of large contracts and typically do not receive

corresponding payments in that same quarter.
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We may make acquisitions in the future that we are unable to effectively manage given our limited resources.

We may choose to grow our business by acquiring other entities. We may be unable to manage businesses that we have acquired or to integrate them successfully
without incurring substantial expenses, delays or other problems that could negatively impact our results of operations. Moreover, business combinations involve additional
risks, including:

e diversion of management’s attention;

e loss of key personnel;

e our becoming significantly leveraged as a result of the incurrence of debt to finance an acquisition;

e assumption of unanticipated legal or financial liabilities;

e unanticipated operating, accounting or management difficulties in connection with the acquired entities;
e amortization of acquired intangible assets, including goodwill; and

e  dilution to existing stockholders and our earnings per share.

Also, client dissatisfaction or performance problems with an acquired firm could materially and adversely affect our reputation as a whole. Further, the acquired
businesses may not achieve the revenues and earnings that we anticipated.

We may be unable to develop or commerecialize new and rapidly evolving technologies.

Many of our activities involve developing products or processes that are based upon new, rapidly evolving technologies. The ability to commercialize or further
develop these technologies could fail for a variety of reasons, both within and outside of our control.

We may be unable to protect our intellectual property rights.

Our success in part depends on the ability to protect our intellectual property and proprietary technology. To do so, we will be required to prosecute patent applications
and maintain patents, obtain new patents and pursue trade secret and other intellectual property protection. We were awarded two U.S. patents with respect to our munitions
technology. We were also awarded a U.S. patent with respect to our IPQA® technology. In addition, we filed eighteen foreign and U.S. patent applications pertaining to our
IPQA® technology and rapid qualification of additive manufacturing for metal parts. Also, we filed a PCT patent application pertaining to the advanced dental implant
technology. However, the efforts we have taken to protect our proprietary rights may not be sufficient or effective. There can be no assurance that our program for protection of
intellectual property and proprietary technology will be sufficient to protect ourintellectual property and proprietary technology from competitors. Our business is also subject
to the risk that our issued patents will not provide us with significant competitive advantages if, for example, a competitor were to independently develop or obtain similar or
superior technologies. In addition, our issued patents may be challenged or infringed upon by third parties. The enforcement of intellectual property rights is subject to
considerable uncertainty, and can be expensive and time-consuming. Patent reform laws and court decisions interpreting such laws, may create additional uncertainty around
our ability to obtain and enforce patent protection. Any significant impairment of our intellectual property rights could harm our business and our ability to compete. The
unauthorized use of our intellectual property could make it more expensive to do business and harm our operating results. Proprietary trade secrets and unpatented know-how
are also very important to our business, however, trade secrets are difficult to protect. Our employees, consultants, contractors, outside scientific collaborators and other
advisors may unintentionally or willfully disclose our confidential information to competitors, and confidentiality agreements may not provide an adequate remedy in the event
of unauthorized disclosure of confidential or proprietary information.

We may be sued by third parties who claim that we have infringed their intellectual property rights.

We may be exposed to future litigation by third parties based on claims that our research, development and commercialization activities infringe the intellectual
property rights of third parties to which we do not hold licenses or other rights, or that we have misappropriated the trade secrets of others. Any litigation or claims against us,
whether or not valid, could result in substantial costs, and could place a significant strain on our financial and human resources. In addition, if successful, such claims could
cause us to pay substantial damages. Furthermore, because of the substantial amount of discovery required in connection with intellectual property litigation, there is a risk that
some of our confidential information could be compromised by disclosure during this type of litigation.

Our services are subject to government regulation, changes in which may have an adverse effect on us.

Our business activities subject us to a variety of federal, state and local laws and regulations. For example, we will required to comply with applicable provisions of the
International Traffic in Arms Regulations (“ITAR”), as well as other export controls and laws governing the manufacture and distribution of munitions technology. Despite the
fact that we have applied for and received ITAR compliance, changes in the laws and regulations applicable to our business activities may have an adverse effect on our
operations and profitability by making it more expensive and less profitable for us to do business. Additionally, the market for our services depends largely on federal and state
legislative programs. These programs can be modified or amended at any time by acts of federal and state governments. Further, if additional programs are not proposed or
enacted, or if previously enacted programs are challenged, repealed or invalidated, our growth strategy could be adversely impacted.
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Our bylaws contain provisions indemnifying our officers and directors against all costs, charges, and expenses incurred by them.

Our Bylaws contain provisions with respect to the indemnification of our officers and directors against all costs, charges and expenses actually and reasonably incurred
by an officer or director paid to settle an action or satisfy a judgment in a civil, criminal or administrative action or proceeding to which he is made a party by reason of being or
having been one of our directors or officers. To the extent that our directors’ and officers’ insurance policy does not provide reimbursement for such costs, charges, expenses
and other amounts, we may incur substantial expenses in satisfying our indemnification obligations.

Our operating costs could be significantly higher than we expect, and this could reduce our future profitability.

In addition to general economic conditions, market fluctuations and international risks, significant increases in operating, development and implementation costs could
adversely affect us due to numerous factors, many of which are beyond our control.

A cyber incident could result in information theft, data corruption, operational disruption and/or financial loss.

Businesses have become increasingly dependent on digital technologies to conduct day-to-day operations. At the same time, cyber incidents, including deliberate
attacks or unintentional events, have increased. A cyber-attack could include gaining unauthorized access to digital systems for purposes of misappropriating assets or sensitive
information, corrupting data, or causing operational disruption or result in denial of service on websites. We depend on digital technology, including information systems and
related infrastructure, to process and record financial and operating data, and communicate with our employees and business partners. Our technologies, systems, networks, and
those of our business partners may become the target of cyber-attacks or information security breaches that could result in the unauthorized release, gathering, monitoring,
misuse, loss or destruction of proprietary and other information, or other disruption of our business operations. Although to date we have not experienced any losses relating to
cyber-attacks, there is no assurance that we will not suffer such losses in the future. As cyber threats continue to evolve, we may be required to expend significant additional
resources to continue to modify or enhance our protective measures or to investigate and remediate any information security vulnerabilities.

Risks Related to Our Securities
The price of our securities could be subject to volatility related or unrelated to our operations, which could result in substantial losses for our stockholders.

Between January 1, 2016 and December 31, 2017, the trading price of our common stock has ranged from a low of $1.33 to a high of $12.00, and could be subject to
wide fluctuations in the future in response to various factors, some of which are beyond our control. The trading price of the warrants that we issued in our recent public
offering could be subject to similar fluctuations as a result of such factors. These factors include those discussed previously in this “Risk Factors” section and others, such as:

e  delays or failures in the commercialization of our current or future products and services;

e  quarterly variations in our results of operations or those of our competitors;

e changes in our earnings estimates or recommendations by securities analysts or adverse publicity about us or our products or services;

e announcements by us or our competitors of new products and services, significant contracts, commercial relationships, acquisitions or capital commitments;
e adverse developments with respect to our intellectual property rights;

e commencement of litigation involving us or our competitors;

e any major changes in our board of directors or management;

e market conditions in our industry; and

e general economic conditions in the United States and abroad.
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In addition, the stock market, in general, may experience broad market fluctuations, which may adversely affect the market price or liquidity of our securities.
We could be subject to securities class action litigation.

Any sudden decline in the market price of our securities could trigger securities class action lawsuits against us. If any of our stockholders were to bring such a lawsuit
against us, we could incur substantial costs defending the lawsuit and the time and attention of our management would be diverted from our business and operations. We also
could be subject to damages claims if we are found to be at fault in connection with a decline in our market price of our securities.

An active trading market in our securities may not develop, and you may therefore have difficulty selling your securities at a price that you determine is satisfactory.

Although our common stock and the 2017 warrants are listed on The NASDAQ Capital Market, our common stock and warrants trade infrequently and in low
volumes. There is no assurance that such securities will trade in the public market at or above a price that you consider acceptable. Furthermore, there is no assurance that an
active trading market for any of our securities will develop or be sustained. If an active market for our securities does not develop or is not maintained, it may be difficult for
you to sell your securities when you wish to sell them or at a price that you consider satisfactory. An inactive trading market may also impair our ability to raise capital to
continue to fund operations by selling securities and may impair our ability to acquire other companies or technologies by using our securities as consideration.

There is no assurance that we will satisfy the continued listing requirements of The NASDAQ Capital Market.

Even though our common stock and 2017 warrants are listed on The NASDAQ Capital Market, we cannot assure you that we will be able to satisfy the continued
listing requirements of The NASDAQ Capital Market. For example, there is no assurance that our common stock will continue to have a bid price of at least $1.00 per share,
which is the minimum bid price under such continued listing requirements, or that we will be able to satisfy other quantitative continued listing requirements such as the
requirement for us to have stockholders’ equity of at least $2.5 million. If our securities are de-listed from The NASDAQ Capital Market, our stockholders could incur material
adverse consequences such as reduced liquidity for their securities and reduced market prices for their securities. Following such de-listing, we could encounter increased
difficulty in issuing additional securities at an attractive price, or at all, in order to fund our operations.

You may experience additional dilution as a result of future equity offerings.

In order to raise additional capital, we may in the future offer additional shares of our common stock or other securities convertible into or exchangeable for our
common stock. The price per share at which we sell additional shares of our common stock, or securities convertible or exchangeable into common stock, in future transactions
may be lower than the price per share that you paid for our common stock.

We have broad discretion in the use of the net proceeds of our recent public and private offerings and may not use them effectively.

We intend to use our cash for the development of our products and service and to repay our outstanding promissory note (if and to the extent the holder thereof
demands repayment). We may also use a portion of the net proceeds from our February 2017 and April 2018 offerings to acquire other products or businesses, although we are
not currently a party to an agreement regarding any such acquisition. However, our management has broad discretion in the use of cash and will have the right to use our cash in
ways that differ substantially from our current plans. Management may spend our cash in ways that do not improve our results of operations or enhance the value of our
securities. The failure by management to apply funds effectively could result in financial losses that could have a material and adverse effect on our business and cause the
market price of our securities to decline.

We do not intend to pay dividends on our common stock, and your ability to achieve a return on your investment will depend on appreciation in the market price of
our securities.

We currently intend to invest our future earnings, if any, to fund our growth and not to pay any cash dividends on our common stock. Since we do not intend to pay
dividends, your ability to receive a return on your investment will depend on any future appreciation in the market price of our securities. There is no assurance that our
securities will appreciate in price.
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If securities or industry analysts do not publish research or reports about us, or if they issue adverse or misleading opinions regarding us or our securities, the
marKket price of our securities and their trading volume could decline.

If we do not obtain and maintain research coverage by securities and industry analysts, the market price for our securities may be adversely affected. The market price
of our securities also may decline if any analyst who covers us issues an adverse or erroneous opinion regarding us, our business model, our intellectual property or our
performance. If one or more analysts cease coverage of us or fail to regularly publish reports on us, we could lose visibility in the financial markets, which could cause the
market price of our securities and their trading volume to decline and possibly adversely affect our ability to engage in future financings.

Our principal stockholders and management own a significant percentage of our common stock and may be able to significantly affect matters subject to stockholder
approval.

Based on shares outstanding as of December 31, 2017, our executive officers, directors, holders of 5% or more of our common stock and their respective affiliates will
beneficially own in the aggregate approximately 13.62% of our outstanding shares of common stock. As a result of their stock ownership, these stockholders will have the
ability to influence our management and policies, and are able to materially affect the outcome of matters requiring stockholder approval such as elections of directors,
amendments of our organizational documents or approvals of any merger, sale of assets or other major corporate transaction. This may prevent or discourage unsolicited
acquisition proposals or offers for our common stock that you may feel are in your best interest as one of our stockholders.

Sales of a substantial number of shares of our common stock in the public market could cause our stock price to fall.

Sales of a substantial number of shares of our common stock in the public market could occur at any time. These sales, or the perception in the market that the holders
of a large number of shares intend to sell shares, could reduce the market price of our common stock. As of December 31, 2017, we have 4,978,929 outstanding shares of
common stock. Sales of a large number of the shares described in the preceding sentence, or the perception that a large number of shares may be sold, could have a material
adverse effect on the trading price of our common stock.

We will incur significant costs to ensure compliance with U.S. and NASDAQ reporting and corporate governance requirements.

We will incur significant costs associated with our public company reporting requirements and with applicable U.S. and NASDAQ corporate governance requirements,
including requirements under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and other rules implemented by the SEC and NASDAQ. We expect all of these applicable rules and regulations
to significantly increase our legal and financial compliance costs and to make some activities more time consuming and costly. We also expect that these applicable rules and
regulations may make it more difficult and more expensive for us to obtain director and officer liability insurance and we may be required to accept reduced policy limits and
coverage or incur substantially higher costs to obtain the same or similar coverage. As a result, it may be more difficult for us to attract and retain qualified individuals to serve
on our board of directors or as executive officers.

If we fail to maintain effective internal control over financial reporting, the market price of our securities may be adversely affected.

As a public reporting company, we are required to establish and maintain effective internal control over financial reporting. Failure to establish such internal control, or
any failure of such internal control once established, could adversely impact our public disclosures regarding our business, financial condition or results of operations. Any
failure of our internal control over financial reporting could also prevent us from maintaining accurate accounting records and discovering accounting errors and financial
frauds.

Rules adopted by the SEC pursuant to Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 require annual assessment of our internal control over financial reporting. The
standards that must be met for management to assess the internal control over financial reporting as effective are complex, and require significant documentation, testing and
possible remediation to meet the detailed standards. We may encounter problems or delays in completing activities necessary to make an assessment of our internal control over
financial reporting. If we cannot assess our internal control over financial reporting as effective, investor confidence and share value may be negatively impacted. In addition,
management’s assessment of internal control over financial reporting may identify weaknesses and conditions that need to be addressed in our internal control over financial
reporting or other matters that may raise concerns for investors. Any actual or perceived weaknesses and conditions that need to be addressed in our internal control over
financial reporting (including those weaknesses identified in our periodic reports), or disclosure of management’s assessment of our internal control over financial reporting
may have an adverse impact on the price of our securities.
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Provisions in our articles of incorporation and bylaws could discourage a takeover that stockholders may consider favorable and may lead to entrenchment of
management.

Our articles of incorporation and bylaws contain provisions that could delay or prevent changes in control or changes in our management without the consent of our

board of directors. These provisions include the following:

a classified board of directors with three-year staggered terms, which may delay the ability of stockholders to change the membership of a majority of our board of
directors;

no cumulative voting in the election of directors, which limits the ability of minority stockholders to elect director candidates;

the exclusive right of our board of directors to elect a director to fill a vacancy created by the expansion of the board of directors or the resignation, death or removal of a
director, which prevents stockholders from being able to fill vacancies on our board of directors;

the ability of our board of directors to authorize the issuance of additional shares of preferred stock and to determine the terms of those shares, including preferences and
voting rights, without stockholder approval, which could adversely affect the rights of our common stockholders or be used to deter a possible acquisition of our
company;

the ability of our board of directors to alter our bylaws without obtaining stockholder approval;

the required approval of the holders of at least two-thirds of the shares entitled to vote at an election of directors to adopt, amend or repeal our bylaws or repeal the
provisions of our articles of incorporation and bylaws regarding the election and removal of directors;

a prohibition on stockholder action by written consent, which forces stockholder action to be taken at an annual or special meeting of our stockholders;

the requirement that a special meeting of stockholders may be called only by the chairman of the board of directors, the chief executive officer, the president or the board
of directors, which may delay the ability of our stockholders to force consideration of a proposal or to take action, including the removal of directors; and

advance notice procedures that stockholders must comply with in order to nominate candidates to our board of directors or to propose matters to be acted upon at a
stockholders’ meeting, which may discourage or deter a potential acquirer from conducting a solicitation of proxies to elect the acquirer’s own slate of directors or

otherwise attempting to obtain control of us.

These provisions could inhibit or prevent possible transactions that some stockholders may consider attractive.

Our board has recently issued a Series B Preferred Stock and could issue one or more additional series of preferred stock with the effect of diluting existing
stockholders and impairing their voting and other rights.

Our articles of incorporation authorizes the issuance of up to 10,000,000 shares of “blank check” preferred stock with designations, rights and preferences as may be

determined from time to time by our board of directors. In our April 6, 2018 private placement of equity securities, we issued 1,000 shares of Series B Preferred Stock, which
are initially convertible into 1,000,000 shares of common stock. Our board is empowered, without stockholder approval, to issue one or more additional series of preferred stock
with dividend, liquidation, conversion, voting or other rights which could dilute the interest of, or impair the voting power of, our common stockholders. The issuance of such
additional series of preferred stock could be used as a method of discouraging, delaying or preventing a change in control. For example, it would be possible for our board of
directors to issue preferred stock with voting or other rights or preferences that could impede the success of any attempt to effect a change in control of our Company.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS.

Not applicable.
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES.

We lease at 3900 Paseo del Sol, Santa Fe, New Mexico 87507, approximately (1) 1,306 square feet of office space at units C-15, C-16, C-17, C-20 and C-23 for a total
monthly rent expense of approximately $2,575 under the lease, which expires on July 31, 2018, (2) 172 square feet of office space at unit C-14 for a total monthly rent expense
of approximately $400 under the lease, which expires on September 30, 2018, (3) 202 square feet of office space at unit C-13 for a total monthly rent expense of approximately
$450 under the lease, which expires on October 31, 2018, (4) 708 square feet of production space at unit E-42, for a total monthly rent expense of approximately $775 under the
lease, which expires on September 30, 2018, (5) 708 square feet of production space at unit E-38, for a total monthly rent expense of approximately $800 under the lease, which
expires on July 31, 2018, and (6) 512 square feet of warehouse / production space at unit E-40, for a total monthly rent expense of approximately $650 under the lease, which
expires on September 30, 2018.

We believe that our facilities are suitable for our current needs.
ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

We are not currently a party to any legal proceedings. However, we may occasionally become subject to legal proceedings and claims that arise in the ordinary course
of our business. It is impossible for us to predict with any certainty the outcome of pending disputes, and we cannot predict whether any liability arising from pending claims
and litigation will be material in relation to our financial position or results of operations.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES.

Not Applicable.

PART 11

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY
SECURITIES.

Market Information

Our common stock was quoted for trading on the OTCQB under the symbol “SGLB” prior to February 15, 2017, when our common stock began trading on The
NASDAQ Capital Market under the symbol “SGLB.” The following table sets forth the high and low bid prices (or, after February 15, 2017, sales price) for our common stock
for the periods indicated after giving effect to our 1-for-100 reverse stock split on March 17, 2016 and our 1-for-2 reverse stock split on February 15, 2017. Such quotations
reflect inter-dealer prices, without retail mark-up, mark-down or commissions and may not necessarily represent actual transactions.

High Bid or Low Bid or
Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2017 Sales Price Sales Price
First Quarter $ 920 §$ 1.40
Second Quarter $ 3.49 $ 2.00
Third Quarter $ 264 $ 1.70
Fourth Quarter $ 4.48 $ 1.33
Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2016 High Bid Low Bid
First Quarter $ 12.00 $ 8.02
Second Quarter $ 9.50 $ 4.90
Third Quarter $ 6.20 $ 4.00
Fourth Quarter $ 560 $ 1.40

Shareholders

As of April 12, 2018, there were approximately 531 holders of record of our common stock based on information provided by our transfer agent.
Dividends

We have not paid any dividends on our common stock to date and do not anticipate that we will pay dividends in the foreseeable future. Any payment of cash
dividends on our common stock in the future will be dependent upon the amount of funds legally available, our earnings, if any, our financial condition, our anticipated capital
requirements and other factors that the board of directors may think are relevant. However, we currently intend for the foreseeable future to follow a policy of retaining all of
our earnings, if any, to finance the development and expansion of our business and, therefore, do not expect to pay any dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future.
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Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

On October 6, 2017, pursuant to an advisory agreement with the underwriter of our most recent public offering, we issued such underwriter a total of 141,000 shares of
our common stock in exchange for the surrender by such underwriter of its Unit Purchase Option to acquire up to 70,500 Units. The foregoing shares were issued in reliance
upon an exemption from the registration requirements pursuant to Section 3(a)(9)of the Securities Act

In December 2017, we issued a total of 260,278 shares of our common stock to two investors upon conversion and exercise of a portion of the convertible notes and
warrants, respectively held by such investors. The foregoing securities were issued in reliance upon an exemption from the registration requirements pursuant to Section 4(2) of
the Securities Act.

Repurchase of Shares
We did not repurchase any of our securities during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2017.
ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA.
Not applicable to a “smaller reporting company” as defined in Item 10(f)(1) of SEC Regulation S-K.
ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.
Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported assets, liabilities, sales and expenses in the accompanying financial statements. Critical accounting policies are those that require the most
subjective and complex judgments, often employing the use of estimates about the effect of matters that are inherently uncertain. Such critical accounting policies, including the
assumptions and judgments underlying them, are disclosed in Note 1 to the Financial Statements included in this Annual Report. However, we do not believe that there are any
alternative methods of accounting for our operations that would have a material effect on our financial statements.

Results of Operations
Year Ended December 31, 2017 Compared to the Year Ended December 31, 2016.

We expect to generate revenue primarily by selling and licensing our IPQA technologies, selling technical support services and contract manufacturing and selling
specialty parts and studies to businesses that seek to improve their manufacturing production processes and production-run quality yields. Our ability to generate revenues in the
future will depend on our ability to further commercialize and increase market presence of our PrintRite3D® technologies, and it will depend on if key prospective customers
continue to move from AM metal prototyping to production.

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2017 (“fiscal 2017”), we generated an aggregate of $641,049 in revenues, as compared to an aggregate of $966,422 in
revenues generated by us in the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016 (“fiscal 2016”). The decrease in revenue was primarily due to the strategic reorganization of the
Company’s priorities and personnel over the second six months of 2017. The Company determined that it was essential to transform Sigma from being an R&D company into
being a technology development and commercialization company. This imperative and the many changes required to implement it derived from the observation that the R&D
culture could not meet the demonstrated needs of both new and prospective customers for practical solutions to problems they have now and for technical product introduction
processes to support and educate on how to take advantage of the Company’s technology. Commencing in the summer of 2017, the Company began a rapid shift away from
selling and supporting single PrintRite3D® units to customers who currently focus on R&D and have no material production of AM parts (and thus, have no near term need to
buy more PrintRite3D® units). By September 1, 2017, the Company strategy led to a policy requiring 100% sales and marketing focus on prospective customers who are
already producing AM metal parts in production runs, who realize they have low yields and, in some cases, worry that perhaps they are unwittingly shipping parts that are
invisibly below specification. Concurrent with this new policy of customer focus, the Company worked to integrate sales and marketing more closely with product
development. This integration included creating a dedicated Sigma customer support team for in-field hands-on support of PrintRite3D® assessments and demonstrations to
enable Sigma and its newly targeted customer group to cooperate in a simple defined process that provides customers with a demonstration of how to calibrate their AM
equipment using PrintRite3D® and how to improve quality using PrintRite3D®, as substantiated by using a third party laboratory to affirm, part by part, the quality test results.
We generated revenues and financed our operations in fiscal 2017 and fiscal 2016 primarily from engineering consulting services we provided to third parties during these
periods and through sales of our common stock and debt securities. We expect that our revenue will increase in future periods as we seek, as discussed above, to further
commercialize and expand our market presence for our PrintRite3D®-related technologies, and obtain new contract manufacturing orders in connection with our EOS M290,
and continue to provide our services under our contracts with Honeywell Aerospace for the DARPA Period 2 program.
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Sigma’s operating expenses for fiscal 2017 were $4,420,667 as compared to $3,211,258 for fiscal 2016. Our operating expenses principally include internal operating
and sales expenses, outside service fees, and research & development costs. These three operating expense areas are responsible for $1,133,513 or 94% of the increased
operating costs in 2017.

Personnel costs, specifically the payroll and stock-based compensation components of personnel costs, are the most significant component of the Company’s internal
operating expenses. In fiscal 2017, payroll costs were $1,269,476 as compared to $1,027,306 for the same period in 2016. This increase in payroll was primarily due to the
increased salaries associated with the strategic new hires and reorganization of the management team made in the second half of the year. Expenses relating to stock-based
compensation for year ended December 31, 2017 were $719,796 as compared to $341,558 for the same period in 2016. This increase in stock-based compensation costs resulted
both from the fact that the majority of stock options were granted after September 30, 2016, thus significantly more stock option vesting amortization was recorded in the four
quarters comprising fiscal 2017 than in the same periods of 2016 and from the grant of a significant number of options with shorter vesting periods as part of the strategic
realignment of key personnel in mid-2017. This expense also includes the amortization of stock issued for prepaid services.

Outside Services Fees paid in 2017 were $1,229,304 compared to $934,839 paid in 2016. In each year, services in connection with our obligations as an SEC reporting
company cost us slightly over $550,000. However, other legal fees of $333,046 were paid in 2017 compared to $126,992 in 2016. The increase in these fees was primarily from
those paid conjunction with our February 2017 public offering that resulted in net proceeds of approximately $5,225,650. In addition outside service expenditures related to
advertising and trade show activities were up by $59,294 as a result of our shift in strategic focus toward scalable commercial rather than programmatic business development.

Research and Development expenditures were $302,043 in 2017 compared to $120,638 in 2016. This $181,405 increase resulted primarily from the additional R&D
consulting costs incurred as part of our concentrated acceleration of technology development in 2017.

In 2017, our Net Other Income & Expense was a net expense of $525,526 compared to net income of $276,904 in 2016. The largest contributor to the 2017 loss was
$545,188 due to revaluations of derivatives and amortization of debt discounts required as a result of February 2017 public offering, the restructuring of debt in October 2017,
and the December 2017 conversions by two debt instrument holders. This compares to a $354,644 positive contribution from revaluation of derivatives in 2016. Offsetting these
noncash adjustments was positive contribution in 2017 from an $102,865 increase in the amount of cash incentives received from the State of New Mexico and $40,107 of
interest income earned on loans we made. These were largely offset by a $121,624 increase in interest expense on the $1,000,000 note originated in October of 2016.

Sigma’s net loss for fiscal 2017 increased $2,380,682 overall and totaled $4,577,516, as compared to $2,196,834 for fiscal 2016. The 2017 net operating loss
component of the overall loss being $1,578,252 higher than in 2016 and the other income and expenses component being a $802,430 higher loss.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of December 31, 2017, we had $1,515,674 in cash and a working capital surplus of $2,273,801, as compared to $398,391 in cash and a working capital surplus of
$110,799 as of December 31, 2016. On March 28, 2018, Sigma received $535,000 in full payment of the outstanding Morf3D note receivable and accrued interest. On April 6,
2018, the Company closed a private placement of equity securities resulting in net proceeds of approximately $840,000, after deducting commissions and other offering
expenses payable by the Company.

During the remainder of 2018, we expect to further ramp up our operations and our commercialization and marketing efforts, which will increase the amount of cash
we will use in our operations. We expect that our continued development of our IPQA®-enabled PrintRite3D® technology will enable us to further commercialize this
technology for the AM metal market in 2018. However, until commercialization of our full suite of PrintRite3D® technologies, we plan to continue funding our development
activities and operating expenses by licensing our PrintRite3D® systems and supporting field services, as applicable, and providing PrintRite3D®-enabled engineering
consulting services concerning our areas of expertise (materials and manufacturing quality assurance and process control technologies) and contract manufacturing for metal
AM, and through the use of proceeds from sales of our securities.
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Cash used in operating activities in 2017 increased to $2,791,406 from $1,962,314 in 2016 due primarily to increases in payroll, and in outside services costs related to
both the $5,250,000 capital raise and increased research and development activities in 2017. The Company anticipates fewer losses in 2018, due to expected increased revenues,
offset by increased salaries and related expenses in connection with additional employees and potential acquisitions (although there are no agreements with respect to the
acquisition by the Company of any third party, and there can be no assurance that any agreements will be entered into or, if entered into, that any acquisition or other transaction
will be consummated). Cash flows used in investing activities increased from $79,104 in 2016 to $928,960 in 2017 primarily due to the layout of $788,500 in exchange for notes
receivable issued to two customers in 2017. Cash flows provided by financing activities in 2017 were $4,837,649 compared to $900,000 in 2016. The increase resulted from the
issuance of shares of common stock and warrants in February 2017 that raised net proceeds of $5,250,000 and the exercise of warrants in December 2017 that raised an
additional $112,000 in proceeds, offset by $500,000 principal payments on debt securities in October 2017 as opposed to net proceeds of $900,000 raised in October 2016
through a private offering of debt securities.

We have no credit lines as of April 10, 2018, nor have we ever had a credit line since our inception.

Based on the funds we have as of April 10, 2018, and the proceeds we expect to receive under our PrintRite3D®-enabled engineering consulting agreements, from
selling or licensing our PrintRite3D® systems and software, sales of contract AM manufacturing for metal AM parts and the payment of loans made by Sigma, we believe that
we will have sufficient funds to pay our administrative and other operating expenses through 2018. Until we are able to generate significant revenues and royalties from
licensing our PrintRite3D®-enabled technologies and our contact AM manufacturing services, our ability to continue to fund our liquidity and working capital needs will be
dependent upon revenues from existing and future PrintRite3D®-enabled engineering consulting contracts, possible strategic partnerships, contract manufacturing orders in
connection with our EOS M290, and proceeds received from sales of our debt and/or securities. Accordingly, we may have to obtain additional capital from the sale of
additional securities or by borrowing funds from lenders to fulfill our business plans. If we issue additional equity or debt securities, stockholders may experience additional
dilution or the new equity securities may have rights, preferences or privileges senior to those of existing holders of our common stock. There is no assurance that we will be
successful in obtaining additional funding. If we fail to obtain sufficient funding when needed, we may be forced to delay, scale back or eliminate all or a portion of our
commercialization efforts and operations.

Inflation and changing prices have had no effect on our continuing operations over our two most recent fiscal years.
We have no off-balance sheet arrangements as defined in Item 303(a) of Regulation S-K.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK.
Not applicable to a “smaller reporting company.”

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA.

Financial Statements are referred to in Item 15, listed in the Index to Financial Statements and filed and included elsewhere herein as a part of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE.
None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Rule 13a-15(e) under the Exchange Act defines the term “disclosure controls and procedures” as those controls and procedures designed to ensure that information
required to be disclosed by a company in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods
specified in the SEC rules and forms and that such information is accumulated and communicated to the company’s management, including its principal executive and principal
financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Based upon an evaluation of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures performed by our management, with the participation of our Interim Chief
Executive Officer, and Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer), as of the end of the period covered by this annual report, our management
concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures are effective at a reasonable assurance level in ensuring that information required to be disclosed by us in our reports is
recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the required time periods. The foregoing conclusion is based, in part, on the fact that we are a small public company in the
early stage of our business, with limited revenues and employees.
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Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f)
under the Exchange Act. Our management, with the participation of our Interim Chief Executive Officer, and Chief Financial Officer, conducted an evaluation of the
effectiveness of our control over financial reporting based on the framework in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission. Based on management’s evaluation under the framework, management has concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective
as of December 31, 2017.

We continuously seek to improve and strengthen our control processes to ensure that all of our controls and procedures are adequate and effective. Any failure to
implement and maintain improvements in the controls over our financial reporting could cause us to fail to meet our reporting obligations under the SEC’s rules and
regulations. Any failure to improve our internal controls to address the weakness we have identified could also cause investors to lose confidence in our reported financial
information, which could have a negative impact on the trading price of our common stock.

This annual report does not include an attestation report of the Company’s registered public accounting firm regarding internal control over financial reporting.
Management’s report was not subject to attestation by our registered public accounting firm pursuant to SEC rules that permit us to provide only management’s report in this
annual report.

There have been no changes in our internal controls over financial reporting during the fourth quarter of the year ended December 31, 2017 that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal controls over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.
PART III
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE.
MANAGEMENT
Executive Officers

The following table sets forth the name, age and position of each of our executive officers as of March 31, 2018:

Name Age Position

John Rice 71 Chairman of the Board and Interim Chief Executive Officer
Mark J. Cola 58 Chief Technology Officer and President

Nannette Toups 61 Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Corporate Secretary
Ronald Fisher 48 Vice President of Business Development

John Rice was appointed as a director on February 15, 2017, as Chairman of our Board on April 19, 2017, and as our interim Chief Executive Officer on July 24,
2017. Additional information regarding Mr. Rice is set forth below under “Board of Directors and Corporate Governance.”

Mark J. Colahas served as our Chief Technology Officer since July 24, 2017, and as our President since September 2010. He served as our Chief Executive Officer
from September 2012 until July 24, 2017, and served as our Chief Operating Officer and as a director from September 2010 until July 24, 2017. From June 2006 through April
2010, Mr. Cola served as Director of Operations for the Beyond6 Sigma Division of TMC Corporation. In addition, Mr. Cola has over 34 years of experience in the aerospace
and nuclear industries, including with Rockwell International, SPECO Division of Kelsey-Hayes Co., Westinghouse in the Naval Nuclear Reactors Program, Houston Lighting
& Power, and within the NNSA Weapons Complex at Los Alamos National Laboratory at which he held various technical and managerial positions including team leader and
group leader of the welding and joining section as well as an advanced manufacturing technology group, respectively. He has also worked as a Research Engineer at Edison
Welding Institute and for Thermadyne’s Stoody Division, a leading manufacturer of wear-resistant materials.
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At Beyond6 Sigma, Mr. Cola worked with a wide range of clients ranging from aerospace to defense systems. His expertise is in manufacturing process development,
friction welding, light alloys such as titanium and aluminum, mechanical, physical and welding metallurgy, and nickel-based super alloys for harsh environments. Mr. Cola
served as the Technical Co-Chairman for the inaugural National Nuclear Security Administration Future Technologies Conference held in May 2004, and he is a principal
reviewer for the American Welding Society’s Welding Journal. Mr. Cola earned a B.S. in Metallurgical Engineering and an M.S. in Welding Engineering from The Ohio State
University.

Nannette Toups has served as our Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer, principal accounting officer, principal financial officer and Corporate Secretary since September
14, 2017. Since December 2013, Ms. Toups has served as a contract CFO and provided accounting services to a variety of clients in different industries ranging from non-
profits to medical device development. From May 2008 to October 2013, Ms. Toups served in various positions at Qforma, Inc., a privately-held custom software development
company, including as Controller and most recently as Senior Vice-President of Finance and Administration. Prior to joining Qforma, she served as an independent consultant
from October 2005 to May 2008, providing a variety of financial, accounting and management services to individuals, entrepreneurs and a non-profit organization. From May
2004 to September 2005, Ms. Toups served as the Controller of KSL Joint Venture, where she was responsible for all accounting and financial reporting activities for the Site
Support Services Group at Los Alamos National Laboratory. From January 2002 to April 2003, she served as the Controller and Treasurer of BiosGroup, Inc., a closely-held
complexity science consulting company. Prior thereto, Ms. Toups served in various positions at Louisiana Intrastate Gas Company, LLC, including Controller and Transition
Projects Manager. Ms. Toups received her CPA certification in 1984 and holds a bachelor’s degree in business administration and accounting from Louisiana State University,
and a master’s of liberal arts degree from St. John’s College.

Ronald Fisher was appointed as Vice President of Business Development of Sigma on August 10, 2015, and leads the PrintRite3D® Operating Division. Mr. Fisher is
a Mechanical Engineer with hands-on experience in quality, manufacturing, and product development. He has an MBA and has distinguished himself as a lead sales and
marketing officer as well as a Chief Operating Officer. He was a Program Manager at Swagelok from 1988-2004, and Vice President and General Manager, Aftermarket and
Geometry Systems, at Micropoise Measurement Systems from 2004 until 2013, and a Partner and COO of Laszeray Technology, LLC from 2013 until 2014. Mr. Fisher holds a
Bachelor’s Degree in Mechanical Engineering Technology from the University of Akron as well as an MBA from Kent State University.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The following table sets forth the names, ages as of March 31, 2018, and certain other information regarding our directors:

Directors Class Age Position Director Since Current Term Expires
John Rice 1 71 Interim Chief Executive Officer, Director and Chairman 2017 2018
of the Board
Salvatore Battinelli(1)(2)(3) I 76  Director 2017 2019
Frank J. Garofalo I 67 Director 2017 2019
Dennis Duitch(1)(2)(3) 1 73 Director 2017 2020
Kent Summers(1)(2)(3) 11 59 Director 2018 2020

(1) Member of our Audit Committee
(2) Member of our Compensation Committee
(3) Member of our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee

Directors

John Rice was appointed to our Board of Directors on February 15, 2017, was appointed as Chairman of our Board on April 19, 2017, and was appointed as our
interim Chief Executive Officer on July 24, 2017. Mr. Rice has extensive experience in business operations. In 1990, Mr. Rice founded ASiQ, LLC, a firm specializing in
operations management services ranging from launching successful startups and executing business turnarounds to financings, crisis management and the repositioning of
enterprises for sale at optimum market prices. Mr. Rice presently serves as ASiQ’s CEO and President. He also served as CEO of Coca-Cola Bottling Company of Santa Fe, a
client of ASiQ’s, from 2009 to 2015. From 2010 to 2012, Mr. Rice served as Director and Contracts Officer of Detector Networks International. Mr. Rice frequently lectures on
breakout growth strategies, crisis management, corporate turnarounds, venture capital, and financial structuring and strategies. He has also served on a number of boards. Since
2005, Mr. Rice has served as Director of New Mexico Angels, Inc., a New Mexico based group of accredited individual angel investors. Since 2016, Mr. Rice has served as
Director of Akal Security, Inc. He was also a Director of Detector Networks International from 2010-2012, where he successfully negotiated the principal component of a
business turnaround for the company. Mr. Rice is an honors graduate of Harvard College.
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Our Board of Directors believes that Mr. Rice is qualified to serve as a member of the board because of his broad and deep experience in improving business
operations, engineering financial structures that support ongoing needs of operating companies, and building investor and shareholder values.

Salvatore Battinelli was appointed to our Board of Directors on August 16, 2017. Mr. Battinelli is currently the President and Chief Executive Officer of Bello e
Preciso Co., a manufacturer and wholesaler of Italian-made fashion watches, and has served in those roles since early 2017. Prior to joining Bello e Preciso Co., from 2011 to
2013, Mr. Battinelli served as Vice-President of Development and Long Term Strategy of North American Management Corporation, a wealth management firm based in
Boston, Massachusetts with over $2 billion in assets under management. From 1987 to 2011, Mr. Battinelli served as Executive Vice-President and acting Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Operating Officer of Faneuil Hall Associates, Inc., a concierge boutique family office devoted to five interrelated ultra-high net-worth families. Mr.
Battinelli’s primary responsibilities while at Faneuil Hall Associates included providing planning and investment advice, the management of approximately 30 asset portfolios
and more than 65 individual business entities; and assisting the families in their various business ventures worldwide while working closely with law, accounting and banking
functions. During his tenure at Faneuil Hall Associates, Mr. Battinelli served as an executive officer or director for certain of the family owned entities and successfully
managed several portfolio company IPOs, as well as serving as CEO and COO for Designhouse International, a Scandinavian furniture company operating out of Atlanta,
Georgia, which was previously listed on NASDAQ in 1983.

From 1970 to 1974, Mr. Battinelli served as Audit Manager for Deloitte & Touche (formally Touche Ross), where he specialized in management information systems.
From 2002 to 2011, Mr. Battinelli also served as the Chairman of the Board of Directors of HealthLink Europe, BV, a logistics and services company that serves the healthcare
industry. Mr. Battinelli is a Certified Public Accountant and received a BS in accounting and an MBA with an emphasis in international economics and accounting, both from
Babson College.

Our board of directors believes that Mr. Battinelli is qualified to serve as a member of the board on the basis of his deep understanding of business acquisitions and
sales, as well as his background and extensive company management and integration experience.

Frank J. Garofalo was appointed to our Board of Directors on January 10, 2017. For more than three decades, Mr. Garofalo has been a management consultant and
corporate finance advisor working on “special assignments” for chief executive officers and boards of directors, primarily in technology driven markets, assisting companies
ranging from $10 million to over $10 billion in size. His career in professional services includes his serving as Vice President in the Investment Banking division of
PaineWebber (now UBS) and as Director and Senior Consultant in Arthur D. Little’s Technology consulting practice.

While at Arthur D. Little, Mr. Garofalo was the lead manager on a number of major studies for Fortune 500 client organizations in product/market forecasting,
technology trends assessments, market research, strategic business planning, evaluations of diversification and acquisition opportunities. He also assisted in the launch of
CAD/CAM, CAE and Advance Manufacturing practice within the Technology group at Arthur D. Little. While at PaineWebber Corporate Finance Group, his assignments
included dozens of business development, corporate development and corporate finance projects including private placements of equity financing, mergers, acquisition,
divestitures and establishing joint ventures / strategic alliances.

Mr. Garofalo is an expert in strategic, competitive, and market analysis with an emphasis on business and corporate development and the maximization of shareholder
value. He has served on a number boards. He was a Director of J.M. Lafferty Associates, Inc. in Chicago, a financial analytics and portfolio research firm, when he acted as
advisor in the sale of the business to Corporate Development Board. From 2000 until 2011, he was a Director of Dynagraf, Inc., one of the top Marketing Communications
companies in New England, where he acted as advisor in the sale of the business to Universal Millennium.

Mr. Garofalo earned a Bachelor of Science degree in Electrical Engineering from the Massachusetts Institute of Technology, a Master of Science degree in Computer
Systems Engineering from the University of Michigan, and a Master of Business Administration from Harvard University.

Our Board of Directors believes that Mr. Garofalo is qualified to serve as a member of the board because of his extensive experience in rendering a wide variety of
management and financial advisory services.
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Dennis Duitch was appointed to our Board of Directors on August 8, 2017. Mr. Duitch has served as Managing Director of Duitch Consulting Group, a private
consulting company, since 2003. Prior to that time, he practiced public accounting, business management, mediation and consultancy nationally, with expertise in strategic and
operations management, finance, accounting, strategic planning and business operations for a wide spectrum of companies, including technology, manufacturing and
distribution, marketing, real estate, entertainment, and professional practices. He has served in executive officer roles and as a director of public and private companies, not-for-
profit organizations, including as Vice-Chairman for Accountants Global Network, and as a top-level advisor for public companies, closely-held businesses, families and high-
wealth individuals for over thirty years.

Mr. Duitch began his career with the international CPA firm Grant Thornton in its Chicago, San Francisco and Beverly Hills offices before founding Duitch &
Franklin LLP, which evolved to become one of Southern California’s largest independent CPA/Business Management/Consultancy practices, and which was acquired by a
public company in 1998. He subsequently served as President for a consumer products company with direct response marketing, retail, and fulfillment operations, until forming
Duitch Consulting Group in 2003 to serve clients in advisory, C-level, and board of director roles.

Mr. Duitch is a Certified Family Business and Estate Advisor, and mediator for matters including partner/shareholder agreements and disputes, business and marital
property dissolution, and dysfunctional executive teams and boards of directors. He has lectured extensively in management, financial and accounting areas for the California
CPA Foundation, business and professional groups, has instructed at several colleges and universities, and has authored technical articles in management and taxation for
regional and national publications.

Mr. Duitch earned a B.B.A degree in Accounting from the University of lowa and a Master of Business Administration in Finance from Northwestern University.

Our Board of Directors believes that Mr. Duitch is qualified to serve as a member of the board because of his extensive public accounting experience, which will assist
the Board and the Audit Committee in addressing the numerous accounting-related issues, regulations and SEC reporting requirements to which we are subject, as well as his
expertise in business management, finance and strategic planning.

Kent Summers was appointed to our Board of Directors on January 18, 2018. Mr. Summers was also appointed to serve as a member of the Company’s Audit
Committee, Compensation Committee, and Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee.

Mr. Summers currently divides his time among a number of independent activities which focus on early-stage technology company formation and development
strategies, and sales planning and execution needs for emerging- and mid-market technology companies located primarily in the Boston metropolitan area, including:
management consultant to private and family-owned businesses; volunteer Mentor and Instructor with the Massachusetts Institute of Technology Venture Mentoring Services
program; regular lectures on enterprise, business-to-business sales to company founders and students enrolled at the Massachusetts Institute of Technology Sloan School of
Management, the Harvard MBA Program, the Wharton School at the University of Pennsylvania, and a number of domestic and international entrepreneurship support
organizations; and consultant to Fellows enrolled in the Harvard Advanced Leadership Initiative. Mr. Summers has served in those roles at various times from 2003 to the
present. From 2009 to the present, Mr. Summers has served as the non-executive Chairman of CADNexus, Inc., and from 2017 to the present, director and Chairman of the
Compensation Committee with iQ3 Connect, Inc.

From 2005 to 2017, Mr. Summers served as Managing Partner at Practical Computer Applications, Inc., a Boston-based database consulting and engineering services
firm, where he was responsible for sales planning and execution activities. Prior to Practical Computer Applications, from 2001 to 2005, Mr. Summers provided independent
merger & acquisition advisory services to support the sale of privately-owned companies. Over a prior 14-year period, Mr. Summers served in leadership roles at several
software and internet start-ups, including: Chairman and CEO of Collego Corporation (acquired by MRO Software), founder and CEO of MyHelpDesk, Inc. (acquired by
Support.com), founder of PCMovingVan.com (acquired by a PE firm), and Vice President of Marketing at Electronic Book Technologies, Inc. (acquired by INSO Corporation,
formerly listed on Nasdaq).

Prior to the software industry, Mr. Summers served as Technology Analyst at Electronic Joint Venture Partners LLC and Associate Program Trader on the Options
Trading Desk at Bear Stearns & Co. In 1986, Mr. Summers received a BA in English from the University of Houston.

Our Board of Directors believes that Mr. Summers is qualified to serve as a member of our Board on the basis of his deep understanding of early-stage business growth
strategies, enterprise sales, business acquisitions, as well as his background and extensive company management and leadership experience.
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Director Independence

Our Board of Directors currently consists of five members. As a result of his appointment as interim Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Rice is no longer considered an
independent director, and Mr. Garofalo is no longer considered an independent director because on August 8, 2017 we engaged Garofalo & Associates, LLC, a limited liability
company owned and controlled by Mr. Garofalo, to provide services to the Company as corporate development consultant and financial advisor. Our Board of Directors has
determined that our other directors, Salvatore Battinelli, Dennis Duitch and Kent Summers, constituting a majority of our directors, are “independent” as that term is defined
under Rule 5605(a)(2) of the NASDAQ marketplace rules. Pursuant to NASDAQ rules, our board must consist of a majority of independent directors.

The NASDAQ independence definition includes a series of objective tests, including that the director is not, and has not been for at least three years, one of our
employees and that neither the director nor any of his family members has engaged in various types of business dealings with us. In addition, as required by NASDAQ rules,
our Board of Directors has made a subjective determination as to Messrs. Battinelli, Duitch and Summers, our independent directors, that no relationships exists, which, in the
opinion of our Board of Directors, would interfere with the exercise of independent judgment in carrying out the responsibilities of a director. In making these determinations,
our Board of Directors reviewed and discussed information provided by the directors and us with regard to each director’s business and personal activities and relationships as
they may relate to us and our management. There are no family relationships among any of our directors or executive officers.

Classified Board of Directors

In accordance with our amended and restated bylaws, our Board of Directors is divided into three classes with staggered, three-year terms. At each annual meeting of
stockholders, the successors to directors whose terms then expire will be elected to serve from the time of election and qualification until the third annual meeting following
election. Our directors are classified as follows:

e the Class I director is John Rice, with a term expiring at our 2018 annual meeting of stockholders;
e the Class II directors are Frank J. Garofalo and Salvatore Battinelli, with terms expiring at our 2019 annual meeting of stockholders; and
e the Class III directors are Dennis Duitch and Kent Summers, with terms expiring at our 2020 annual meeting of stockholders.

Our Board of Directors appointed John Rice as Chairman of the Board on April 19, 2017. Our amended and restated bylaws provide that the authorized number of
directors may be changed by resolution of the Board of Directors. Any additional directorships resulting from an increase in the number of directors will be distributed among
the three classes so that, as nearly as possible, each class will consist of one-third of the directors. The division of our Board of Directors into three classes with staggered three-
year terms may delay or prevent a change of our management or a change in control of our company.

Leadership Structure of the Board

Our directors may be removed with or without cause at any meeting of stockholders by the affirmative vote of the holders of at least two-thirds of our outstanding
voting stock entitled to vote in the election of directors. Our amended and restated bylaws provide our Board of Directors with flexibility in its discretion to combine or separate
the positions of Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer, if we elect to appoint a Chairman of the Board.

On April 19, 2017, our Board of Directors appointed Mr. Rice as Chairman of the Board. The Chairman of the Board presides at all meetings of our Board of
Directors (but not at its executive sessions) and exercises and performs such other powers and duties as may be assigned to him from time to time by the Board or prescribed by
our amended and restated bylaws. The Chairman of the Board is appointed by our Board of Directors on an annual basis.

Our Board of Directors has no established policy on whether it should be led by a Chairman who is also the Chief Executive Officer, but periodically considers
whether combining, or separating, the role of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer is appropriate. At this time, our Board is committed to the combined role given the
circumstances of our company, including Mr. Rice’s knowledge of our company’s strategy. Our Board believes that having a Chairman who also serves as the Chief Executive
Officer allows timely communication with our board on company strategy and critical business issues, facilitates bringing key strategic and business issues and risks to the
Board’s attention, avoids ambiguity in leadership within the Company, provides a unified leadership voice externally and clarifies accountability for Company business
decisions and initiatives. However, our Board of Directors continually evaluates our leadership structure and could, in the future, decide to combine the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer positions if it believes that doing so would serve the best interests of our Company and our stockholders.
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Board Meetings and Committees
During our fiscal year ended December 31, 2017, the Board of Directors held six meetings, and each director attended at least 75% of the aggregate of (i) the total
number of meetings of our Board of Directors held during the period for which he has been a director and (ii) the total number of meetings held by all committees of our Board

of Directors on which he served during the periods that he served.

Although we do not have a formal policy regarding attendance by members of our Board of Directors at annual meetings of stockholders, we encourage, but do not
require, our directors to attend. Each of our then current directors attended our 2017 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, except for one director who was unable to attend.

Our board has established three standing committees-audit, compensation, and nominating and corporate governance-each of which operates under a written charter
that has been approved by our board. Until February 15, 2017, when our common stock became listed on The NASDAQ Capital Market, we were not required to establish or
maintain an audit, nominating or compensation committee. Each committee charter has been posted on the Investors section of our website at www.sigmalabsinc.com. The
reference to our website address does not constitute incorporation by reference of the information contained at or available through our website, and you should not consider it
to be a part of this Annual Report.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee’s responsibilities include:
e appointing, approving the compensation of, and assessing the independence of our registered public accounting firm;
e overseeing the work of our registered public accounting firm, including through the receipt and consideration of reports from such firm;
e reviewing and discussing with management and the registered public accounting firm our annual and quarterly financial statements and related disclosures;
e monitoring our internal control over financial reporting, disclosure controls and procedures;
e  cstablishing procedures for the receipt, retention and treatment of accounting related complaints and concerns;
e meeting independently with our registered public accounting firm and management;
e reviewing and approving or ratifying any related person transactions; and
e preparing the Audit Committee report required by SEC rules.

The members of our Audit Committee are Messrs. Duitch, Battinelli and Summers, and Mr. Duitch serves as the chairperson of the committee. Our Board of Directors
has determined that each of Messrs. Duitch, Battinelli and Summers is an independent director under NASDAQ rules and under SEC Rule 10A-3. All members of our Audit
Committee meet the requirements for financial literacy under the applicable rules and regulations of the SEC and NASDAQ. Our Board of Directors has determined that each
member of our Audit Committee is an “audit committee financial expert” as defined by applicable SEC rules and has the requisite financial sophistication as defined under the

applicable NASDAQ rules and regulations. The Audit Committee met four times during 2017.

Co tion Co

/4

The Compensation Committee’s responsibilities include:

annually reviewing and approving corporate goals and objectives applicable to CEO compensation;

determining our CEO’s compensation;

reviewing and approving, or making recommendations to our board with respect to, the compensation of our other executive officers;

overseeing an evaluation of our senior executives;

overseeing and administering our equity incentive plans;

reviewing and making recommendations to our board with respect to director compensation; and

reviewing and discussing annually with management our “Compensation Discussion and Analysis” when it is required by SEC rules to be included in our Proxy
Statements.
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The members of our Compensation Committee are Messrs. Duitch, Battinelli and Summers, and Mr. Battinelli serves as the chairperson of the committee. Our board
has determined that each of Messrs. Duitch, Battinelli and Summers is independent under the applicable NASDAQ rules and regulations and is a “non-employee director” as
defined in Rule 16b-3 promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”). The Compensation Committee was established effective
February 15, 2017 (i.e., when our common stock became listed on The NASDAQ Capital Market).

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee’s responsibilities include:
e identifying individuals qualified to become board members;
e recommending to our board the persons to be nominated for election as directors and to each of the board’s committees; and
e overseeing an annual evaluation of the board.

The members of our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee are Messrs. Duitch, Battinelli and Summers, and Mr. Duitch serves as the interim chairperson
of the committee. Our board has determined that each of Messrs. Duitch, Battinelli and Summers is independent under the applicable NASDAQ rules and regulations. The
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee was established effective February 15, 2017 (i.e., when our common stock became listed on The NASDAQ Capital Market).

Code of Ethics and Business Conduct

The Company has a code of ethics that applies to all employees, including the Company’s principal executive officer, principal financial officer, and principal
accounting officer, as well as to the members of the Board of Directors. The code is available at www.sigmalabsinc.com. The Company intends to disclose any changes in, or
waivers from, this code by posting such information on the same website or by filing a Form 8-K, in each case to the extent such disclosure is required by rules of the SEC or
NASDAQ. The reference to our website address does not constitute incorporation by reference of the information contained at or available through our website, and you should
not consider it to be a part of this Annual Report.

Considerations in Evaluating Director Nominees

Our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee uses a variety of methods for identifying and evaluating director nominees. In its evaluation of director
candidates, our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee will consider the current size and composition of our Board of Directors and the needs of our Board of
Directors and the respective committees of our Board of Directors. Some of the qualifications that our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee considers include,
without limitation, issues of character, integrity, judgment, diversity of experience, independence, area of expertise, corporate experience, length of service, potential conflicts
of interest and other commitments. Nominees must also have the ability to offer advice and guidance to our Chief Executive Officer based on past experience in positions with a
high degree of responsibility and be leaders in the companies or institutions with which they are affiliated. Director candidates must have sufficient time available in the
judgment of our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee to perform all board of director and committee responsibilities. Members of our Board of Directors are
expected to prepare for, attend, and participate in all board of director and applicable committee meetings. Other than the foregoing, there are no stated minimum criteria for
director nominees, although our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee may also consider such other factors as it may deem, from time to time, are in our and our
stockholders’ best interests.

Although our Board of Directors does not maintain a specific policy with respect to board diversity, our Board of Directors believes that our Board of Directors should
be a diverse body, and our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee considers a broad range of backgrounds and experiences. In making determinations regarding
nominations of directors, our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee may take into account the benefits of diverse viewpoints. Our Nominating and Corporate
Governance Committee also will consider these and other factors as it oversees the annual board of director and committee evaluations. After completing its review and
evaluation of director candidates, our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee recommends to our full Board of Directors the director nominees for selection.
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Stockholder Recommendations for Nominations to the Board of Directors

Our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee will consider candidates for director recommended by stockholders so long as such recommending stockholder
was a stockholder of record both at the time of giving notice and at the time of the annual meeting, and such recommendations comply with our amended and restated articles of
incorporation and amended and restated bylaws and applicable laws, rules and regulations, including those promulgated by the SEC. The Nominating and Corporate
Governance Committee will evaluate such recommendations in accordance with its charter, our amended and restated bylaws, our policies and procedures for director
candidates, as well as the regular director nominee criteria described above. This process is designed to ensure that our Board of Directors includes members with diverse
backgrounds, skills and experience, including appropriate financial and other expertise relevant to our business. Eligible stockholders wishing to recommend a candidate for
nomination should contact the Secretary in writing. Our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee has discretion to decide which individuals to recommend for
nomination as directors.

Role of Board in Risk Oversight Process

Risk assessment and oversight are an integral part of our governance and management processes. Our Board of Directors encourages management to promote a culture
that incorporates risk management into our corporate strategy and day-to-day business operations. Management discusses strategic and operational risks at regular management
meetings and conducts specific strategic planning and review sessions during the year that include a focused discussion and analysis of the risks we face. Throughout the year,
senior management reviews these risks with the Board of Directors at regular board meetings as part of management presentations that focus on particular business functions,
operations or strategies, and presents the steps taken by management to mitigate or eliminate such risks. Our Board of Directors does not have a standing risk management
committee, but rather administers this oversight function directly through the Board of Directors as a whole, as well as through standing committees of the Board of Directors
that will address risks inherent in their respective areas of oversight. In particular, our Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing our major financial risk exposures and the
steps our management has taken to monitor and control these exposures. The Audit Committee also monitors compliance with legal and regulatory requirements and considers
and approves or disapproves any related-person transactions. Our Nominating and Governance Committee monitors the effectiveness of our corporate governance guidelines
that we may adopt or amend from time to time. Our Compensation Committee assesses and monitors whether any of our compensation policies and programs has the potential
to encourage excessive risk-taking by our management.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires the Company’s executive officers and directors, and persons who own more than 10% of a registered
class of the Company’s equity securities, to file reports of ownership and changes in ownership with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). Executive officers,
directors and greater than 10% stockholders are required by SEC regulations to furnish the Company with copies of all Section 16(a) forms they file.

The Company believes that during its most recent fiscal year ended December 31, 2017, its executive officers, directors and greater than 10% stockholders complied
with the filing requirements under Section 16(a), except that (i) each of Mark Cola, Ronald Fisher and Frank Garofalo filed a Form 3 in connection with his appointment as an
officer and director, an officer, and as a director, respectively, one day after Section 16(a) applied to the Company on February 14, 2017, and (ii) Nannette Toups filed a Form 4
one day late relating to her acquisition of a stock option as compensation in her capacity as an officer.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
Processes and Procedures for Compensation Decisions

Our Compensation Committee is responsible for the executive compensation programs for our executive officers and reports to our board of directors on its
discussions, decisions and other actions. Typically, our Chief Executive Officer makes recommendations to our Compensation Committee and is involved in the determination
of compensation for the respective executive officers that report to him. Our Chief Executive Officer does not determine his own compensation. Our Chief Executive Officer
makes recommendations to our Compensation Committee regarding short- and long-term compensation for all executive officers based on our results, an individual executive
officer’s contribution toward these results and performance toward individual goal achievement. Our Compensation Committee then reviews the recommendations and other
data and makes decisions (or makes recommendations to the Board) as to total compensation for each executive officer as well as each individual compensation component.

The following table sets forth compensation for services rendered in all capacities to the Company: (i) for each person who served as the Company’s Chief Executive
Officer at any time during the past fiscal year, (ii) for each executive officer, other than our Chief Executive Officer, who was employed with the Company on December 31,
2017 and who earned over $100,000 during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2017, and (iii) for any officer who earned over $100,000 during the December 31, 2017 fiscal
year but was no longer employed with the Company on December 31, 2017 (the foregoing executives are herein collectively referred to as the “named executive officers”).
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Summary Compensation Table

Stock Option All Other
Salary Bonus Awards Awards Compensation Total

Name and Principal Position Year ($)(1) ($) ($) ($) ($) ($)

John Rice - Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive

Officer) and Director 2017 40,500 — 17,0014 — 10,925(3) 68,426

(Chairman of the Board)(z) 2016 — — — — — —

Mark J. Cola - President 2017 204,863 17,644(5) — 445,352(6) — 667,859

Chief Technology Officer 2016 180,000 — — — — 180,000

Ronald Fisher - Vice President 2017 180,000 — — — — 180,000

of Business Development 2016 180,000 — — 25,497(7) — 205,497

Amanda Cola - Former Vice

President of Finance and 2017 77,604 — — 63,686(8) 29,229(9) 170,519

Business Operations(®) 2016 90,000 10,000(10) — 85,824(11) — 185,824

Murray Williams — Former Chief

Financial Officer and 2017 143,450 — — — — 143,450

Treasurer 2016 57,900 — 91,760(12) 148,012(13) — 297,672

(1) Actual amounts paid or accrued.

(2) John Rice was appointed as our interim Chief Executive Officer on July 24, 2017. Prior to such appointment, Mark Cola served as our Chief Executive Officer.

3
Of the amount shown, a total of $10,925 was paid to Mr. Rice prior to his appointment as interim Chief Executive Officer in connection with the additional services as a
director that Mr. Rice provided the Company with respect to the Company’s operations.

(4) On February 15, 2017, in connection with his appointment to our Board of Directors, we granted Mr. Rice 5,231 shares of common stock of the Company, under the 2013
Equity Incentive Plan, with such shares to vest in four equal, successive quarterly installments.

(5) Under Mr. Cola’s employment agreement (“Mr. Cola’s Employment Agreement”), effective as of July 24, 2017, during each 12-month period during the term of Mr. Cola’s
employment, Mr. Cola is entitled to a nondiscretionary annual founder’s bonus in the total amount of $40,000, payable and earned in 24 equal bi-monthly installments.

(6) On February 21, 2017, an option to purchase up to 123,750 shares of the Company’s common stock at an exercise price per share equal to $3.48 (the “Original Option”),
was granted to Mr. Cola under his then employment agreement. The option had an aggregate grant date fair value of $445,352, calculated in accordance with FASB ASC
Topic 718. The amount recognized for this award was calculated using the Black Scholes option-pricing model. Under Mr. Cola’s Employment Agreement, the Original
Option was amended such that (a) any unvested portion of the Original Option will immediately and automatically vest if Mr. Cola’s employment is terminated as a result
of a Termination Event (as defined in Mr. Cola’s Employment Agreement), and (b) upon the occurrence of a Corporate Transaction (as defined in the 2013 Equity Incentive
Plan of the Company), the Original Option, if outstanding as of the date of such applicable Corporate Transaction, will remain outstanding and exercisable in accordance
with its terms, except as provided in Mr. Cola’s Employment Agreement.

(7) In 2016, an option to purchase up to 5,000 shares of common stock of the Company, subject to vesting restrictions, at an exercise price equal to $5.28 per share was granted

to Mr. Fisher under his employment with the Company. The option had an aggregate grant date fair value of 25,497, calculated in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718.
The amount recognized for this award was calculated using the Black Scholes option-pricing model.
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(8) An option to purchase up to 20,000 shares of common stock of the Company, subject to vesting restrictions, at an exercise price of $3.27 per share was granted to Ms. Cola
on April 19, 2017. The option had an aggregate grant date fair value of $63,686, calculated in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718. The amount recognized for this
award was calculated using the Black Scholes option-pricing model.

©)]

Ms. Cola separated from our Company on October 2, 2017. The amount shown was paid to Ms. Cola as severance in connection with her separation from the Company.

(10) On July 14, 2016, Ms. Cola was awarded a bonus in the amount of $10,000 in recognition of Ms. Cola’s services during 2016 and the various milestones that she helped the
Company achieve, including in relation to a company-wide DCAA government audit, along with implementing state-funded programs which in turn provides cash payments
to the Company.

(11) An option to purchase up to 15,000 shares of common stock of the Company, subject to vesting restrictions, at an exercise price of $5.92 per share was granted to Ms. Cola
on July 22, 2016. The option had an aggregate grant date fair value of $85,824, calculated in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718. The amount recognized for this award
was calculated using the Black Scholes option-pricing model.

(12) Under Mr. Williams employment agreement, he was granted effective as of July 22, 2016, under our 2013 Plan, 15,500 shares of restricted common stock of the Company,
which shares vested on the one-year anniversary of the effective date of Mr. Williams’ employment (the “First Anniversary Date”), provided, however, that vesting as to 50%
of the shares accelerated effective as of the closing of our underwritten public offering (i.e., February 21, 2017).

(13) Effective July 22, 2016, an option to purchase up to 31,500 shares of common stock of the Company, subject to vesting restrictions, at an exercise price equal to $5.92 per
share, was granted to Mr. Williams under his employment agreement with the Company, with 10,500 shares vesting and becoming exercisable on the First Anniversary Date,
and the balance of the shares underlying the option are to vest and become exercisable in eight equal installments of 2,625 shares each on a quarterly basis following the First
Anniversary Date. The option had an aggregate grant date fair value of $148,012, calculated in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718. The amount recognized for this
award was calculated using the Black Scholes option-pricing model.

Executive Officer Employment Agreements
John Rice

On August 8, 2017, we entered into an “at will” unwritten employment arrangement with Mr. Rice, effective as of August 1, 2017, pursuant to which Mr. Rice serves
as our interim Chief Executive Officer and interim principal executive officer. Under his employment arrangement, Mr. Rice is entitled to receive a monthly salary of $9,000,
and he is eligible to receive medical and dental benefits, life insurance, and long term and short term disability coverage. Further, Mr. Rice is eligible under his employment
arrangement to participate in the Company’s 2013 Equity Incentive Plan, with equity compensation to Mr. Rice to be determined by our Compensation Committee at a later
date. Effective as of Mr. Rice’s appointment as interim Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Rice is no longer entitled to receive compensation for his service as a director of the
Company during his service as our interim Chief Executive Officer.

Mark J. Cola

Prior to February 21, 2017, Mr. Cola, our President and Chief Technology Officer, was party to an “at will” unwritten employment arrangement with the Company.
Under Mr. Cola’s employment arrangement, Mr. Cola’s salary was $15,000 per month, and he was eligible to receive medical and dental benefits, life insurance, and long term
and short term disability coverage. Further, Mr. Cola was eligible under his employment arrangement to participate in the Company’s 2011 Equity Incentive Plan and 2013
Equity Incentive Plan.

Effective as of February 21, 2017, the Company and Mr. Cola entered into an employment agreement (the “Original Agreement”), pursuant to which, among other
things reported in our previous filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission, Mr. Cola agreed to serve as the Company’s President, Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Operating Officer, and was entitled to receive an annual base salary of $220,000.

Effective as of July 24, 2017 (the “Effective Date”), the Company and Mr. Cola entered into a new employment agreement (the “Employment Agreement”) for a two-
year term (unless earlier terminated as provided in the Employment Agreement), pursuant to which Mr. Cola has agreed to serve as the Company’s Chief Technology Officer

and continue to serve as the Company’s President (with the title of Co-Founder, President and Chief Technology Officer).
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Effective as of immediately prior to the Effective Date, the Original Agreement was terminated by the parties, and Mr. Cola resigned as Chief Executive Officer, Chief
Operating Officer and as a director of the Company. The parties agreed that the Company has no obligation to Mr. Cola to grant stock options to him pursuant to the Original
Agreement, and that (i) the Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement, dated as of February 21, 2017, between the Company and Mr. Cola evidencing the grant to Mr. Cola under
the Original Agreement of a stock option to purchase up to 123,750 shares of the Company’s common stock at an exercise price per share equal to $3.48 (the “Original Option™)
was amended under the Employment Agreement such that (a) any unvested portion of the Original Option will immediately and automatically vest if Mr. Cola’s employment is
terminated as a result of a Termination Event (as defined below), (b) the definition of “Termination For Cause” under the Original Option was replaced with the definition of
“Cause” under the Employment Agreement, and (c¢) upon the occurrence of a Corporate Transaction (as defined in the 2013 Equity Incentive Plan of the Company), the Original
Option, if outstanding as of the date of such applicable Corporate Transaction, will remain outstanding and exercisable in accordance with its terms, except as provided in the
Employment Agreement, and (ii) the Original Option will otherwise remain outstanding and exercisable in accordance with its terms.

Under the Employment Agreement, Mr. Cola is (i) entitled to receive (a) an annual base salary of $180,000 (the “Base Salary”), which will be subject to increase in the
discretion of our Board of Directors or Compensation Committee based on its annual assessment of Mr. Cola’s performance and other factors, and (b) during each 12-month
period during the term of Mr. Cola’s employment, a nondiscretionary annual founder’s bonus (the “Annual Bonus”) in the total amount of $40,000, payable and earned in 24
equal bi-monthly installments, and (ii) eligible to receive one or more additional bonuses (“Discretionary Bonuses™) in recognition of extraordinary accomplishments, provided
that the decision to provide any Discretionary Bonuses and the amount and terms of any Discretionary Bonuses will be in the sole and absolute discretion of the Board of
Directors.

Pursuant to the Employment Agreement, on February 21, 2018, the Company granted Mr. Cola under the Company’s 2013 equity incentive plan (i) a ten-year non-
qualified stock option to purchase 61,750 shares of the Company’s common stock (“Option A”), and (ii) a ten-year non-qualified stock option to purchase 61,750 shares of the
Company’s common stock (“Option B”, and together with Option A, the “Options”), with the Options each (a) to have an exercise price equal to the closing price of the
Company’s common stock on the date of grant (i.e., February 21, 2018), (b) to vest and become exercisable in seventeen equal (as closely as possible) monthly installments on
the 15th day of each month commencing on March 15, 2018, subject in each case to Mr. Cola’s continuing employment, and (c) to be on such other terms set forth in the
Company’s standard form of non-qualified stock option agreement (except that the definition of “Termination For Cause” under such agreement was replaced with the definition
of “Cause” under the Employment Agreement). Additionally, (x) upon the occurrence of a Corporate Transaction, all stock options of the Company held by Mr. Cola as of the
date of such applicable Corporate Transaction will remain outstanding and exercisable in accordance with their terms (except as provided in the Employment Agreement and as
set forth in (y) below), and (y) upon the occurrence of a Change of Control (as defined in the Employment Agreement), his unvested stock options will fully vest.

Under the Employment Agreement, Mr. Cola will be entitled to participate in any employee benefit and welfare plans and programs of the Company in which any C-
level senior officer of the Company or its subsidiaries are eligible to participate. The Employment Agreement provides that in the event (i) the Company’s terminates Mr. Cola’s
employment without “Cause” (as defined), (ii) Mr. Cola resigns from the Company for “Good Reason” (as defined), (iii) Mr. Cola resigns from the Company after the nine-
month anniversary of the effective date of the Employment Agreement (the “Nine Month Period”) for any reason or no reason, or (iv) Mr. Cola dies or becomes disabled during
the Nine Month Period in the performance of his duties for the Company (each of (i)-(iv), a “Termination Event”), subject to entering into a general release of all claims, (x) he
will be entitled to continue to receive the Base Salary, Annual Bonus and benefits which he was receiving as of the time of termination for the greater of the remaining term of
employment or a period of twelve months, with such compensation to be payable in equal installments in accordance with the Company’s normal payroll practices, but no less
frequently than bi-monthly, and (y) any unvested portion of Option A and the Original Option will fully vest.

Ronald Fisher

We have entered into an “at will” employment agreement, effective as of August 10, 2015, with Mr. Fisher under which he was engaged to serve as our Vice President
of Business Development. Mr. Fisher is entitled to receive an annual base salary of $180,000. Pursuant to the employment agreement, Mr. Fisher also was granted, as a signing
bonus, a stock option to purchase up to 23,750 shares of common stock of the Company, at an exercise price equal to $11.80 per share, which was the closing market price of
the Company’s common stock on August 10, 2015 (i.e., the date of grant), under the 2013 Equity Incentive Plan. Such option vested and became exercisable as to 1,375 shares
on the first anniversary of the grant date, and as to 3,375 shares on the second anniversary of the grant date, and will vest and become exercisable as to (i) 6,375 shares on the
third anniversary of the grant date, and (iii) 12,625 shares on the fourth anniversary of the grant date, provided, in each case, that Mr. Fisher remains an employee of the
Company through such vesting date. The option has a ten-year term and is on such other terms set forth in the Company’s standard form of non-qualified stock option
agreement. Additionally, the Company granted Mr. Fisher under the 2013 Equity Incentive Plan, effective as of August 11, 2016, a stock option to purchase up to 5,000 shares
of common stock of the Company. Such option has an exercise price equal to the closing price of our common stock on the date of grant, and vests and becomes exercisable as
to (i) 300 shares on August 11, 2017, (ii) 700 shares on August 11, 2018, (iii) 1,350 shares on August 11, 2019, and (iv) 2,650 shares on August 11, 2020, provided Mr. Fisher
is in the employ of the Company on August 11, 2017, 2018, 2019 and 2020. Further, Mr. Fisher is eligible to participate in the Company’s 2011 Equity Incentive Plan and 2013
Equity Incentive Plan, and is eligible to receive medical and dental benefits, life insurance, short and long-term disability coverage, and to participate in the Company’s Section
125 cafeteria plan, vision plan and 401K plan.
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On September 18, 2017, we and Mr. Fisher entered into Amendment No. 1 to Mr. Fisher’s employment agreement, effective August 10, 2015, pursuant to which,
effective as of February 11, 2017, item 2, entitled “Performance Bonuses,” of Exhibit A of Mr. Fisher’s employment agreement was deleted in its entirety and replaced with the
new item 2 that was set forth in the amendment to employment agreement. Such amendment provided that Mr. Fisher would become entitled to receive performance-based
stock and cash bonuses if certain milestones were satisfied by February 11, 2018, so long as Mr. Fisher remained an employee of the Company as of the date the applicable
milestone was satisfied. No such bonuses were earned as of December 31, 2017. On February 21, 2018, the Company and Mr. Fisher entered into Amendment No. 2 to Mr.
Fisher’s employment agreement, pursuant to which the foregoing February 11, 2018 date was extended to December 31, 2018.

Former Executive Officer’s Employment Agreements
Murray Williams

We entered into an employment letter agreement with Murray Williams, effective July 18, 2016, pursuant to which Mr. Williams served as our Chief Financial Officer,
Treasurer, principal accounting officer and principal financial officer on an “at-will” basis. Under the employment letter agreement, Mr. Williams was entitled to (i) be paid at
the rate of $200 per hour, (ii) a grant, effective as of July 22, 2016, under our 2013 Plan of 15,500 shares of restricted common stock of the Company, which shares vested on
the one-year anniversary of the effective date of Mr. Williams” employment (the “First Anniversary Date”), provided, however, that vesting as to 50% of the shares accelerated
effective as of the closing of our underwritten public offering (i.e., February 21, 2017), and (iii) a grant, effective as of July 22, 2016, under our 2013 Plan of a non-qualified
stock option to purchase up to 31,500 shares of our common stock. The option has an exercise price equal to the closing price of our common stock on the date of grant, will
vest and become exercisable as follows: 10,500 shares vested and became exercisable on the First Anniversary Date, and the balance of the shares underlying the option will
vest and become exercisable in eight equal installments of 2,625 shares each on a quarterly basis following the First Anniversary Date, and is on the other terms set forth in our
standard form of nonqualified stock option agreement. Mr. Williams agreed to resign from his positions with the Company effective September 28, 2017. Mr. Williams and the
Company entered into a consulting agreement under which Mr. Williams will continue to provide services to the Company on an as needed basis.

Amanda Cola

Effective as of July 21, 2014, we entered into an “at will” employment agreement with Ms. Cola, under which Ms. Cola was engaged to serve as our Business
Operations Manager, which agreement was amended effective July 21, 2015 to convert Ms. Cola’s position to a full-time position. Under the employment agreement, Ms. Cola
was entitled to receive an annual base salary of $90,000, and the Company issued her as of the effective date of her employment agreement 10,000 shares of common stock
under the Company’s 2013 Equity Incentive Plan. Of these shares, 2,500 vested on the date of grant, 2,500 shares vested on the first annual anniversary of Ms. Cola’s
employment agreement, 2,500 shares vested on the second annual anniversary of Ms. Cola’s employment agreement, and the balance of the shares vested on the third annual
anniversary of the employment agreement. On September 11, 2015, Ms. Cola’s title was changed to Vice President of Finance and Business Operations of the Company.
Effective as of July 22, 2016, the Company granted Ms. Cola, under the Company’s 2013 Equity Incentive Plan, a non-qualified stock option to purchase up to 15,000 shares of
our common stock. The option has an exercise price equal to the closing price of our common stock on the date of grant, and will vest and become exercisable in four annual
installments over four years. Effective as of April 19, 2017, Mrs. Cola’s salary was increased to $115,000 per annum and she was granted a non-qualified stock option to
purchase up to 20,000 shares of our common stock at an exercise price equal to $3.27 per share, which was the closing market price of our common stock on April 19, 2017
(i.e., the date of grant), which is subject to vesting. Effective October 2, 2017, we entered into a transition and separation agreement (the “Separation Agreement”) with Ms.
Cola, pursuant to which we and Ms. Cola agreed that she would voluntarily resign as our Vice President of Finance and Business Operations based on an internal organizational
change. Under the Separation Agreement, we agreed to pay Ms. Cola any and all accrued and unpaid salary, together with all accrued and unpaid vacation pay and other paid
time off, and her then current base monthly salary for a period of six months following the effective date of the Separation Agreement. Under the Separation Agreement, Ms.
Cola’s July 22, 2016 stock option to purchase up to 15,000 shares of the Company’s common stock and her April 19, 2017 stock option to purchase up to 20,000 shares of the
Company’s common stock were amended to provide that the shares underlying such options, once exercisable, will remain exercisable as to such shares for the term of the
options, unless the options are terminated pursuant to a Corporate Transaction (as defined in our 2013 Equity Incentive Plan).

Outstanding Equity Awards at 2017 Fiscal Year-End
The following table sets forth outstanding equity awards issued under our 2013 Equity Incentive Plan as of December 31, 2017 that are held by our named executive officers.
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Option Awards Stock Awards

Equity Equity
incentive incentive
plan plan
awards: awards:
Market Number Market
Number of Number of Number value of of value of
securities securities of shares shares of  unearned unearned
underlying underlying of stock stock shares shares
unexercised unexercised Option Option that have  that have  that have that have
options (#) options (#) exercise expiration not not not vested  not vested
Name exercisable unexercisable price ($) date vested (#)  vested ($) (#) (&)
John Rice(1) — — — — — — 1,307 2,810
Mark J. Cola(2) 61,875 61,875 3.48 2/20/27
Ronald Fisher(3) 4,750 19,000 11.80 8/10/25
300 4,700 10.56 8/22/26
Amanda Cola(4) 750 14,250 5.92 8/11/26
— 20,000 2.83 4/19/27
Murray Williams(5) 13,125 18,375 5.92 7/22/21

(1) On February 15, 2017, in connection with his appointment to our Board of Directors, the Company granted Mr. Rice 5,231 shares of common stock, under the Company’s
2013 Equity Incentive Plan, with such shares to vest in four equal, successive quarterly installments.

(2) Effective as of February 21, 2017, the Company granted Mr. Cola under his employment agreement a stock option to purchase up to 123,750 shares of our common stock
under the Company’s 2013 Equity Incentive Plan, vesting in equal quarterly installments over an 18-month period.

(3) In August 2015, in conjunction with the hiring of Ronald Fisher, the Company’s Vice President of Business Development, the Company granted to Mr. Fisher a stock option
(the “Option™) to purchase up to 23,750 shares of common stock of the Company, at an exercise price equal to $11.80 per share, which was the closing market price of the
Company’s common stock on August 10, 2015 (i.e., the date of grant), under the 2013 Plan. The Option vested and became exercisable as to 1,375 shares on the first
anniversary of the grant date and as to 3,375 shares on the second anniversary of the grant date, and will vest and become exercisable as to (i) 6,375 shares on the third
anniversary of the grant date, and (ii) 12,625 shares on the fourth anniversary of the grant date, provided, in each case, that Mr. Fisher remains an employee of the Company
through such vesting date. The Option has a ten-year term and is on such other terms set forth in the Company’s standard form of non-qualified stock option agreement. The
Company granted Mr. Fisher under the 2013 Equity Incentive Plan, effective as of August 11, 2016, a stock option to purchase up to 5,000 shares of common stock of the
Company. Such option has an exercise price equal to the closing price of our common stock on the date of grant, and vested and became exercisable as to 300 shares on August
11,2017, and vests and becomes exercisable as to (i) 700 shares on August 11, 2018, (ii) 1,350 shares on August 11, 2019, and (iii) 2,650 shares on August 11, 2020, provided
Mr. Fisher is in the employ of the Company on August 11, 2017, 2018, 2019 and 2020.

(4) On July 21, 2014 the Company issued to Ms. Cola, as of the effective date of her employment agreement, 10,000 shares of common stock under the Company’s 2013 Equity
Incentive Plan. Of these shares, 2,500 vested on the date of grant, and 2,500 shares vested on each of the three successive anniversary dates of the employment agreement.
Effective as of July 22, 2016, the Company granted Ms. Cola, under the Company’s 2013 Equity Incentive Plan, a non-qualified stock option to purchase up to 15,000 shares of
our common stock. The option has an exercise price equal to the closing price of our common stock on the date of grant, and will vest and become exercisable in four annual
installments over four years On April 19, 2017 Ms. Cola was granted a non-qualified stock option to purchase up to 20,000 shares of our common stock at an exercise price
equal to $3.27 per share, which was the closing market price of our common stock on April 19, 2017 (i.e., the date of grant), which is subject to vesting. Effective October 2,
2017, we entered into a transition and separation agreement (the “Separation Agreement”) with Ms. Cola. Under the Separation Agreement, Ms. Cola’s July 22, 2016 stock
option to purchase up to 15,000 shares of the Company’s common stock and her April 19, 2017 stock option to purchase up to 20,000 shares of the Company’s common stock
were amended to provide that the shares underlying such options, once exercisable, will remain exercisable as to such shares for the term of the options, unless the options are
terminated pursuant to a Corporate Transaction (as defined in our 2013 Equity Incentive Plan).

(5) Effective as of July 22, 2016, Mr. Williams received, under our 2013 Plan, a grant of 15,500 shares of restricted common stock of the Company, which shares vested on the
one-year anniversary of the effective date of Mr. Williams’ employment (the “First Anniversary Date”), provided, however, that vesting as to 50% of the shares accelerated
effective as of the closing of our underwritten public offering (i.e., February 21, 2017), and a grant of a non-qualified five year stock option to purchase up to 31,500 shares of
our common stock. The option has an exercise price equal to the closing price of our common stock on the date of grant, will vest and become exercisable as follows: 10,500
shares vested and became exercisable on the First Anniversary Date, and the balance of the shares underlying the option will vest and become exercisable in eight equal
installments of 2,625 shares each on a quarterly basis following the First Anniversary Date, and is on the other terms set forth in our standard form of nonqualified stock option
agreement. Mr. Williams agreed to resign from his positions with the Company effective September 28, 2017. Mr. Williams and the Company entered into a consulting
agreement under which Mr. Williams will continue to provide services to the Company on an as needed basis.
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Equity Awards

We offer stock options and stock awards to certain of our employees, including our executive officers, as the long-term incentive component of our compensation
program. We generally grant equity awards to new hires upon their commencing employment with us. Our stock options allow employees to purchase shares of our common
stock at a price per share equal to the fair market value of our common stock on the date of grant and may or may not be intended to qualify as “incentive stock options” for
U.S. federal income tax purposes. We sometimes also offer stock options and stock awards to our consultants in lieu of cash. Our stock options allow consultants to purchase
shares of our common stock at a price per share equal to the fair market value of our common stock on the date of grant and are not intended to qualify as “incentive stock
options” for U.S. federal income tax purposes. Stock options and stock awards granted to our executive officers may be subject to accelerated vesting in certain circumstances.

Retirement Plans

We maintain a qualified 401(k) plan, in which all eligible employees may participate. We have elected to match 100% of each participant’s contribution up to 3% of
salary, and 50% of the next 2% of salary contributed. We may also elect, on an annual basis, to make a discretionary contribution to the plan, but have not done so to date. Our
matches and elective contributions vest to participant accounts as follows: 20% after two years of service, and 20% per year thereafter until the participant reaches 6 years of
service, at which time, employer contributions vest 100%. As a tax-qualified retirement plan, contributions to the 401(k) plan and earnings on those contributions are not
taxable to the employees until distributed from the 401(k) plan.

No Tax Gross-Ups

We do not make gross-up payments to cover our executive officers’ personal income taxes that may pertain to any of the compensation paid or provided by our
company.

2011 Equity Incentive Plan

On March 9, 2011, our Board of Directors approved the Company’s 2011 Equity Incentive Plan, which was approved on March 31, 2011 by holders of at least a
majority of the issued and outstanding shares of common stock of the Company. As of December 31, 2016, an aggregate of 750 shares of our common stock were subject to the
2011 Equity Incentive Plan. The terms and conditions of the 2011 Equity Incentive Plan are substantially similar to the terms and conditions of our 2013 Equity Incentive Plan
(the “2013 Plan”).

2013 Equity Incentive Plan
Purpose

Our Board of Directors adopted the 2013 Plan to (1) encourage selected employees, officers, directors, consultants and advisers to improve our operations and increase
our profitability, (2) encourage selected employees, officers, directors, consultants and advisers to accept or continue employment or association with us, and (3) increase the
interest of selected employees, officers, directors, consultants and advisers in our welfare through participation in the growth in value of our common stock. All of our 12
current employees, directors and consultants are eligible to participate in the 2013 Plan.

Administration

The 2013 Plan is to be administered by the Board or by a committee to which administration of the Plan, or of part of thereof, is delegated by the Board. The 2013 Plan
is currently administered by our Compensation Committee, which we refer to below as the “Administrator.” The Administrator is responsible for selecting the officers,
employees, directors, consultants and advisers who will receive Options, Stock Appreciation Rights and Stock Awards. Subject to the requirements imposed by the 2013 Plan,
the Administrator is also responsible for determining the terms and conditions of each Option and Stock Appreciation Right award, including the number of shares subject to the
Option, the exercise price, expiration date and vesting period of the Option and whether the option is an Incentive Option or a Non-Qualified Option. Subject to the requirements
imposed by the 2013 Plan, the Administrator is also responsible for determining the terms and conditions of each Stock Award, including the number of shares granted, the
purchase price (if any), and the vesting, transfer and other restrictions imposed on the stock. The Administrator has the power, authority and discretion to make all other
determinations deemed necessary or advisable for the administration of the 2013 Plan or of any award under the 2013 Plan.

Neither the Board nor any committee of the Board to which administration of the 2013 Plan is delegated will provide advice to participants about whether or not to
accept or exercise their awards. Each participant must make his or her own decision about whether or not to accept or exercise an award.
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The 2013 Plan is not subject to the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 and is not a qualified pension, profit sharing or bonus plan under Section 401(a)
of the Internal Revenue Code

Stock Subject to the 2013 Plan

Subject to the provisions of the 2013 Plan relating to adjustments upon changes in common stock, an aggregate of 750,000 shares of common stock are currently
subject to outstanding awards under the 2013 Plan or future awards under the 2013 Plan.

If awards granted under the 2013 Plan expire or otherwise terminate or are cancelled without being exercised in full, the shares of common stock not acquired pursuant
to such awards will again become available for issuance under the 2013 Plan. If shares of common stock issued pursuant to awards under the 2013 Plan are forfeited to or
repurchased by us, the forfeited or repurchased stock will again become available for issuance under the 2013 Plan.

If shares of common stock subject to an award are not delivered to a participant because such shares are withheld for payment of taxes incurred in connection with the
exercise of an Option, or the issuance of shares under a Stock Award, or the award is exercised through a reduction of shares subject to the award (“net exercised”), then the
number of shares that are not delivered will not again be available for issuance under the 2013 Plan. In addition, if the exercise price of any award is satisfied by the tender of
shares of common stock to us (Whether by actual delivery or attestation), the shares tendered will not again be available for issuance under the 2013 Plan.

Eligibility

All directors, employees, consultants and advisors of the Company and its subsidiaries are eligible to receive awards under the 2013 Plan. Incentive Options may only
be granted under the 2013 Plan to a person who is a full-time officer or employee of the Company or a subsidiary. The Administrator will determine from time to time which
directors, employees, consultants and advisers will be granted awards under the 2013 Plan.

Terms of Awards
Written Agreement
Each award under the 2013 Plan will be evidenced by an agreement in a form approved by the Administrator.

Exercise Price; Base Value

The exercise price for a Non-Qualified Option or an Incentive Option may not be less than 100% of the fair market value of the Common Stock on the date of the grant
of the Non-Qualified Option or Incentive Option. With respect to an Option holder who owns stock possessing more than 10% of the total voting power of all classes of our
stock, the exercise price for an Incentive Option may not be less than 110% of the fair market value of the Common Stock on the date of the grant of the Incentive Option. The
base value of a Stock Appreciation Right shall also be no less than 100% of the Common Stock on the date of the grant of the Stock Appreciation Right. The 2013 Plan does not
specify a minimum exercise price for Stock Awards.

Vesting

Each Option, Stock Appreciation Right or Stock Award will become exercisable or non-forfeitable (that is, “vest”) under conditions specified by the Administrator at
the time of grant. Vesting typically is based upon continued service as a director or employee, but may be based upon any performance criteria and other contingencies that are
determined by the Administrator. Shares subject to Stock Awards may be subject to specified restrictions concerning transferability, repurchase by the Company and forfeiture
of the shares issued, together with such other restrictions as may be determined by the Administrator.
Expiration Date

Each Option or Stock Appreciation Right must be exercised by a date specified in the award agreement, which may not be more than ten years after the grant date.
Except as otherwise provided in the relevant agreement, an Option or Stock Appreciation Right ceases to be exercisable ninety days after the termination of the holder’s
employment with us.
Transfers of Options

Unless otherwise determined by the Administrator, Options are not transferable except by will or the laws of descent and distribution.
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Purchase Price Payment

Unless otherwise determined by the Administrator, the purchase price of Common Stock acquired under the 2013 Plan is payable by cash or check at the time of an
Option exercise or acquisition of a Stock Award. The Company does not charge participants any fees or commissions in connection with their acquisition of Common Stock
under the 2013 Plan. The Administrator also has discretion to accept the following types of payment from participants:

® A secured or unsecured promissory note, provided that this method of payment is not available to a participant who is a director or an executive officer;

e  Shares of our Common Stock already owned by the Option or Stock Award holder as long as the surrendered shares have a fair market value that is equal to the acquired
stock and have been owned by the participant for at least six months;

e  The surrender of shares of Common Stock then issuable upon exercise of an Option; and
e A “cashless” option exercise in accordance with applicable regulations of the SEC and the Federal Reserve Board.
Withholding Taxes

At the time of his or her exercise of an Option or Stock Appreciation Right, an employee is responsible for paying all applicable federal and state withholding taxes. A
holder of Stock Awards is responsible for paying all applicable federal and state withholding taxes once the shares covered by the award cease to be forfeitable or at any other
time required by applicable law.

Securities Law Compliance

Shares of Common Stock will not be issued pursuant to the exercise of an Option or the receipt of a Stock Award unless the Administrator determines that the exercise
of the Option or receipt of the Stock Award and the issuance and delivery of such shares will comply with all relevant provisions of law, including, without limitation, the
Securities Act of 1933 (the “Securities Act”), applicable state and foreign securities laws and the requirements of any stock exchange on which our Common Stock is traded.

Effects of Certain Corporate Transactions

Except as otherwise determined by the Administrator, in the event of a “corporate transaction,” all previously unexercised Options and Stock Appreciation Rights will
terminate immediately prior to the consummation of the corporate transaction and all unvested Restricted Stock awards will be forfeited immediately prior to the consummation
of the corporate transaction. The Administrator, in its discretion, may permit exercise of any Options or Stock Appreciation Rights prior to their termination, even if those
awards would not otherwise have been exercisable, or provide that outstanding awards will be assumed or an equivalent Option or Stock Appreciation Right substituted by a
successor corporation. The Administrator, in its discretion, may remove any restrictions as to any Restricted Stock awards or provide that all outstanding Restricted Stock
awards will participate in the corporate transaction with an equivalent stock substituted by the successor corporation subject to the restrictions. In general, a “corporate
transaction” means:

. Our liquidation or dissolution;

. Our merger or consolidation with or into another corporation as a result of which we are not the surviving corporation;

. A sale of all or substantially all of our assets; or

° A purchase or other acquisition of more than 50% of our outstanding stock by one person, or by more than one person acting in concert.

Other Adjustment Provisions

If the stock of the Company is changed by reason of a stock split, reverse stock split, stock dividend, recapitalization, combination or reclassification, appropriate
adjustments shall be made by the Administrator, in its discretion, in (1) the number and class of shares of stock subject to the 2013 Plan and each Option and grant of Stock
Awards outstanding under the 2013 Plan, and (2) the purchase price of each outstanding Option and (if applicable) Stock Award. For example, if an Option is for 1,000 shares
for $2.00 per share and there is a 2-for-1 stock split, the Option would be adjusted to be exercisable for 2,000 shares at $1.00 per share.
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Amendment or Termination of the Plan

The Board of Directors may at any time amend, discontinue or terminate the 2013 Plan. With specified exceptions, no amendment, suspension or termination of the
Plan may adversely affect outstanding Options or Stock Appreciation Rights or the terms that are applicable to outstanding Stock Awards. No amendment, suspension or
termination of the Plan requires stockholder approval unless such approval is required under applicable law or under the rules of any stock exchange on which our Common
Stock is traded. Unless terminated earlier by the Board of Directors, the 2013 Plan will terminate automatically on March 15, 2023, which is the tenth anniversary of the date of
the 2013 Plan’s adoption by the Board.

As of April 12, 2018, there were 370,126 shares previously issued or subject to outstanding awards under the 2013 Plan and 379,874 shares were available for future
issuance under the 2013 Plan.

Director Compensation

We believe that a combination of cash and equity compensation is appropriate to attract and retain the individuals we desire to serve on our Board of Directors. Our
cash compensation policies are designed to encourage frequent and active interaction between directors and our executives both during and between formal meetings as well as
compensate our directors for their time and effort. Further, we believe it is important to align the long-term interests of our non-employee directors (i.e. directors who are not
employed by us as officers or employees) with those of the Company and its stockholders, and that awarding equity compensation to, and thereby increasing ownership of our
common stock by, our non-employee directors is an appropriate means to achieve this alignment. Directors who are also employees of our company do not receive
compensation for their service on our Board of Directors.

Under our director compensation program, each non-employee director will receive annual compensation of $25,000, which amount will be paid $15,000 in cash, and
$10,000 through the grant of restricted common stock. In addition, the Chairperson of the Audit Committee will receive a $5,000 annual retainer in cash. All cash fees are to be
paid quarterly. In addition, prior to Mr. Rice’s appointment as interim Chief Executive Officer, he received an aggregate of $10,925 in connection with the additional services as
a director that Mr. Rice provided the Company with respect to the Company’s operations. Also, each non-employee director may be reimbursed for his reasonable expenses
incurred in the performance of his duties as a director as our Board of Directors determines from time to time. Our Compensation Committee intends to evaluate our director
compensation program and determine whether any changes should be recommended to the Board.

The following table sets forth certain information concerning the compensation paid to non-employee directors in 2017 for their services as directors of the Company.
The compensation of Mr. Rice, who serves as a director and serves as our interim Chief Executive Officer, is described in the Summary Compensation Table of Executive
Officers. Our non-employee directors do not receive fringe or other benefits.

Fees Earned or Stock Awards
Name Paid in Cash (§) ($)(6) Option Awards ($) Total ($)
Salvatore Battinelli(!) 6,250 17,000 — 23,250
Samuel Bell® 5,000 4,300 — 9,300
Dennis Duitch® 8,333 17,000 — 25,333
Frank Garofalo™® 15,000 17,202 — 4202

Kent Summers®) — — — —

(1) The fees shown were paid to Mr. Battinelli for services as a director. In August 2017, the Company issued 8,213 shares of the Company’s common stock to Mr. Battinelli,
pursuant to the Company’s 2013 Equity Incentive Plan, in connection with his appointment to our Board of Directors, with such shares to vest in four equal, successive
quarterly installments. Such shares were valued at $17,000 or $2.07 per share.

(2) The fees shown were paid to Mr. Bell for services as a director, including $1,250 as a retainer for serving as the Chairman of the Audit Committee. In January 2017, the
Company issued 10,000 shares of the Company’s common stock to Mr. Bell, pursuant to the Company’s 2013 Equity Incentive Plan, in connection with his appointment to
our Board of Directors, with such shares to vest in four equal, successive quarterly installments. Such shares were valued at $17,202 or $1.72 per share. Mr. Bell resigned
from the Board of Directors in June 2017 resulting in the forfeiture of 7,500 unvested shares of common stock.

(3) The fees shown were paid to Mr. Duitch for services as a director, including $2,083 as a retainer for serving as the Chairman of the Audit Committee. In August 2017, the
Company issued 7,489 shares of the Company’s common stock to Mr. Duitch, pursuant to the Company’s 2013 Equity Incentive Plan, in connection with his appointment to
our Board of Directors, with such shares to vest in four equal, successive quarterly installments. Such shares were valued at $17,000 or $2.27 per share.

(4) The fees shown were paid to Mr. Garofalo for services as a director. In January 2017, the Company issued 10,000 shares of the Company’s common stock to Mr. Garofalo,
pursuant to the Company’s 2013 Equity Incentive Plan, in connection with his appointment to our Board of Directors, with such shares to vest in four equal, successive
quarterly installments. Such shares were valued at $17,202 or $1.72 per share.

(5) Mr. Summers was not a director of the Company in 2017.

(6) This column represents the aggregate grant date fair value of stock awards computed in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718. These amounts do not correspond to the
actual value that will be recognized by the named directors from these awards.
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ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The following table sets forth certain information regarding beneficial ownership of our common stock as of April 12, 2018 (a) by each person known by us to own
beneficially 5% or more of any class of our common stock, (b) by our named executive officers and each of our directors (and director nominees) and (c) by all executive
officers and directors of the Company as a group.

The number of shares beneficially owned by each stockholder is determined in accordance with SEC rules. Under these rules, beneficial ownership includes any shares
as to which a person has sole or shared voting power or investment power. Percentage ownership is based on 5,025,118 shares of our common stock outstanding on April 12,
2018. In computing the number of shares beneficially owned by a person and the percentage ownership of that person, shares of common stock subject to stock options,
warrants or other rights held by such person that are currently convertible or exercisable or will become convertible or exercisable within 60 days of April 12, 2018 are

considered outstanding, although these shares are not considered outstanding for purposes of computing the percentage ownership of any other person.

Unless otherwise stated, the address of each 5% or greater beneficial holder is ¢/o Sigma Labs, Inc., 3900 Paseo del Sol, Santa Fe, New Mexico 87507. We believe,

based on information provided to us, that each of the stockholders listed below has sole voting and investment power with respect to the shares beneficially owned by the
stockholder unless noted otherwise, subject to community property laws where applicable.

Number of
Shares Percentage

Beneficially of Shares Beneficially
Name and Address of Beneficial Owner Owned Owned
Named Executive Officers and Directors
Mark J. Cola®") 293,750 5.85%
Ronald Fisher® 6,600 *
John Rice® 5,232 &
Salvatore Battinelli(*) 14,027 *
Dennis Duitch®) 13,303 o
Frank J. Garofalo® 15,814 *
Kent J. Summers(?) 5,814 *
Amanda Cola(D 293,750 5.85%
Murray Williams®) 33,875 *
All executive officers and directors as a group (10 persons)(g) 684,665 13.62%

*Less than 1%.

(1) The shares shown are owned of record by The Mark & Amanda Cola Revocable Trust, U/A August 31, 2012. The shares shown also include (i) 124,920 shares that may be
acquired now or within 60 days of April 12, 2018 upon the exercise of an outstanding stock option held by Mr. Cola, and (ii) 8,750 shares that may be acquired upon the
exercise of an outstanding stock options held by Ms. Cola.

(2) Includes 1,250 shares that may be acquired now upon the exercise of outstanding stock options.

(3) The shares vest in four equal installments of 1,308 shares each, beginning on May 15, 2017.

(4) Includes (i) 8,213 shares that vest in four equal (as closely as possible) installments, beginning on November 15, 2017, and (ii) 5,814 shares that vest in four equal (as closely
as possible) installments, beginning on April 18, 2018.

(5) Includes (i) 7,489 shares that vest in four equal (as closely as possible) installments, beginning on November 8, 2017, and (ii) 5,814 shares that vest in four equal (as closely
as possible) installments, beginning on April 18, 2018.

(6) Includes (i) 10,000 shares vest in four equal installments of 2,500 shares each, beginning on April 10, 2017, and (ii) 5,814 shares that vest in four equal (as closely as
possible) installments, beginning on April 18, 2018.

(7) The shares vest in four equal (as closely as possible) installments, beginning on April 18, 2018.

(8) The shares shown include 18,375 shares that may be acquired now or within 60 days of April 12, 2018 upon the exercise of an outstanding stock option held by Mr.
Williams.

(9) Includes 159,895 shares that may be acquired now or within 60 days of April 12, 2018 upon the exercise of outstanding stock options.
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Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table provides certain information with respect to our equity compensation plans as of December 31, 2017.

@ (b) ©
Number of Securities
Remaining Available for
Future Issuance Under

Number of Securities to Weighted-average Equity Compensation

be Issued Upon Exercise Exercise Price of Plans (Excluding

of Outstanding Options, Outstanding Options, Securities Reflected in
Plan Category Warrants and Rights Warrants and Rights Column (a))
2011 Equity Incentive Plan(1) 0 0 750
2013 Equity Incentive Plan(2) 1,783,938 $ 4.13 450,602
Equity compensation plans not approved by security holders - N/A -

(1) On March 9, 2011, the Company’s board of directors approved the Company’s 2011 Equity Incentive Plan, which was approved on March 31, 2011 by holders of at least a
majority of the issued and outstanding shares of common stock of the Company. As of December 31, 2016, the Company issued an aggregate of 154,250 shares of the
Company’s common stock pursuant to the Company’s 2011 Equity Incentive Plan.

(2) On March 15, 2013, the Company’s board of directors approved the Company’s 2013 Equity Incentive Plan. The 2013 Equity Incentive Plan was approved by holders of at
least a majority of the issued and outstanding shares of common stock of the Company on October 10, 2013. Pursuant to the 2013 Equity Incentive Plan, the Company is
authorized to grant “incentive stock options” and “non-qualified stock options”, grant or sell common stock subject to restrictions or without restrictions, and grant stock
appreciation rights to employees, officers, directors, consultants and advisers of the Company and its subsidiaries. Incentive stock options granted under the 2013 Equity
Incentive Plan are intended to qualify as “incentive stock options” within the meaning of Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code (the “Code”). Non-qualified stock options
granted under the 2013 Equity Incentive Plan are not intended to qualify as incentive stock options under the Code. As of December 31, 2017, the Company issued an
aggregate of 114,847 shares of the Company’s common stock, as well as options to purchase up to 299,938 shares of the Company’s common stock, some of which are subject
to vesting restrictions, pursuant to the Company’s 2013 Equity Incentive Plan. On October 2, 2017, an amendment to our 2013 Equity Incentive Plan was approved by holders
of at least a majority of the issued and outstanding shares of common stock of the Company, to increase the number of shares of our common stock subject to the 2013 Equity
Incentive Plan to 750,000.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The following summarizes transactions by us in which any of our directors, director nominees, executive officers or, to our knowledge, beneficial owners of more than
5% of our capital stock or any member of the immediate family of any of the foregoing persons had or will have a direct or indirect material interest, other than equity and other
compensation, termination, change in control and other arrangements, which are described under “Executive Compensation” and “Director Compensation” above.

Transactions with Directors and Officers

On August 8, 2017, we engaged Garofalo & Associates, LLC, a limited liability company owned and controlled by Mr. Garofalo, a director of the Company, to
provide services to the Company as corporate development consultant and financial advisor. Under the engagement letter agreement, Garofalo & Associates, LLC, is entitled to
receive in consideration for its services a monthly retainer of $3,000 in cash during the term of the engagement (the engagement may be terminated by both parties upon 30
days’ written notice), and (i) 105,000 shares of common stock of the Company upon the closing of an acquisition by the Company of all or substantially all of the equity or
assets (or a controlling interest therein) (the “Closing™) with respect to a specified entity (the value of such shares would have been $238,350 if such shares would have been
issued on August 8, 2017, based on a closing price per share of $2.27 on such date), and (ii) 75,000 shares of common stock of the Company upon the Closing with respect to at
least one of two other specified entities (the value of such shares would have been $170,250 if such shares would have been issued on August 8, 2017, based on a closing price
per share of $2.27 on such date). As of the date of this Annual Report, there are no agreements with respect to the acquisition by the Company of any third party, and there can
be no assurance that any agreements will be entered into or, if entered into, that any acquisition or other transaction will be consummated.
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On September 14, 2017, we) entered into an employment letter agreement with Nannette Toups, effective September 28, 2017 (the “Effective Date”), pursuant to
which Ms. Toups agreed to serve as our Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer, principal accounting officer, principal financial officer and Secretary on an “at-will” basis. Under
the employment letter agreement, Ms. Toups is entitled to (i) an annual base salary of $110,000 (such base salary is not subject to decrease, but may be increased in the
discretion of the Company’s Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors based on an annual assessment of Ms. Toups’ performance and other factors), (ii) all benefits
that we elect in our sole discretion to provide from time to time to our other executive officers, and (iii) a grant under our 2013 Equity Incentive Plan of (1) a five-year stock
option to purchase up to 2,500 shares of common stock of the Company, which has an exercise price equal to the closing price of the Company’s common stock on the Effective
Date, and vested and became exercisable in full on the Effective Date, and (2) a five-year stock option to purchase up to 47,500 shares of common stock of the Company, which
will have an exercise price equal to the closing price of the Company’s common stock on the Effective Date, and which will vest and become exercisable as follows: 3,065
shares will vest and become exercisable on the one-year anniversary of the Effective Date, 7,125 shares will vest and become exercisable on the second-year anniversary of the
Effective Date, 11,185 shares will vest and become exercisable on the third-year anniversary of the Effective Date, and 26,125 shares will vest and become exercisable on the
fourth-year anniversary of the Effective Date, provided, in each case, that Ms. Toups’ remains an employee of the Company through such vesting date. The options are on such
other terms and provisions as are contained in the Company’s standard form nonqualified stock option agreement.

Indemnification Agreements

We have entered into indemnification agreements with each of our directors and executive officers. These agreements, among other things, require us to indemnify
each director and executive officer to the fullest extent permitted by Nevada law, including indemnification of expenses such as attorneys’ fees, judgments, fines and settlement
amounts incurred by the director or executive officer in any action or proceeding, including any action or proceeding by or in the right of us, arising out of the person’s services
as a director or executive officer.

Policies and Procedures for Related Person Transactions

Our Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing and approving, as appropriate, all transactions with related persons (other than compensation-related matters, which
should be reviewed by our Compensation Committee), in accordance with its Charter and the Nasdaq marketplace rules. In reviewing and approving any such transactions, our
Audit Committee is tasked to consider all relevant facts and circumstances, including, but not limited to, whether the transaction is on terms comparable to those that could be
obtained in an arm’s length transaction and the extent of the related person’s interest in the transaction.

ITEM 14.  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

Our Audit Committee approved Pritchett, Siler & Hardy, P.C. (“PSH”) to continue as our independent registered public accounting firm to audit our financial
statements for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2017. During our fiscal year ended December 31, 2017, PSH served as our independent registered public accounting firm.
There have been no disagreements on any matter of accounting principles or practices, financial statement disclosures or auditing scope or procedures, which disagreements if
not resolved to their satisfaction would have caused PSH to refer to in their respective opinions. On January 11, 2018, we were informed by PSH that Haynie & Company
(“H&C”) acquired certain assets of PSH. Effective January 11, 2018, we engaged H&C to serve as our independent registered public accounting firm for the year ending
December 31, 2018. The engagement of H&C was approved by our Audit Committee.

Fees Paid to the Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The following table sets forth fees billed by PSH and H&C with respect to the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016:

PSH H&C

2017 2016 2017
Audit Fees $ 52,173  §$ 48,304 $ 39,000
Audit Related Fees — — —
Tax Fees — — —
All Other Fees — — —
$ 52,173  $ 48,304 § 39,000

In the above table, in accordance with the SEC’s definitions and rules, “audit fees” are fees that Sigma Labs, Inc. paid for professional services for the audit of our
financial statements included in our Form 10-K and for services that are normally provided by the registered public accounting firm in connection with statutory and regulatory
filings or engagements; “audit-related fees” are fees for assurance and related services that are reasonably related to the performance of the audit or review of our financial
statements; and “tax fees” are fees for tax compliance, tax advice and tax planning.
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Our Board of Directors established an Audit Committee written charter in February 2017. The Audit Committee’s pre-approval policies and procedures and other
protocols are discussed in its written charter which can be found at www.sigmalabsinc.com under the tab “Investors.”

Auditor Independence

In our fiscal year ended December 31, 2017, there were no other professional services provided by PSH or H&C, other than those listed above, that would have
required our Audit Committee to consider their compatibility with maintaining the independence of PSH or H&C.

PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES.

Our financial statements and related notes thereto are listed and included in this Annual Report beginning on page F-1. The following documents are furnished as
exhibits to this Form 10-K. Exhibits marked with an asterisk are filed herewith. The remainder of the exhibits previously have been filed with the SEC and are incorporated
herein by reference.

Exhibit

Number Description

1.1 Underwriting Agreement, dated as of February 15, 2017, between the Company and Dawson James Securities, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 1.1 to the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed February 21, 2017, and incorporated herein by reference).

3.1 Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Company, as amended.**

32 Certificate of Correction to Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation, as filed with the Nevada Secretary of State on May 25, 2011 (filed as Exhibit 3.2 to
the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed June 1, 2011, and incorporated herein by reference).

33 Articles of Merger (filed as Exhibit 3.3 to the Company’s Form 10-K. filed on March 16, 2016, for the fiscal year ended December 31. 2015, and incorporated
herein by reference).

34 Certificate of Change Pursuant to NRS 78.209 (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 21, 2016, and incorporated herein
by reference).

3.5 Certificate of Change Pursuant to NRS 78.209 (filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed February 21, 2017, and incorporated
herein by reference).

3.6 Certificate of Designation of Rights., Preference and Privileges of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed February 21, 2017, and incorporated herein by reference).

3.7 Certificate of Designation of Rights, Preference and Privileges of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed April 6. 2018, and incorporated herein by reference).

3.8 Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Company. as amended (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Form 10-Q filed November 14, 2017, for the period ended
September 30, 2017, and incorporated herein by reference).

4.1 Warrant Agency Agreement. dated as of February 15, 2017, between the Company and Interwest Transfer Co., Inc. (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed February 21, 2017, and incorporated herein by reference).

42 Form of Warrant Certificate (filed as Exhibit 4.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed February 21, 2017, and incorporated herein by reference).

4.3 Form of Common Stock Purchase Warrant (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed April 6, 2018, and incorporated herein by
reference).

4.4 Form of Placement Agent Warrants (filed as Exhibit 4.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed April 6, 2018, and incorporated herein by reference).

10.1 Asset Purchase Agreement dated April 17. 2010 between B6 Sigma,. Inc. and Technology Management Company. Inc. (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K/A filed November 12, 2010, and incorporated herein by reference).

10.2 2011 Equity Incentive Plan adopted by the Board of Directors as of March 9, 2011 (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form 10-Q. filed on May 16. 2011, for
the period ended March 31, 2011, and incorporated herein by reference).*

10.3 2013 Equity Incentive Plan adopted by the Board of Directors as of March 15, 2013 (filed as Exhibit 10.9 to the Company’s Form 10-K, filed on April 16. 2013,
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012, and incorporated herein by reference).*
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http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/788611/000114420411033319/v224667_ex3-2.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/788611/000114420416088535/v433391_ex3-3.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/788611/000114420416089066/v434815_ex3-1.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/788611/000107878217000236/f8k021617_ex3z2.htm
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http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/788611/000149315218004882/ex4-1.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/788611/000149315218004882/ex4-2.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/788611/000114420410059545/v201923_ex10-2.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/788611/000114420411029844/v222641_ex10-1.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/788611/000114420413022123/v337273_ex10-9.htm

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24

10.25

10.26

Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement for the 2013 Equity Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 4.2 to the Company’s Form S-8 Registration Statement, filed
on July 24. 2014, and incorporated herein by reference).*

Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement for the 2013 Equity Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 4.3 to the Company’s Form S-8 Registration Statement, filed on
July 24. 2014, and incorporated herein by reference).*

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for the 2013 Equity Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 4.4 to the Company’s Form S-8 Registration Statement. filed on July 24,
2014, and incorporated herein by reference).*

Employment Agreement. dated as of July 21, 2014, between Sigma Labs, Inc. and Amanda Cola, as amended as of July 21, 2015 (Filed as Exhibit 10.11 to the
Company’s Form 10-K, filed on March 16, 2016, for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015, and incorporated herein by reference).*

Employment Offer Letter Agreement. effective August 10. 2015, between Sigma Labs. Inc. and Ronald Fisher (Filed as Exhibit 10.12 to the Company’s Form 10-

K. filed on March 16, 2016. for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015, and incorporated herein by reference). *
Amendment to Sigma Labs, Inc.’s 2013 Equity Incentive Plan. (Filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Form 10-Q, filed on May 12, 2016. for the period ended

March 31. 2016, and incorporated herein by reference).*

Amendment to Sigma Labs, Inc.’s 2013 Equity Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 10.10 to the Company’s Form 10-K filed on March 31. 2017, for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2016 and incorporated herein by reference).*

Amendment to Sigma Labs. Inc.’s 2013 Equity Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 4.3 to the Company’s Form S-8 Registration Statement, filed on December 29,
2017, and incorporated herein by reference).*

Amendment to Sigma Labs. Inc.’s 2013 Equity Incentive Plan (filed as Exhibit 4.4 to the Company’s Form S-8 Registration Statement, filed on December 29,
2017, and incorporated herein by reference).*

Form of Indemnification Agreement for directors and officers of Sigma Labs, Inc. (filed as Exhibit 10.12 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1,
filed on July 28. 2016. and incorporated herein by reference).*

Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as of October 17, 2016, by and among Sigma Labs. Inc. and the investors named therein (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed October 20, 2016, and incorporated herein by reference).

Employment Letter Agreement, effective July 18, 2016. between Sigma Labs. Inc. and Murray Williams. (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Form 10-Q, filed
on August 11, 2016, for the period ended June 30, 2016. and incorporated herein by reference).*

Form of Secured Convertible Note issued as of October 17, 2016 (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed October 20, 2016. and
incorporated herein by reference).

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of October 17, 2016, by and among Sigma Labs. Inc. and the investors named therein (filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed October 20, 2016, and incorporated herein by reference).

Security Agreement, dated as of October 17, 2016, by and between Sigma Labs. Inc. and L 1 Capital Global Opportunities Master Fund Ltd. in its capacity as
Collateral Agent (filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed October 20, 2016. and incorporated herein by reference).

Form of Warrant issued to investors in connection with Securities Purchase Agreement dated October 17, 2016 (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed October 20, 2016. and incorporated herein by reference).

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated as of July 24, 2017, between Sigma Labs. Inc. and Mark J. Cola. (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed July 27, 2017 and incorporated herein by reference).*

Summary of unwritten Employment Agreement between Sigma Labs, Inc. and John Rice entered into on August 8, 2017 (filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s
Form 10-Q, filed on November 14, 2017, for the period ended September 30. 2017, and incorporated herein by reference).*

Employment Letter Agreement, effective as of September 28. 2017, between Sigma Labs, Inc. and Nannette Toups (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 20, 2017 and incorporated herein by reference).*

Amendment No. 1. dated September 18, 2017, to Employment Offer Letter Agreement. effective August 10. 2015, between Sigma Labs, Inc. and Ronald Fisher
(filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 20. 2017 and incorporated herein by reference).*

Amendment No. 2. dated February 21, 2018, to Employment Offer Letter Agreement between the Company and Ronald Fisher (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 27, 2018 and incorporated herein by reference). *

Form of Amendment of Warrant and Note, entered into as of September 29. 2017, between the Company and the Holders named therein (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to
the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 5. 2017 and incorporated herein by reference).

Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as of April 6, 2018, between Sigma Labs. Inc. and the Purchasers thereunder (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 6, 2018 and incorporated herein by reference).
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http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/788611/000107878216003666/f8k102016_ex10z3.htm
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http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/788611/000107878217001295/f8k091917_ex10z1.htm
http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/788611/000107878217001295/f8k091917_ex10z2.htm
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http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/788611/000149315218004882/ex10-1.htm

23.1 Consent of Pritchett, Siler & Hardy, P.C.**

232 Consent of Haynie & Company.**

31.1 Certificate of principal executive officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.**

31.2 Certificate of principal financial officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350. as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.**

32.1 Certificate of principal executive officer and principal financial officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-

Oxley Act of 2002.**
101.INS++ XBRL Instance Document.

101.SCH++  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document.

101.CAL++ XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document.
101.DEF++  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document.
101.LAB++ XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document.
101.PRE++  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document.

* Indicates a management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.

** Filed herewith.

++ Pursuant to applicable securities laws and regulations, the Registrant is deemed to have complied with the reporting obligation relating to the submission of interactive data
files in such exhibits and is not subject to liability under any anti-fraud provisions of the federal securities laws as long as the Registrant has made a good faith attempt to comply
with the submission requirements and promptly amends the interactive data files after becoming aware that the interactive data files fails to comply with the submission
requirements. These interactive data files are deemed not filed or part of a registration statement or prospectus for purposes of Sections 11 or 12 of the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended, are deemed not filed for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and otherwise are not subject to liability under these sections.

ITEM 16. FORM 10-K SUMMARY.
None
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

SIGMA LABS, INC.

April 17,2018 By: /s/ John Rice

John Rice
Interim Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

April 17,2018 By: /s/ Nannette Toups

Nannette Toups
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant in the
capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date

Interim Chief Executive Officer
/s/ John Rice (Principal Executive Officer) and Director April 17,2018
John Rice

Chief Financial Officer
/s/ Nannette Toups (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer) April 17,2018
Nannette Toups

/s/ Salvatore Battinelli Director April 17,2018
Salvatore Battinelli

/s/ Dennis Duitch Director April 17,2018
Dennis Duitch

/s/ Frank Garofalo Director April 17,2018
Frank Garofalo
/s/ Kent Summers Director April 17,2018

Kent Summers
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Certified Public AccountantS (a professional corporation)
50 West Broadway, Su 0 Sal e City, UT 84101 (801) 532-7800 Fax (801) 328-4461

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and
Stockholders of Sigma Labs, Inc.

Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of Sigma Labs, Inc. (the Company) as of December 31, 2017, and the related statements of operations, stockholders’ equity,
and cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2017, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the financial statements). In our opinion, the financial statements present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2017, and the results of its operation and its cash flows for the period ended December
31, 2017, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s financial statements based on our
audit. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB) and are required to be independent with
respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the
PCAOB.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an
audit of its internal control over financial reporting. As part of our audit, we are required to obtain an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.

Our audit included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that
respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audit also included

evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Haynie & Company

Salt Lake City, Utah
April 17,2018

We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2018

&¥ PrimeGlobal
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PRITCHETT, SILER & HARDY, P.C.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION
1438 NORTH HIGHWAY 89, SUITE 130
FARMINGTON, UTAH 84025

(801) 447-9572 FAX (801) 447-9578
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors
Sigma Labs, Inc.
Santa Fe, New Mexico

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of Sigma Labs, Inc. as of December 31, 2016 and the related statements of operations, stockholders’ equity and cash flows for
the year then ended. Sigma Labs, Inc.’s management is responsible for these financial statements. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to
perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audit included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Sigma Labs, Inc. as of December 31, 2016 and the
results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

/s/ Pritchett, Siler & Hardy, P.C.

Pritchett, Siler & Hardy, P.C.
Salt Lake City, Utah
March 31, 2017
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ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash
Accounts Receivable, net
Note Receivable, net
Inventory
Prepaid Assets

Total Current Assets

Other Assets:
Property and Equipment, net
Intangible Assets, net
Investment in Joint Venture
Prepaid Stock Compensation
Total Other Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

Sigma Labs, Inc.
Balance Sheets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable

Notes Payable, net of original issue discount of $0 and $69,703, respectively and debt discount of

$358,280 at December 31, 2016
Deferred Revenue
Accrued Expenses

Total Current Liabilities

Long-Term Liabilities
Derivative Liability
Total Long-Term Liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

Commitments & Contingencies

Stockholders’ Equity
Preferred Stock, $0.001 par; 10,000,000 shares authorized;
None issued and outstanding
Common Stock, $0.001 par; 15,000,000 shares authorized;
4,978,929 and 3,133,789 issued and outstanding, respectively
Additional Paid-In Capital
Accumulated Deficit

Total Stockholders’ Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
1,515,674 $ 398,391
104,538 288,236
788,500 -
192,705 187,241
55,278 36,056
2,656,695 909,924
411,643 564,933
294,396 226,450
500 500
31,576 167,562
738,115 959,445
3,394,810 $ 1,869,369
100,884 $ 112,175
100,000 561,834
35,680 3,315
146,330 121,801
382,894 799,125
- 93,206
- 93,206
382,894 892,331
4,979 3,135
17,345,407 10,734,857
(14,338,470) (9,760,954)
3,011,916 977,038
3,394,810 $ 1,869,369




Sigma Labs, Inc.
Statements of Operations

Years Ended

December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
REVENUES $ 641,049 $ 966,422
COST OF REVENUE 272,372 228,902
GROSS PROFIT 368,677 737,520
EXPENSES:
Salaries & Benefits 1,509,672 1,230,267
Stock-Based Compensation 719,796 341,558
Operating R&D Costs 302,043 120,638
Investor & Public Relations 666,003 621,407
Legal & Professional Service Fees 563,300 313,432
Office Expenses 324,920 272,895
Depreciation & Amortization 196,943 178,841
Other Operating Expenses 137,990 132,220
Total Expenses 4,420,667 3,211,258
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE)
Interest Income 40,107 355
State Incentives 154,568 51,703
Change in fair value of derivative liabilities (186,908) 354,644
Interest Expense (161,852) (40,228)
Debt discount amortization (358,280) (89,570)
Loss on Disposal of Assets (13,161) -
Total Other Income (Expense) (525,526) 276,904
LOSS BEFORE PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES (4,577,516) (2,196,834)
Provision for Income Taxes - -
Net Loss $ 4,577,516) $ (2,196,834)
Net Loss per Common Share - Basic and Diluted $ 1.04) $ (0.70)
Weighted Average Number of Shares Outstanding - Basic and Diluted 4,403,479 3,125,022




Sigma Labs, Inc.
Statement of Stockholders’ Equity
For The Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

Additional
Common Stock Common Stock Paid in Accumulated
Shares Amount Capital Deficit Totals

Balance December 31, 2015 3,119,537  § 3,120 § 10,640,098 § 3,030,298
Shares forfeited (10,000) (10) (257,990) (258,000)
Shares issued for services 23,687 24 152,245 152,269
Fractional shares issued at reverse stock split 565 1 - 1
Stock based compensation - - 200,504 200,504
Derivative value on issuance date - warrants and notes
payable conversion feature - - (447,850) (447,850)
Debt discount on notes payable - - 447,850 447,850
Net loss o = = (2,196,834)
Balance December 31, 2016 3,133,789 § 3,135 $ 10,734,857 $ 977,038
Shares issued for services — net of forfeitures 32,684 32 75,546 75,578
Fractional Shares issued at reverse stock split 1,178 1 - 1
Shares and warrants sold in public offering, net of offering
costs 1,410,000 1,410 5,224,239 5,225,649
Shares issued from exchange of unit purchase options 141,000 141 (141) -
Shares issued for note & accrued interest conversion 204,278 204 408,352 408,556
Shares issued from exercise of warrants 56,000 56 111,944 112,000

- - 280,114 280,114
Write-off of derivative liability - note conversions
Stock based compensation - - 510,496 510,496
Net loss - = = (4,577,516)
Balance December 31, 2017 4,978,929 $ 4979 § 17,345,407 § (14,338,470)  § 3,011,916
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OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Loss

Sigma Labs, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Statements of Cash Flows

Adjustments to reconcile Net Loss to Net Cash used in operating activities:

Noncash Expenses:
Depreciation and Amortization
Stock Based Compensation
Loss on Write-off of Asset
Refund on Write-off of Asset
Gain/Loss on Change in Derivative Balance
Original Issue Discount Amortization
Debt Discount Amortization

Change in assets and liabilities:
Accounts Receivable
Inventory
Prepaid Assets
Accounts Payable
Deferred Revenue
Accrued Expenses

NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property and Equipment
Purchase of Intangible Assets
Notes Receivable
Investment in Joint Venture

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Gross Proceeds from issuance of Common Stock and Warrants

Less Offering Costs
Proceeds from issuance of Notes Payable
Payments on Notes Payable
Proceeds from exercise of Warrants
NET CASH PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET CHANGE IN CASH FOR PERIOD

CASH AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD

CASH AT END OF PERIOD

Supplemental Disclosures:
Noncash investing and financing activities disclosure:
Write-off of Derivative Liability

Conversion of Convertible Debt for Stock

Other noncash operating activities disclosure:
Issuance of Common Stock for services

Disclosure of cash paid for:
Interest

Income Taxes
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Years Ended

December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
(4,577,516) $ (2,196,834)
196,943 178,841
719,796 (345,759)
13,161 -
15,700 -
186,908 354,644
88,442 20,114
358,280 89,570
183,698 (8,014)
(5,464) (167,112)
(16,957) 2,631
(11,291) 73,782
32,365 -
24,529 53,593
(2,791,406) (1,962,314)
(69,463) (22,494)
(70,997) (65,332)
(788,500) -
= 8,722
(928,960) (79,104)
5,823,300 -
(597,651) B}
- 900,000
(500,000) -
112,000 =
4,837,649 900,000
1,117,283 (1,141,418)
398,391 1,539,809
1,515,674 § 398,391
(280,114) § -
(408,556) $ _
75,578 $ 152,265
89,348 $ -
-3 -




SIGMA LABS, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2017

NOTE 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of Business —Sigma Labs, Inc., formerly named Framewaves, Inc., a Nevada corporation, was founded by a group of scientists, engineers and businessmen to develop
and commercialize novel and unique manufacturing and materials technologies. Sigma believes that some of these technologies will fundamentally redefine conventional
quality assurance and process control practices by embedding them into the manufacturing processes in real time, enabling process intervention and ultimately leading to closed
loop process control. The Company anticipates that its core technologies will allow its clientele to combine advanced manufacturing quality assurance and process control
protocols with novel materials to achieve breakthrough product potential in many industries including aerospace, defense, oil and gas, bio-medical, and power generation. The
terms the “Company,” “Sigma,” “we,” “us” and “our” refer to Sigma Labs, Inc.

Basis of Presentation — The accompanying financial statements have been prepared by the Company in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (“GAAP”)
in the United States of America. In the opinion of management, all adjustments (which include only normal recurring adjustments) necessary to present fairly the financial
position, results of operations and cash flows at December 31, 2017 and 2016 and for the periods then ended have been made.

Reclassification — Certain amounts in prior-period financial statements have been reclassified for comparative purposes to conform to presentation in the current-period
financial statements.

Loss Per Share —The computation of loss per share is based on the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period in accordance with ASC Topic No. 260,
“Earnings Per Share.” Shares underlying the Companies outstanding warrants, options or note conversion features were excluded due to the anti-dilutive effect they would have
on the computation. At December 31, 2017 the Company had 1,434,000 warrants, 299,938 stock options and a $100,000 Convertible Note Payable outstanding. The total
number of shares of common stock underlying these instruments is 1,783,938.

Property and Equipment — Property and equipment are stated at cost. Expenditures for major renewals and betterments that extend the useful lives of property and equipment
are capitalized upon being placed in service. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. The estimated life has been determined to be five years unless a unique circumstance exists, which is then fully
documented as an exception to the policy.

In accordance with its policy, the Company reviews the estimated useful lives of its fixed assets on an ongoing basis. This review indicated that the actual useful life of the
leasehold improvements the Company made to the leased facilities at 3900 Paseo del Sol, Santa Fe, New Mexico in 2014, is less than the fifteen year estimated useful life that
was being used for amortization purposes in the Company’s financial statements. As a result, effective January 1, 2017, the Company changed the estimated useful life of these
improvements to seven years. The effect of this change in estimate was to increase 2017 amortization expense by $12,291 and increase 2017 net loss by $8,509.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments - The Company applies ASC 820, “Fair Value Measurements.” This guidance defines fair value, establishes a three-level valuation
hierarchy for disclosures of fair value measurement and enhances disclosure requirements for fair value measures. The three levels are defined as follows:

e Level 1 inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets.

e Level 2 inputs to the valuation methodology include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets, and inputs that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly, for substantially the full term of the financial instrument.

e Level 3 inputs to valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair measurement.
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The carrying amounts reported in the balance sheets for the cash and cash equivalents, prepaid stock compensation, receivables, accounts payable, and accrued liabilities each
qualify as financial instruments and are a reasonable estimate of fair value because on the short period of time between the origination of such instruments and their expected
realization and their current market rate of interest.

Fair value of financial instruments is as follows:

December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
Input Input
Fair Value Level Fair Value Level
Derivative liability —Notes & Warrants $ - Level 3 $ 93,206 Level 3

The derivative liability was the result of the original $1 million of Notes, and the 80,000 warrants (post reverse stock split), that were issued in October 2016, both of which
contain anti-dilution provisions in the event the Company engages in specified transactions which occurred in February 2017. As a result, the instruments no longer required
derivative treatment and were written off in February 2017. The following table presents a reconciliation of the derivative liability measured at fair value on a recurring basis
using significant unobservable input (Level 3):

Notes & Warrants

Balance December 31, 2016 $ 93,206
Change in fair value 186,908
Write-off of derivative (280,114)
Balance December 31, 2017 $ -

Income Taxes — The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with ASC Topic No. 740, “Accounting for Income Taxes.”

The Company has no tax positions at December 31, 2017 and 2016 for which the ultimate deductibility is highly certain but for which there is uncertainty about the timing of
such deductibility.
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The Company recognizes interest accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits in interest expense and penalties in operating expenses. During the years ended December 31,
2017 and 2016, the Company recognized no interest and penalties. All tax years starting with 2014 are open for examination.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - Trade accounts receivable are carried at original invoice amount less an estimate made for doubtful accounts.
We determine the allowance for doubtful accounts by identifying potential troubled accounts and by using historical experience and future expectations applied to an aging of
accounts. Trade accounts receivable are written off when deemed uncollectible. Recoveries of trade accounts receivable previously written off are recorded as income when
received. There was no allowance for doubtful accounts at December 31, 2017 or 2016.

Long-Lived and Intangible Assets — Long-lived assets and certain identifiable definite life intangibles to be held and used by the Company are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. The Company continuously evaluates the recoverability of
its long-lived assets based on estimated future cash flows and the estimated liquidation value of such long-lived assets, and provides for impairment if such undiscounted cash
flows are insufficient to recover the carrying amount of the long-lived assets. If impairment exists, an adjustment is made to write the asset down to its fair value, and a loss is
recorded as the difference between the carrying value and fair value. Fair values are determined based on quoted market values, discounted cash flows or internal and external
appraisals, as applicable. Assets to be disposed of are carried at the lower of carrying value or estimated net realizable value. No impairment was recorded in the years ended
December 31,2017 or 2016.

Cash Equivalents - The Company considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less at date of purchase to be cash equivalents.

Concentration of Credit Risk - The Company maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts, which, at times, may exceed federally insured limits. The Company has not
experienced any losses in such accounts and believes it is not exposed to any significant credit risk on cash and cash equivalents.

Stock Based Compensation — The Company recognizes compensation costs to employees under ASC Topic No. 718, “Compensation — Stock Compensation.” Under ASC
Topic No. 718, companies are required to measure the compensation costs of share-based compensation arrangements based on the grant-date fair value and recognize the costs
in the financial statements over the period during which employees are required to provide services. Share based compensation arrangements may include stock options, grants
of shares of common stock with and without restrictions, performance-based awards, share appreciation rights and employee share purchase plans. As such, compensation cost
is measured on the date of grant at its fair value. Such compensation amounts, if any, are amortized over the respective vesting periods of the option or stock grants.

Equity instruments issued to non-employees are recorded on the basis of the fair value of the instruments, as required by ASC Topic No. 505, “Equity Based Payments to Non-
Employees.” In general, the measurement date is either (a) when a performance commitment, as defined, is reached or (b) the earlier of the date that (i) the non-employee
performance requirement is complete or (ii) the instruments are vested. The measured value related to the instruments is recognized over a period based on the facts and
circumstances of each particular grant as defined in the FASB Accounting Standards Codification.

Amortization - Utility patents are amortized over a 17 year period. Patents which are pending are not amortized.

Accounting Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements,
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimated by management. Significant accounting
estimates that may materially change in the near future are impairment of long-lived assets, values of stock compensation awards and stock equivalents granted as offering costs,
and allowance for bad debts and inventory obsolescence.

Revenue Recognition — The Company’s revenue is derived primarily from sales of our software and related hardware suite and from providing engineering services under
contracts. The Company recognizes revenue in accordance with ASC Topic No. 605 based on the following criteria: Persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, services
have been rendered, the price is fixed or determinable, and collectability is reasonably assured. In general, the Company recognizes service revenue as significant services under
the relevant arrangement have been performed.
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Deferred Stock Offering Costs — Costs related to stock offerings (if any) are deferred and will be offset against the proceeds of the offering in additional paid-in capital. In the
event a stock offering is unsuccessful, the costs relating to the offering will be written-off directly to expense.

Inventory — Inventories consisting of raw materials used in the production of customized parts totaled $192,705 and $187,241, as of December 31, 2017 and 2016,
respectively, and nominal work-in-process components which will be sold to customers. Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market, using the first-in, first-out (FIFO)
method.

Research and Development — Research and development costs are expensed as they are incurred. Research and development costs for the years ended December 31, 2017 and
2016 were $302,043 and $120,638, respectively.

NOTE 2 — Stockholders’ Equity

Common Stock
Effective March 17, 2016, our Articles of Incorporation were amended to provide for both a reverse stock split of the outstanding shares of our common stock on a 1-for-100
basis (the “Reverse Stock Split”) and a corresponding decrease in the number of shares of our common stock that we are authorized to issue (the “Share Decrease”). Pursuant to

the Share Decrease, the number of authorized shares of common stock decreased from 375,000,000 to 3,750,000 shares of common stock.

On April 28, 2016, the Company’s Articles of Incorporation were amended to increase the number of authorized shares of the Company’s common stock from 3,750,000 to
7,500,000 shares of common stock.

Effective February 15, 2017, our Articles of Incorporation were again amended to provide for a reverse stock split of the outstanding shares of our common stock on a 1-for-2
basis (the “Reverse Stock Split”), and a corresponding decrease in the number of shares of our common stock that we are authorized to issue (the “Share Decrease”).

The effects of both stock splits have been retroactively reflected to all periods presented.

Effective March 5, 2018, the Articles of Incorporation were again amended to increase the authorized number of shares of common stock to 15,000,000.

In 2016, the Company issued 23,687 shares of common stock to employees and consultants, valued at an average price of $6.43 per share, or $152,269.

In 2017, the Company issued 40,934 shares of common stock to directors at an average value of $2.09 per share, or $85,408.

On February 14, 2017, The NASDAQ Stock Market LLC informed the Company that it had approved the listing of the Company’s common stock on The NASDAQ Capital
Market, effective as of February 15, 2017. The Company’s common stock ceased trading on the OTCQB on February 15, 2017, and on such date the common stock

commenced trading on The NASDAQ Capital Market under the ticker symbol “SGLB”.

In October 2017, pursuant to an advisory agreement with Dawson James Securities, the Company issued to Dawson James a total of 141,000 shares of the Company’s common
stock in exchange for the surrender by Dawson James of its Unit Purchase Option to acquire up to 70,500 Units that was issued by the Company in the 2017 public offering.

In November 2017, the Company issued 56,000 shares of common stock as the result of the exercise of warrants resulting in cash proceeds of $112,000.

In December 2017, the Company issued 204,578 shares of common stock as the result of a conversion of the $400,000 principal balance of Notes Payable and $8,556 of
accrued interest.

F-11




Deferred Compensation

In 2014 and 2015, the Company issued to various employees, directors and contractors shares of the Company’s common stock, subject to restrictions, pursuant to the 2013
Equity Incentive Plan (the “2013 Plan”). Such shares were valued at the fair value at the date of issue. The fair value was expensed as compensation over the vesting period and
recorded as a reduction of stockholder’s equity. The $153,743 balance of unvested compensation cost related to these issues at December 31, 2016 was recognized in fiscal
2017.

During 2017, the Company issued to directors 40,934 shares of the Company’s common stock, subject to restrictions, pursuant to the 2013 Plan valued at $85,408. Such shares
were valued at the fair value at the date of issue. The fair value is being expensed as compensation over the vesting period and recorded as a reduction of stockholder’s equity.
As of December 31, 2017, the balance of unvested compensation to be recognized was $21,251 and is recorded as prepaid stock compensation.

Preferred Stock

The Company is authorized to issue 10,000,000 shares of preferred stock, $0.001 par value. No shares of preferred stock were issued and outstanding at December 31, 2017 or
2016.

F-12




Stock Options

On April 28, 2016, at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders of the Company, the Company’s stockholders approved an amendment to the 2013 Plan to increase the number of
shares of the Company’s common stock reserved for issuance under the 2013 Plan by 319,269 shares of our common stock to a total of 375,000 shares (on a post-Reverse Stock
Split basis). As of December 31, 2016, an aggregate of 750 shares and 199,669 shares of common stock were reserved for issuance under the 2011 Equity Incentive Plan (“The
2011 Plan”) and the 2013 Plan, respectively.

On October 2, 2017, at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders of the Company, the Company’s stockholders approved an amendment to the 2013 Plan to increase the number of
shares of the Company’s common stock reserved for issuance under the 2013 Plan by 375,000 shares of our common stock to a total of 750,000 shares. As of December 31,
2017, an aggregate of 750 shares and 450,062 shares of common stock were reserved for issuance under the 2011 and the 2013 Plan, respectively.

During 2017, the Company granted a total of 213,750 options to 5 employees with vesting periods ranging from 18 months to 4 years beginning May 21, 2017. In 2017, 82,676
options vested, and $510,496 of compensation cost was recognized during the year. As of December 31, 2017, there were options to purchase 299,938 shares issued and
outstanding under the 2013 Plan. Of this amount, there are vested options exercisable for 85,614 shares of common stock. As of December 31, 2016, the Company had 200,419
shares reserved for future grant under its plans and there were no options exercised during the years ended December 31, 2017.

During 2016, the Company granted a total of 73,688 options to 10 employees with vesting periods ranging from 3 to 4 years beginning March 14, 2017. In 2016, 2,938 options
vested, and $168,411 of compensation cost was recognized during the year. As of December 31, 2016, there were options to purchase 101,188 shares outstanding under the
plans. Of this amount, there were vested options exercisable for 2,938 shares of common stock. As of December 31, 2016, the Company had 200,419 shares reserved for future
grant under its plans and there were no options exercised during the years ended December 31, 2016.

The Company generally grants stock options to employees and directors at exercise prices equal to the fair market value of the Company’s stock on the dates of grant. Stock
options are typically granted throughout the year and generally vest over four years of service and expire ten years from the date of the award, unless otherwise specified. The
Company recognizes compensation expense for the fair value of the stock options over the requisite service period for each stock option award.

Total share-based compensation expense included in the consolidated statements of operations for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 is $719,796, of which $510,496
is related to stock options, and $341,558, of which $200,504 is related to stock options, respectively. There was no capitalized share-based compensation cost as of December
31,2017 and 2016, and there were no recognized tax benefits during the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016.

To estimate the value of an award, the Company uses the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. This model requires inputs such as expected life, expected volatility and risk-free
interest rate. The forfeiture rate also impacts the amount of aggregate compensation. These inputs are subjective and generally require significant analysis and judgment to
develop. While estimates of expected life, volatility and forfeiture rate are derived primarily from the Company’s historical data, the risk-free rate is based on the yield available
on U.S. Treasury constant maturity rates with similar terms to the expected term of the stock option awards. The fair value of share-based awards was estimated using the Black-
Scholes model with the following weighted-average assumptions for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016:

Assumptions:
2017 2016
Dividend yield 0.00 0.00
Risk-free interest rate 1.91-2.45% 1.13-1.57%
Expected volatility 115.9-139% 111.5-132.4%
Expected life (in years) 5-10 5-10
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Option activity for the year ended December 31, 2017 was as follows:

Weighted
Weighted Average Average
Exercise Remaining Aggregate
Price Contractual Intrinsic
Options ($) Life (Yrs.) Value ($)
Options outstanding at December 31, 2016 101,188 8.39 9.29 -
Granted 213,750 2.95 7.72 16,600
Exercised - - - -
Forfeited or cancelled -15,000 5.43 - -
Options outstanding at December 31, 2017 299,938 8.39 7.33 16,600
Options expected to vest in the future as of December 31, 2017 214,324 4.55 6.88 16,000
Options exercisable at December 31, 2017 85,614 4.49 7.96 600
Options vested, exercisable, and options expected to vest at
December 31, 2017 299,938 4.57 7.33 16.600

The aggregate intrinsic value is calculated as the difference between the exercise price of the underlying awards and the quoted price of our common stock for those awards that
have an exercise price currently below the $2.15 closing price of our Common Stock on December 31, 2017. Three of the 2017 option grants have an exercise price currently
below $2.15.

At December 31, 2017 and 2016, there was $525,606 and $452,551, respectively, of unrecognized share-based compensation expense related to unvested share options with a
weighted average remaining recognition period of 7.33 and 9.29 years, respectively.

Warrants

At December 31, 2017, the Company had outstanding warrants to purchase a total of 1,434,000 shares of common stock, 1,410,000 warrants at an exercise price of $4.00 per
share, which if not exercised, will expire on February 21, 2022, and 24,000 warrants at an exercise price of $2.00 per share which, if not exercised, will expire on October 17,
2019.

NOTE 3 — Notes Payable

Effective October 17, 2016, the Company entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement with two accredited investors (the “Investors”) for the private placement by the
Company of Secured Convertible Notes in the aggregate principal amount of $1,000,000 (the “Notes”) and warrants (the “Warrants”) to purchase up to 80,000 shares (the
“Warrant Shares”) of the Company’s common stock (“Common Stock”) (subject to adjustment in certain circumstances), for aggregate gross proceeds, before expenses, to the
Company of $900,000 (the “Financing Transaction”). The Notes were convertible into Shares of Common Stock registered on a Registration Statement for Resale filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission.

The Notes carried an interest rate of 10% per annum, calculated on the basis of a 360-day year, based on the $1 million Notes Payable effective balance. Such interest was
payable every three months in cash, or, at the holder’s option, in unrestricted shares of Common Stock, if a registration statement is then in effect for such shares of common

stock.
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On September 29, 2017, the Company entered into amendments (the “Amendments”) to the October 17, 2016 Secured Convertible Promissory Notes and Warrants to
purchase shares of the Company’s common stock, pursuant to which, among other things set forth in the Amendments, (1) the exercise price of the Warrants was reduced from
$4.13 per share to $2.00 per share, and (2) the conversion price of the Notes was reduced from $4.13 per share to $2.00 per share. Under the Amendments, we paid the Holders
an aggregate amount equal to $500,000 (representing 50% of the outstanding principal balance of the Notes) plus all accrued interest on the Notes. In consideration of the
foregoing, the Holders agreed to, among other things, extend the payment date of the remaining 50% of the outstanding principal balance of the Notes from October 17, 2017 to
the earlier of May 18, 2018 or the closing of our next underwritten public offering of securities in which we raise gross proceeds of at least $3,000,000 (should we elect to
commence and close such an offering of securities).

On December 27 and 28, 2017 the Holders Converted $400,000 of the $500,000 Notes principal and $8,556 of accrued interest on one of the notes into 204,278 shares
of common stock and exercised 56,000 of the warrants @ $2.00 per share for 56,000 additional shares of common stock.

At December 31, 2017 the Company had the remaining $100,000 Convertible Note outstanding and due on the earlier of May 18, 2018 or the closing of our next
underwritten public offering of securities in which we raise gross proceeds of at least $3,000,000 (should we elect to commence and close such an offering of securities).

NOTE 4 - Continuing Operations

The Company has sustained losses and had negative cash flows from operating activities since its inception. The Company has raised significant equity capital and is
developing new products with commercial applications that may increase future revenues. On February 21, 2017, the Company closed an underwritten public offering of equity
securities resulting in net proceeds of approximately $5.25 million, after deducting underwriting discounts and commissions and other offering expenses payable by the
Company. The Company was able to fund operations for 2017 with these funds and end the year with a cash balance of $1,515,674. On March 28, 2018, Sigma received
$535,000 in full payment of the Morf 3D note and related accrued interest balance. In addition, on April 6, 2018, the Company closed a private placement offering of equity
securities resulting in net proceeds of approximately $840,000, after deducting commissions and other offering expenses payable by the Company. As a result, the Company
currently has sufficient cash and working capital to fund operations through 2018 and is anticipating that significant sales contracts may be closed in the second quarter and
balance of the fiscal 2018 generating material additional cash flow in the near term.

NOTE 5 — Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with ASC Topic No. 740. This standard requires the Company to provide a net deferred tax asset or liability equal to the
expected future tax benefit or expense of temporary reporting differences between book and tax accounting methods and any available operating loss or tax credit carryforwards.
Income tax returns open for examination by the Internal Revenue Service consist of tax years ended December 31, 2014 through 2016.

The Company has available at December 31, 2017, unused operating loss carryforwards of approximately $8,617,000, which may be applied against future taxable income and
which expire in various years through 2037. However, if certain substantial changes in the Company’s ownership should occur, there could be an annual limitation on the
amount of net operating loss carryforward which can be utilized. The amount of and ultimate realization of the benefits from the operating loss carryforwards for income tax
purposes is dependent, in part, upon the tax laws in effect, the future earnings of the Company and other future events, the effects of which cannot be determined. Because of the
uncertainty surrounding the realization of the loss carryforwards, the Company has established a valuation allowance equal to the tax effect of the loss carryforwards and other
temporary differences of approximately $2,929,900 and $3,767,996 at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, and, therefore, no deferred tax asset has been recognized for
the loss carryforwards.

Deferred tax assets are comprised of the following:

2017 2016
Deferred tax assets:
NOL carryover $ 2,929,900 $ 3,235,490
Impairments - 33,931
‘Warrants - 498,575
Valuation allowance (2,929,900) (3,767,996)
Net deferred tax asset $ -3 -
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The reconciliation of the provision for income taxes computed at the U.S. federal statutory tax rate (34%) to the Company’s effective tax rate for the period ended December 31,
2017 and 2016 is as follows:

2017 2016
Book Loss $ (1,556.355) $ (746,924)
State taxes - (106,546)
Meals & Entertainment 3,200 -
Change in valuation allowance 1,553,200 853,470
Provision for Income Taxes $ - $ -

NOTE 6 — Loss Per Share

The following data show the amounts used in computing loss per share and the effect on income and the weighted average number of shares of dilutive potential common stock
for the periods ended December 31, 2017 and 2016:

Year Ended December 31
2017 2016

Loss from continuing
Operations available to
Common stockholders (numerator) $ (4,577,516) $ (2,196,834)

Weighted average number of

common shares Outstanding

used in loss per share during

the Period (denominator) 4,403,479 3,125,022

Dilutive loss per share was not presented as the Company’s outstanding warrants, stock options and note conversion features common equivalent shares for the periods
presented would have had an anti-dilutive effect. At December 31, 2017 the Company had outstanding 1,434,000 warrants which could be converted to 1,434,000 shares of
common stock, a $100,000 note payable convertible into 50,000 shares of common stock, and 299,938 stock options exercisable for 299,938 shares of common stock resulting
in a potential total additional 1,783,938 common stock shares outstanding in the future.

NOTE 7 - Property and Equipment

The following is a summary of property and equipment, purchased, used and depreciated over a five year period, less accumulated depreciation, as of December 31, 2017 and
2016:

Year Ended December 31,
2017 2016
Property and Equipment $ 1,027,966 $ 993,843
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (616,322) (428,910)
Net Property and Equipment $ 411,643 $ 564,933

Depreciation expense on property and equipment was $193,892 and $172,315 for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.
NOTE 8 — Intangible Assets
The Company’s intangible assets consist of Patents, Patent Pending Applications and Customer Contacts.

Provisional patent applications are not amortized until a patent has been granted. Once a patent is granted, the Company will amortize the related costs over the estimated useful
life of the patent. If a patent application is denied, then the costs will be expensed at that time.
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The following is a summary of definite-life intangible assets less accumulated amortization as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively:

Year Ended December 31,
2017 2016
Provisional Patent Applications $ 254,570 $ 183,574
Patents 59,701 59,701
Customer Contacts 262,009 262,009
Less: Accumulated Amortization (281,884) (278,833)
Net Intangible Assets $ 294396 § 226,450
Amortization expense on intangible assets was $3,051 and $2,309 for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016.
The estimated aggregate amortization expense for each of the succeeding years ending December 31 is as follows:
2018 3,051
2019 3,051
2020 3,051
2021 3,051
Thereafter 27,622
$ 39,826

NOTE 9 — Commitments and Contingencies

Operating Leases — The Company leases office and laboratory space under operating leases. Expense relating to these operating leases was $59,700 and $56,025 for the years
ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. The future minimum lease payments required under non-cancellable operating leases at December 31, 2017 was $44,550. The
future minimum lease payments are due during the year 2018.

NOTE 10 — Concentrations

Revenues — During the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company had the following significant customers who accounted for more than 10% each of the
Company’s revenue in at least one of the periods presented. The loss of the revenues generated by these customers would have a significant effect on the operations of the
Company.

Customer 2017 2016
A 28.75% 29.97%
B 19.83% 40.93%
C 14.23% 4.61%
D 12.85% -




Accounts Receivable — The Company had the following significant customers who accounted for more than 10% each of the Company’s accounts receivable balance at
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Customer 2017 2016
A 44.34% 78.92%
B 23.21% 5.24%
C 21.33% 1.15%

NOTE 11 - Joint Venture

In July 2015, we entered into a joint venture agreement with Arete Innovative Solutions LLC (“Arete”). The Joint Venture was not consolidated, but rather was accounted for on
the equity method of recording investments. There were no operating activities during the fiscal 2017 and net operations resulted in a loss on the investment of $105 in fiscal
2016. The Company and Arete agreed in 2017 to terminate the Joint Venture and are in the process of paying final costs. The remaining cash asset of the company will be
distributed to the former partners in 2018.

Note 12 - Defined Contribution Plan

In 2014, the Company adopted a qualified 401(K) plan (“the Plan”), in which all employees over the age of 21 may participate. The Company has elected to match 100% of
each participant’s contribution up to 3% of salary, and 50% of the next 2% of salary contributed. The Company may also elect, on an annual basis, to make a discretionary
contribution to the plan. Company matches and discretionary contributions vest to participant accounts as follows: 20% after two years of service, and 20% per year thereafter
until the participant reaches 6 years of service, at which time, employer contributions vest 100%. The costs of matching contributions were $33,725 in 2017 and $35,488 in
2016.

NOTE 13 — Related Party Transactions

In February 2017, the Company entered into an employment agreement (the “Original Agreement”) with Mr. Mark Cola pursuant to which, Mr. Cola agreed to serve as the
Company’s President, Chief Executive Officer and Chief Operating Officer, and was entitled to receive an annual base salary of $220,000. In July, 2017,the Company and Mr.

Cola entered into a new employment agreement (the “Employment Agreement”) for a two-year term (unless earlier terminated as provided in the Employment Agreement),
pursuant to which Mr. Cola has agreed to serve as the Company’s Chief Technology Officer and continue to serve as the Company’s President (with the title of Co-Founder,

President and Chief Technology Officer). Under the Employment Agreement, Mr. Cola is (i) entitled to receive (a) an annual base salary of $180,000 (the “Base Salary”), and
(b) during each 12-month period during the term of Mr. Cola’s employment, a nondiscretionary annual founder’s bonus (the “Annual Bonus”) in the total amount of $40,000,
payable and earned in 24 equal bi-monthly installments, and (ii) eligible to receive one or more additional bonuses (“Discretionary Bonuses”) in recognition of extraordinary
accomplishments, provided that the decision to provide any Discretionary Bonuses and the amount and terms of any Discretionary Bonuses will be in the sole and absolute
discretion of the Board of Directors.

Effective as of immediately prior to the Effective Date, the Original Agreement was terminated by the parties, and Mr. Cola resigned as Chief Executive Officer, Chief
Operating Officer and as a director of the Company. The parties agreed that the Company has no obligation to Mr. Cola to grant stock options to him pursuant to the Original
Agreement, and that (i) the Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement, dated as of February 21, 2017, between the Company and Mr. Cola evidencing the grant to Mr. Cola under
the Original Agreement of a stock option to purchase up to 123,750 shares of the Company’s common stock at an exercise price per share equal to $3.48 (the “Original Option™)
was amended under the Employment Agreement such that (a) any unvested portion of the Original Option will immediately and automatically vest if Mr. Cola’s employment is
terminated as a result of a Termination Event (as defined below), (b) the definition of “Termination For Cause” under the Original Option was replaced with the definition of
“Cause” under the Employment Agreement, and (c) upon the occurrence of a Corporate Transaction (as defined in the 2013 Equity Incentive Plan of the Company), the Original
Option, if outstanding as of the date of such applicable Corporate Transaction, will remain outstanding and exercisable in accordance with its terms, except as provided in the
Employment Agreement, and (ii) the Original Option will otherwise remain outstanding and exercisable in accordance with its terms.

Under the Employment Agreement, Mr. Cola is (i) entitled to receive (a) an annual base salary of $180,000 (the “Base Salary”), which will be subject to increase in the

discretion of our Board of Directors or Compensation Committee based on its annual assessment of Mr. Cola’s performance and other factors, and (b) during each 12-month

period during the term of Mr. Cola’s employment, a nondiscretionary annual founder’s bonus (the “Annual Bonus”) in the total amount of $40,000, payable and earned in 24

equal bi-monthly installments, and (ii) eligible to receive one or more additional bonuses (“Discretionary Bonuses™) in recognition of extraordinary accomplishments, provided
that the decision to provide any Discretionary Bonuses and the amount and terms of any Discretionary Bonuses will be in the sole and absolute discretion of the Board of
Directors.

Pursuant to the Employment Agreement, on February 21, 2018, the Company granted Mr. Cola under the Company’s 2013 equity incentive plan (i) a ten-year non-qualified
stock option to purchase 61,750 shares of the Company’s common stock (“Option A”), and (ii) a ten-year non-qualified stock option to purchase 61,750 shares of the Company’s
common stock (“Option B”, and together with Option A, the “Options”), with the Options each (a) to have an exercise price equal to the closing price of the Company’s
common stock on the date of grant (i.e., February 21, 2018), (b) to vest and become exercisable in seventeen equal (as closely as possible) monthly installments on the 15th day
of each month commencing on March 15, 2018, subject in each case to Mr. Cola’s continuing employment, and (c) to be on such other terms set forth in the Company’s
standard form of non-qualified stock option agreement (except that the definition of “Termination For Cause” under such agreement was replaced with the definition of “Cause”
under the Employment Agreement). Additionally, (x) upon the occurrence of a Corporate Transaction, all stock options of the Company held by Mr. Cola as of the date of such
applicable Corporate Transaction will remain outstanding and exercisable in accordance with their terms (except as provided in the Employment Agreement and as set forth in
(y) below), and (y) upon the occurrence of a Change of Control (as defined in the Employment Agreement), his unvested stock options will fully vest.

Under the Employment Agreement, Mr. Cola will be entitled to participate in any employee benefit and welfare plans and programs of the Company in which any C-level senior
officer of the Company or its subsidiaries are eligible to participate. The Employment Agreement provides that in the event (i) the Company’s terminates Mr. Cola’s

employment without “Cause” (as defined), (ii) Mr. Cola resigns from the Company for “Good Reason” (as defined), (iii) Mr. Cola resigns from the Company after the nine-

month anniversary of the effective date of the Employment Agreement (the “Nine Month Period”) for any reason or no reason, or (iv) Mr. Cola dies or becomes disabled during

the Nine Month Period in the performance of his duties for the Company (each of (i)-(iv), a “Termination Event”), subject to entering into a general release of all claims, (x) he
will be entitled to continue to receive the Base Salary, Annual Bonus and benefits which he was receiving as of the time of termination for the greater of the remaining term of
employment or a period of twelve months, with such compensation to be payable in equal installments in accordance with the Company’s normal payroll practices, but no less
frequently than bi-monthly, and (y) any unvested portion of Option A and the Original Option will fully vest.

In August 2017, we entered into an “at will” unwritten employment arrangement with Mr. John Rice, pursuant to which Mr. Rice serves as our interim Chief Executive Officer
and interim principal executive officer, will receive a monthly salary of $9,000, and is eligible to receive medical and dental benefits, life insurance, and long term and short
term disability coverage. Further, Mr. Rice is eligible under his employment arrangement to participate in the Company’s 2013 Equity Incentive Plan, with equity compensation
to Mr. Rice to be determined by our Compensation Committee at a later date. Effective as of Mr. Rice’s appointment as interim Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Rice is no longer

entitled to receive compensation for his service as a director of the Company during his service as our interim Chief Executive Officer.
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In August 2017, we engaged Garofalo & Associates, LLC, a limited liability company owned and controlled by Frank Garofalo, a director of the Company, to provide services
to the Company as corporate development consultant and financial advisor. Under the engagement letter agreement, Garofalo & Associates, LLC, is entitled to receive in
consideration for its services a monthly retainer of $3,000 in cash during the term of the engagement (the engagement may be terminated by both parties upon 30 days’ written
notice), and (i) 105,000 shares of common stock of the Company upon the closing of an acquisition by the Company of all or substantially all of the equity or assets (or a
controlling interest therein) (the “Closing”) with respect to a specified entity (the value of such shares would have been $238,350 if such shares would have been issued on
August 8, 2017, based on a closing price per share of $2.27 on such date), and (ii) 75,000 shares of common stock of the Company upon the Closing with respect to at least one
of two other specified entities (the value of such shares would have been $170,250 if such shares would have been issued on August 8, 2017, based on a closing price per share
of $2.27 on such date). As of the date of this Annual Report, there are no agreements with respect to the acquisition by the Company of any third party, and there can be no
assurance that any agreements will be entered into or, if entered into, that any acquisition or other transaction will be consummated.

In September 2017, we and Ron Fisher entered into Amendment No. 1 to Mr. Fisher’s employment agreement, effective August 10, 2015, pursuant to which, effective as of
February 11, 2017, item 2, entitled “Performance Bonuses,” of Exhibit A of Mr. Fisher’s employment agreement was deleted in its entirety and replaced with the new item 2
that was set forth in the amendment to employment agreement. Such amendment provided that Mr. Fisher would become entitled to receive performance-based stock and cash
bonuses if certain milestones were satisfied by February 11, 2018, so long as Mr. Fisher remained an employee of the Company as of the date the applicable milestone was
satisfied. No such bonuses were earned as of December 31, 2017. On February 21, 2018, the Company and Mr. Fisher entered into Amendment No. 2 to Mr. Fisher’s
employment agreement, pursuant to which the foregoing February 11, 2018 date was extended to December 31, 2018.

In September 2017, we entered into an employment agreement with Nannette Toups, pursuant to which Ms. Toups agreed to serve as our Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer,

principal accounting officer, principal financial officer and Secretary on an “at-will” basis. Under the employment letter agreement, Ms. Toups is entitled to (i) an annual base
salary of $110,000 (such base salary is not subject to decrease, but may be increased in the discretion of the Company’s Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors
based on an annual assessment of Ms. Toups’ performance and other factors), (ii) all benefits that we elect in our sole discretion to provide from time to time to our other
executive officers, and (iii) a grant under our 2013 Equity Incentive Plan of (1) a five-year stock option to purchase up to 2,500 shares of common stock of the Company with
an exercise price equal to the closing price of the Company’s common stock on the agreement effective date, and vested and became exercisable in full on the Effective Date,
and (2) a five-year stock option to purchase up to 47,500 shares of common stock of the Company with an exercise price equal to the closing price of the Company’s common
stock on the agreement effective date, and which will vest and become exercisable on each successive anniversary date that Ms. Toups remains an employee of the Company as
follows: 3,065, 7,125, 11,185, and 26,125 on the first, second, third and fourth anniversary, respectively.

NOTE 14 — Subsequent Events

In January 2018, Sigma issued each of its four non-employee directors 5,814 shares of common stock, under the 2013 Equity Incentive Plan, with such shares to vest ratably
over four quarterly installments, subject in each case to such director’s continuing service as a director.

In February 2018, Sigma granted Mark Cola ten-year options under the 2013 Equity Incentive Plan to purchase an aggregate of 123,500 shares of common stock, with the
options having an exercise price of $1.49 per share, and to vest and become exercisable ratably over 17 monthly installments on the 15th day of each month commencing on
March 15, 2018, subject in each case to Mr. Cola’s continuing employment.

In February 2018, the Company and Ron Fisher entered into Amendment No. 2 to Mr. Fisher’s Employment Offer Letter Agreement, pursuant to which Mr. Fisher will become
entitled to receive performance-based stock and cash bonuses if certain milestones are satisfied by December 31, 2018, so long as Mr. Fisher remains an employee of the
Company as of the date the applicable milestone is satisfied. The maximum shares of stock potentially issuable under this agreement is 23,000 shares.

In February 2018, Sigma granted nine employees ten-year options under the 2013 Equity Incentive Plan to purchase an aggregate of 70,188 shares of common stock, with each
option having an exercise price of $1.56 per share, with each option to vest from and after February 26, 2018 and in accordance with the vesting schedule of each such person’s
existing stock option (i.e., vesting in the same proportions (as closely as possible) and at the same rate), and if any such person did not have an existing stock option, the vesting
schedule of such person’s option is to conform to the vesting schedule of the stock option most recently granted by the Company to a non-executive employee (i.e., vesting in
the same proportions (as closely as possible) and at the same rate), subject in each case to the employee’s continuing employment.

Effective March 5, 2018, the Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation, as amended, of Sigma was amended pursuant to a Certificate of Amendment filed with the
Nevada Secretary of State to increase the authorized number of shares of Sigma’s common stock to 15,000,000.

In March 2018, Morf3D, Inc. paid the Company $ 535,096 in full satisfaction of the Company’s loan made to Morf3D, Inc. in 2017.

In April 2018, Sigma issued 1,000 shares of the Company’s newly-created non-voting Series B Convertible Preferred Stock, which are initially convertible into up to 1,000,000

shares of common stock, and warrants to purchase an aggregate of up to 750,000 shares of the Company’s common stock, for an aggregate purchase price of $1,000,000.The

warrants have an initial exercise price of $1.47 per share, the closing price of the Company’s Common Stock reported on The NASDAQ Capital Market on April 6, 2018,

subject to adjustment in certain circumstances. The net proceeds to the company were approximately $840,000 after commissions and other offering expenses. Sigma also issued
Dawson James Securities, Inc., its placement agent in the foregoing private placement, warrants to purchase up to 140,000 shares of common stock, at an exercise price of
$1.47 per share, as compensation.

F-19







3of 10

hitps:/iwww.sec.goviArchives/edgar/data/T886 11/0001144204100499....

Ser. T 2010 1:0814 Ba 1605 T4

W

ROBS MILLER
mmm&mml
mm:.“ , Huwatls 307014820
" {Filod ia the office of | Devwmct
O — zoiminzrm J
Certificate to Accompany | Mhaouien ﬁfg%fmumm
Restated Articies or Sy of St o o
nded and R I “ ficlos \meoﬂ'-lmda [CB549-1865
(PURSUANT TO

LIS RLACK WK LY s DESOT MR T KUV A RO R LY

Geriificalas of Y
1. ine of Nevedaenilly ax best roceved in e offioe:
f e - i
{ |
2. Theirticles dve: (mark onlyonobod  [Dmostated 5 Amesided and Restiatod

Pieass ontie your itechind arely "Reetoiod® e hmended 6nd Reskited scoorcingly.

3. Indiate whit chEnges have bosn e by checking the sppeoprale Biss

£3 100 mmeniments; meichos ave resiptact oy s i sigree by i ficor of the. hea
e carfiicens by reeoiiicn of the board of thecion addpied o
"Toi corifcate comecily voh Torth the bl f i irdcien or certiioats 8 Bmendied i 1o ol o o6 Corticate.
] ‘i entily revmn hug brisn amen .

[ The registered gent has.bean changed. {Wiach Curifess of Asepienss Beim new rgiersd ageot

] T puposs o the ety fs bown aroended.

AR T R ——————y

) e diractors, meneger o genersl pariners have beer smended.

[ mewwrtanguage basboen sdded.

1 vticios haves busen aded,

[ Asticies have busn doleied.

[7] ‘Canex. The asticies or cevtifcate Mave boen amendisd o faloes: {ND0E rEcis Mmbars, il i)

* Tk Soamm b 1o ecoompany Resstaled Articine or Amengiad it Ristated Artisies which contain newhy sibered of
‘The Rastated Aticles mund &onsin il of e requiriments as sat forth in the sistutes for mwnﬁmhmw

INPORTANT: Faiture to incicde iy of s abowe information and submit with the propar fess misy Sausothis King 4o 5o rejeciod.

d b by apprCpeiai Fes. N Byt Rl Ay

4/17/2018 T:04 AM




5of10

https/ fwww.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/788611/0001144204100499...

$en. 1 2010 1:089 Ho. 1605 F &

orF
FRAMEWAVES, INC.

Porguant 1o NRS 78403 of the Nevads Businses Corporati Fremewanves,
(M“WWﬂMﬁOWMAWn&Bn;:ﬂthM%

Ingorporation by steting the follow
FIRST: The poessat tame of the Cotporation is FRAMEWAVES, INC.
SECOND: The Bllowing amendment and restteghwst %o fs Articles of
* Tncofporation were mwmmdmmxmu

cmmmmmmam&mmwm&

THIRD: The nuntber of shaves of the corporetion otshinding asd eatited w0
wole gt the time of the adoption of said smendementt way 1,258,594,

FOURTH: The number of shares voted for such amendment and restatement was
?@&ummmwwmmm
or B

EFFECTIVEDATE:  Seplémiber27, 2010

FRAMEWAVES, INC.
i

Jehin Furiong
President

4/17/2018 704 AM




hitps:/iwww.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/788611/0001144204100499...

Sep. 1. 2010 1000 Ho. 1605 P 6

FRAMEWAVES, INC.
ANTICLEF
NAME
Tl nasme of the Corporation shall be: SIGMA LABS, INC. !
. ARTICLE T
PERIOD OF DURATION
ol _bbm_ confioue i existence perpeivally unless sooner dissohved
ARTICLETE
The pupose for which sid Corporsiion is formed snd the nature of ths shjects proposed
fo be trabsasted and canied oft by it is fo Sngage in an and all other lawful activity as provided
by the laws of the State of Nevade. - e
ARTICLE TV

The total number of sfiares of alf ¢lasses of cepital stoek whicly the eamoration shiall have
atherity o isgus is 750,000,000 shares of conmmon stock, 50.001 par valiss (“Caesmon Sy,
cumulative voing in the sleition of directors or for any otiier purpose. The elssses and the
Wmdﬂnam&ﬂm-ﬁammmmmm

stockhiobers, except as ofhursrise required by aw. The cap! mm-mm%m
subsoription prics; of par valow, has been paid in shall not 5 subject 0 aasescment 1 pay the
debts of e corporation,

ARTICLE V
ACQUISITION OF CONTROLLING INTEREST

Tof 10 4/17/2018 7:04 AM




9of 10

https:/fwww.sec.goviArchives/edgar/data/788611/0001144204100499...

Sep. 1 2010 1.0 ‘ | Ne. 1635 I

_ ARTICLEYI
COMBINATIONS WITH INTERESTED STOCKHOLDERS
dm#h&mﬂ by:the foams anid provisions of Sections 78.411
amended,

Tiw Corporation
through 78.444, incfusive, of the Nevads Revised Revised Btakates, 88 the same may be
superseded, or eplaced by suy suceassor seution, stidife, or provisior.

. ARTICLEVH
LIMETATION ON LIABEITY

mwmwmmmm&%‘:ﬂm“ "
Mwawﬁm o paymont dividends
violation of section 78.300 of the NMevada Revisdd Statisies &5 gwﬁmmw&tebe

Muwmrmm

ARTICEE VI :
PRENCIPAL OFFICE AND RESIDERT AGENT

The address of the Corperation's registered office in fhe state of Nevada {s 3730 Eagt
mmhsmmmvmgwm;umdmwmw-u

Nevada js Gatewsy Enterprises, Inc. Ei regisiered office oc the resident agent muy
b changed in the manner provided by law.

ARTICLE IX
mmmhwwmmm«w.ﬂu postion of
the provisions contafned in thess articles of incorporation from time t mhuﬁmﬂ
mmamm«rmmmmmwmmmmwm
o 4his resecvation.
ADOPTION AND AMENDMENT OF BYLAWS

The boand of directors have ado) the eurrent | 0 alter; smend, or
&meaﬁmwwgﬁshﬂlh ﬂnbmdnf(ﬁms,hslh

ﬂm Wmmnhah%awal&sbyhmm@mm .

The bylaws may contain any provisions for the: mgufation or management of the affairs of the
Corporation not ncensistent with the laws of the state I Neévaila noww or hereafter existing,

ARTICLE XX 3
DIRECTORS

The governing bosrd of the Corporation shall bo known &5 the board of directars. “The
number of disectors comprising the bosrd of directors shall be fixed and muy be ncrensed or
mﬁmm»&mmﬂnmwhﬂwmdhmww
it 0o time shall there be Jess fhian one nor more fhan sevee directorg,

%

4/17/2018 7.04 AM




(A

ROSS MILLER

Secretary of State

204 North Carson Street, Suite 1
Carson Gity, Nevada §9701-3520
(775) 6B4-5708

Website: www.nvsos.gov

Certificate of Correction Filed in the office of | Dowuncet Namie
(p"éismm TQ NRS CHAPTERS 78, v im ;‘m ;gS:ﬂtiG-ss
784, 80, 81, 82, B4, 8B, B, 87A, 88, . " ;
88A, 83 AND 824) l;mm Ma:;lf,rfsm.: gﬁﬁ?ﬁ? A58 0M
State of Nevada C8549-1985

USE BLACK INK ONLY - DO NOT HIGHLIGHT ABOVE SPAGE I8 FOR OFFIGE USE QNLY

Certifi otrection
(Pursuant to NRS Chapters 78, 78A, 80, 81, 82, 84, 86, 87, BTA, B8, 88A, 89 and 92A)

1. The name of the entity for which comrection is being made:
Sigma Labs, Inc. (the "Corporation”)
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R Exhibit A

ARTICLE IV
AUTHORIZED SHARES

The total number of shares of all classes of capital stock which the corporation shall have
authority to issue is 760,000,000 shares, Stockholders shall not have any preemptive rights, nor
shall stockholders have the right to curmulative voting in the election of directors or for any other

purposc.

The classes and the aggregate number of shares of stock of each class which the
corporation shall have authority to issue are as follows:

{a) 750,000,000 shares of common stock, $0.001 par value (“Common Stock™);
(b) 10,000,000 shares of preferred stock, $0.001 par value (“Preferred Stock™).

The Preferred Stock may be issued from time to time in ope or more series, with such
distinctive serial designations as may be stated or expressed in the resolution or resolutions
providing for the issue of such stock adopted from time to time by the Board of Directors; and in
such resolution or resolutions providing for the issuance of shares of each particular scries, the
Board of Directors is also expressly authorized to fix: the right to vote, if any; the consideration
for which the shares of such series are to be issued; the number of shares constituting such series,
which number may be increased (except as otherwise fixed by the Board of Directors) or
decreased (but not below the number of shares thercof then outstanding) from time to time by
action of the Board of Directors; the rate of dividends upon which and the times at which
dividends on shares of such series shall be payable and the preference, if any, which such
dividends shall have relative to dividends on shares of any other class or classes or any other
series of stock of the corporation; whether such dividends shall be cumulative or noncumulative,
and if cumulative, the date or dates from which dividends on shares of such series shall be
cumulative; the rights, if any, which the holders of shares of such series shall have in the event of
any voluntary or inveluntary liquidation, merger, consolidation, distribution or sale of assets,
dissolution or winding up of the affairs of the corporation; the rights, if any, which the holders of
shares of such series shall have to convert such shares into or exchange such shares for shares of
any other class or classes or any ather series of stock of the corporation or for any debt securities
of the corporation and the terms and conditions, including price and rate of exchange, of such
conversion or exchange; whether shares of such series shall be subject to redemption, and the
redemption price or prices and other terms of redemption, if any, for shares of such series
including, without limitation, 2 redemption price or prices payable in shares of Common Stock;
the terms and amounts of any sinking find for the purchase or redemption of shares of such
series; and any and all other designations, preferences, and relative, participating, optional or
other special rights, qualifications, limitations or restrictions thereof pertaining to shares of
such series' permitted by law.

The Board of Directors of the Corperation may from time to time authorize by resolution
the issuance of any or all shares of the Common Stock and the Preferred Stock herein authorized
in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in these Articles of Incorporation for such
purposes, in such amounts, to such persens, corporations or entities, for such consideration, and
in the case of the Preferred Siock, in one or more series, all as the Board of Directors in its
discretion may determine and without any vote or other action by the stockholders, except as
aotherwise required by law. The capital stock, after the amount of the subscription price, or par
value, has been paid in shall not be subject to assessment to pay the debts of the corporation.

030720001 2184811
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Jurisdation Entity typs *

M= noneoft eorporstion, limited pa . HerdtechliabRily company or Business trust

Filing Fee: $350.00

This form: musd be scetmpanisd by sperooiale fees. wwwmdmmmﬂ:?!
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I Gtrast
Cursor Cit;f Hovada 397044204
375_] 884-5768

Articles of Merger
{PURSUANT TO NRS 924.200)

Page 2

USE BLACK NI GNEY s GO MOT MGHLIGHT ABOVE SFALE ¥5 FOR OFFICE USE oMLY

2} Forwarding sdldress whoere colivs of process may ba sent by the Sacretary of Stawn of
Mavada (if 2 foreign entity is the survivor in the merger - mmm::

3) Choose ona:
The mdaarcl_qnldwckms that s plan of merger has besn sdopted by siich constitusnt entity
(NRS

i The undergianed deciaes that = plan of mprger has hssn adbpied by the parent demestic
antity (NRS 922,180},

&) wner's approval (NRS D2A.200) {options 4, b or ¢ must be used, 45 applicabie, for sach antity):

um;mmmmmﬁmmﬂemmemmam':ﬂ”mmnm
D dining the required infoemation for each adsitlenal entity from the sppropriats section of

{2) Owninr's approwal was 8ol reguned from

86 Sigm, Inc. - '
raame of merging entity, if spplicable

i
Mamae of merging entity, if applicable

|
Nmufmw entily, if spplicable

.Namuqftr'mghg enhg.ﬂwplnﬂe

and, o
[sgmatabrinc S
MName of surviving enily, i!apphcahle
This form must Ba scoompaniad by spprocviale faes. Nevada Sacratany of Sxte 54 Merger Fagn 2
Resided: 515

41772018 T:05 AM
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Articles of Merger

{PURSUANT TO NRS §2A200)

Page 3

LS BLAGK T GHLY - B ROT RIGHLIGHT ABOVE SPACE IS FOR OFFICE USE ONLY

{6} The glan was apprioved by e mguired consont of the cwiers oF *:

e e

:i;m; of marging enilly, I appicable

Mslma of lnwulq entll)r 1 wplme

Nama of marging entity, if apphcable

Nams of mereing entiy, i appicabis

and, er;
R of suring nve, 1 35%
* Uriless ofharwise provided in tha centificste of fnst or g i ok trut, @ irerper must ba apitwed by Al

the tristaes and banaficial cwnan of ath businass st that is a conslisat ety i the MEAGRS,

This form must ba sucompariod by approprate (ees. mmﬂmw.‘fﬁ_ﬁmf

001144204160885...
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(63 Approval of ian of merger for Mevads nor-profit sampontion INRE 824.180)

The plan of merger has besn approvad by ths diractars of the cofporation ant by each
public officer or oiher Jesun whoss approval of the plan of merger is requirad by the
articles of ineorporslion of fhe domestic corporation.

f |

i
Name of merging entity, if apaficeble

i
Mama of merglrg entity, if appicabla

b e i i A
Mame of merging enfity, if appécable

Name of merging satity, If applicabilé

and, of.

_— e g

Name of surviving antity, if appicabie

Thiz forms mest be accompaniad by sparopirale fees. mww:men-m-wgmg

4/17/2018 7.05 AM
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gon Strust
Caison City; Nevada 83791-4201
{ﬂﬁ}m
Websita: wawnveos.gov

Articles of Merger
[PURSUANT TO NRS B24.200)
Page 5

USE BLALIK HIC CHLY + DO NOT HIGHE GHT ABOVESPADE 15 FOR OFFIGE USE ORLY

5} Amendments, If any, to the ariikles or certificate of e surviving sntilty. Frovide
anticia mnm. lfm‘lab'h.m imr )
I

%) Logatton of Plan of Merger [chack a or bk

[] o 7we enie plas of mergioe i atiachiad:
nr.
g:]mm;!mdwgnflnnf[ealmwmﬂﬂmm
company o busihnes. fiust, b 3 the fsoords offe adidress # 2 iinited parinership, wmmvf
bl of the survivieg edlity (MRS 924,200,

7) Effective date snd time of fillng: {optionsl) must ot be. later than 99 days sfter tha contifieatd i filad)
Dot | e ]

= Amented aad mstalad gricias may be attached amnhmmrmmm‘mmewohao{ma. Flaass eniife fhem
‘Rawurmm and Restated.” sceordingly. The to sccompEny resteted aricles arsrebed by the acretary of slae
L ded andior ted artiches. wmwunswuw(muwmﬁwmw =Nevada
mlmmm&.wmﬁm{dﬁm the anices of merger may: ol conta tothe ts of
surviving aniity excapt that e namo of the surviving antity may ba changad.,

) . Mot Scrbai of St 2 A KGR PIgE 5
Tivis form mest be sccomipiaind By approptiate foes i Rovisad: 14645
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BARBARA K, CEGAVEKE
Socretary 618
202 North Earson Street.
Carson City, Movads 807014204
{775} 6845708

‘Wobsite: wew.mvEesgov

Articles of Merger
{PURSUANT TO NRS 924,300}

Page 6

USE BLAEK THK ONLY « DO ROT MSHLGHT AROVE SPACE IF FUR OFFIGE WSE ONLY

aams mnnmwwwoﬂwum um« All onaral partnors of
Hmited partnerships Alk general pmmsufm'h Himited-Gisbity Emited
mmmmawﬁﬁhumlewmmmmw
aiber if D are no Managers; A trustee of each Hevatla bisiness trust (MRS 9242301

D If theee 2re mors thab four merging ontiies. check box and sitesh an 812" x 117 blank shiest
comiaining the mmmmﬁhnm«ﬁmmmwﬁmmwaﬂ

Bresideni L izmans |
Tt Daie
4 W . -
Hame of merging entity 3 _
X £ 3 CI—
Signature Title - Dta

.ﬂa'rn’énf merging entity

Tt arfilas of mierger misl be signed by sach forign constitient ety in b taner provided by the i goverming 2 (NS
SN0} Additionsl signatune biocks may be addad to this page or at an aitichmen, By iseded.

IMPORTANT: ¥ 2iue toinciuge any of the above niormanon and submit wiih the froper foes may caisé this fling 1o be reiecied,

This foem riust be accompanied by eppropriste fees. Mmmmydmmwhgs
Fevdsited: 1:6.15

41712018 7:05 AM
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BARDARA K, CEGAVSKE s
202 North Carcon:
Wﬁh Nﬂm‘%ﬂi
e WMM -
Fibed hm uffive of | Jmum W(ux%-n
i 557&&

:m- Ihrradné it

i‘.s'&“:k’;?;‘i?.';"‘*’ 03/14/2015 11:08 AM |

miﬂ Of cw lent 1§'ﬂ€ QTNNIJI.& | Vi i o Noide

to NRS 78.209 /08349-190
Contificaty of Changs filsd Pursysntto NRS 78269
Shgmy Labe; e

A mmmam:wnmwnmvmwmmmmmmy
required approvel of th stacidiolders.

&, The cument nurstion of authorized shenes aeil the par value, it any, oﬂmﬂuuwwﬂe&ﬂw,
sharey befons ie change: L I
mmmwwm&mmmm perslmos

tmmmberoraumwmmmgw%diw!umm«m#mﬂmm
e change:

7,500,000 shases of sommon stosk, 000 pﬂ"\l’oiue per share,

5, mmﬁrmm«mmmm«m‘lm&wmwmmamm

for enth ipsued shard of the samic das or series; 5

I-foes1 08 revierse stock split. 622,985,833 mmmummm&g&ﬂw
prer shhase, 4all msm,mmwmmmmwmwmwmm

6, The provisions, fany, for s issaance of fastions) Shems, wd i B suainee oF
mhmdgmwmmmmﬂammmm ip shaecs
Mﬁ.ﬂ‘&,, : A

Mg fractional shires shell be isswed n connigetion with m&::g«ngmmm ts;ﬁml:dm W
2, Extiibic A, _

7. Effective dale amd fme of fling: (cpbooal)  Datst  March 17,2015 Timer
&Swm( . fmust not be ke an 50 days aber the cactiiice ie fled)

e j - iy
MPGITANT: Fatirn b inchds ey of te St islsdlion 80d submit w4 4 propet fhes miry cauce this Tiing to be ejeiiad.
Mereasa oy o Sabe Sl S
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per shure, shall be rouided up to the nearest whole shate of ¢omimon-stock, 30,007 par
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Secrerary of Srae

Job Number:
Reference Number:
Expedite:

Through Date:

STATE OF NEVADA

OFFICE OF THE
SECRETARY OF STATE

Certified Copy

C20160428-2958
00010287257-72

JEFFERY LANDERFELT
Deputy Secrefary
Jor Commercial Recordings

April 29, 2016

The undersigned filing officer hereby certifies that the attached copies are true and exact
copies of all requested statermnents and related subsequent documentation filed with the
Secretary of State’s Office, Commercial Recordings Division listed on the attached

report.

Document Number(s)

20160192914-55

Description
Amendment

Certified By: Christal Shirley
Certificate Number: C20160428-2958
You may verify this certificate

online at http:/lwww.nvsos.gov/

Commerciat Recording Division
202 N. Carson Street
Carson City, Nevada 89701-4201
Telephone (775) 684-5708
Fax (775) 684-7138

Number of Pages
1 Pages/1 Copies

Respectfully,

BARBARA K. CEGAVSKE
Secretary of State
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Filed in the office of [Document Number

20160192914-55

Filing Diate and Time
e 0472812016 2:42 PM

State of Nevada Entity Number

Certificate of Amendment C8549-1985

{(PURSUANT TO NRS 78.385 AND 78.390)

USE BLACK INK ONLY - DO NOT MGHLIGHT ABOVE SPACE IS FOR OFFICE USE DNLY

(Pursuant to NRS 78,385 and 78.390 - merluuam of Stock)

1. Name of corporation:
‘Sigma Labs, Inc.

2 The articles have been amended as follows: (provide article mu if available)

'I‘heﬁtslmpatagraphsoi'ARTICLENofﬂaeAnmuieddem:eﬂArﬁclaofhmpnraﬂmofS&gma'
{Labs, Inc. shall be amended to read in their entirety as follows:

* The total number of shares of all classes of capital stock which the corporation shall have authority to
‘issue s 25,000,000 shares. Stockholders shall not have any preemptive rights, nor shall stockholders have
‘the right to cumulative voting in the election of directors or for any other purpose.

' The classes and the aggregate number of shares of stock of each class which the corparation shall have
{authority to issue are as follows:

" {a) 15,000,000 shares of common stock, $0.001 par value ("Common Stock”);

 (b) 10,000,000 shares of preferred stock, $0.001 par value ("Preferred Stock").

3. The vote by which the stockholders holding shares in the corporation entitling them to exercise
at least a majority of the voting power, or such greater proportion of the voting power as may be
required in the case of a vote by classes or series, or as may be required by the provisions of the

articles of incorporation” have voted in favor of the amendment ES:i gremerlhan 50% j

4, Effective date and time of fiing: (optional)  Date: | &/~ J&-20/d> Time: [ QQH 5";}‘
cedificate is

{rust not be later than 80 days after the certi

5. Signature: {required)

*if any proposed ame w«mmmmuwmwmmmmwmwma
outstanding shares, then the must be approved by the vote, in addition to the afirmative vote othamwise required, of
the holders of shares rep ing @ majority of the voling pawer of sach class or seties affecied by the amendment regandless to

{MPORTANT: Failure to include any of the sbove information and submit with the proper fees may csuses this-fillng 10 be rejectad.

d Nevecde Secrefary of Stets Amend Proft-Alier
This fomm must be ypanied by app fees. " Rwvisad: 1518




EX-3.2 4 k021617 _ex3z2 hum EXHIBIT 3.2 CERTIFICATE OF CHANGE

STATE OF NEVADA
mem x;. c;em;l:sx.e tercial Recordings Divislon
e = o m:s%?m
ﬂmam.mrmomr ﬁﬁ’@macm
Depane e Fut (P78} Ae 7136
i Gl agrer mmrn‘w
mwm
SECRETARY OF STALE
Febroary 13,2017

Job Number: CAI 702130906

Reference Number: 00010548853-34

Expedite:

Through Date:

The uridersignied filing officer herehy certifies that the atfached copies sré true and exact
capics: of all z=quested mwnmaandmfﬂaa sebsequent documentation filed withi the
Seemstary of State’s Offies, Comumnardinl Recordings Division listed on e stvached
repart.

Document Number(s)  Description Number of Pages
017005379156 Stock Split 2 Pages/1 Copies

BARBARA K. CEGAVSKE
Cerlified By CHitstal Shiney )
Ceaificate Numbar, £20170213-0605
You mymﬁﬁﬁfah cedtificate
online at hikp:isw. nvsos.gow

i:’furmwﬂal mwﬂh&mﬁﬂm

P e
G845
mmga% 7138

|
j
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Fm;d ity the oifice of [THcamen Nikber

m-,.nc,.&, L 201 mﬂ?a‘i-&&

to NRS 78.209

2 Tise bomed of iractors havs wdapled  resplution puruant 16 NRS 76,200 and have obtained on
required approvel of the stuckbiokiss. i ? J

3. Tt current number of authardzed shisres and the iF f each cless or e, if eny, of
b Riepfosbia e o ww ‘any, of ea or eny,

;T:numwwmau snaresanummarm nny wmwnrmmﬂm of shares after
e gl i ——
7SUOGWMEQMNMWWJ p:rnlueperm

B T Ty aoniar

5 mmmqfsnmwtwmw dansa;mm ﬂ-rw.mbemsmhmnmmme
for sach iwouad share of e Samb Ciass of foroe: . ;
Tefioe2 reverse stock SpliL. 6,307,577 cumciilly patstanding shass of pomaon sivck, $0.001 wm

per share, will hwa,m,sm shug.:o%’mn | slonk, masr puwhlspuwz: afier the ging nppt.;glﬁ,

8 The provisiccs, mmemu mwmmpaywumy«m af
SCHp 10 mmm%sa entitied to & raction of & share and he peroertiage sl Mm

ffocizd Rkt . Sl e e e
g‘%&% e shail be issaot 6 Goonsotion with bmommmwmmmm
N

m:mu wmamwmnml

— Pmssdwtandc@_am_____ )
Tita:
IMPORTANT: Failure:Ag inciude sny of the sbove information and subemit with e prapoer fens moy caure this. Ming 1o be refsctsd

s form muiar Ba sceompRnted by coreErens faes. MM"W&%




Exhibit A to Certificate of Change Pumuan: v KRS 15209
Sigma E:hs-. Lnc,
3
Any fractionu] shares that résalt Trom the reverse spiil ofeongtion sigek, $0.001 par valie

per sk, shall be roanded ep o the nearist whole share of eommon stock, SO0D4 par
valoe per share., '
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Exhibit 3.1 Certificate of Designation hittps:/fwww see. gov/ Archives/edgar/data/78861 /000 10787821 70002...

EX-3.1 3 f2k021617_ex3z1.htm EXHIBIT 3.1 CERTIFICATE OF DESIGNATION

STATE OF NEWVADA
BARBARA K CEGAVSEE JEFFERY LANDERFELT
et ety of St Depi Sgereny
Jor Comineryial Recorahgs
OFFICE OF THE
SECRETARY OF STATE
Certified Copy
Febmary 15, 2017

Job Number: C20T70216-0209
Reference Number:
Expedite:
Tlirough Date:

The undessigned filing officer hereby certifies that the attached copies e true and sxact
copies of all requested statements and related subsequent docamentation filed witle thi
Geeretary of State’s Offics, Commercial Recordings Division listed on the aitached

TEPOIL
Document Wumber(s)  Description Numnber of Pages
201 TOO69377-52 Certificate of Designation 12 Papes/| Capies

Respectﬁlﬂy

Lodiows K. Ggmtp
BARBARA K. CEGAVSKE
Secretary of Stale

Certified By: Nita Hbshman
Certificate Number: C20170216-0209
“ou may venfy this cerificate

anling at hitp:fiwww.ny sos.gov/

Commercial Recording Division
202N, Carson Street
Carsoir City, Nevada 897014201
Telephoriz (775) 684-5708
Fast (775) 684-7138%
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Exhibit 3.1 Certificate of Designation hitps://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/7T88611/0001078782170002..,

RN T

Fllerfm Ihﬁ ffice of | Dewm s Smbe

LT e .
Tiate nd Time
S.;&“‘:é‘af;:";"’“lg_g; 512017 3:12 PM
Stare of Mevada Ic 3.1985
Cettificate of Designation
(PURSUANT TO NRS 78.1353)
USE BEATHINK BN - DO NOT HIHLIGHT ) ABCNE TGS FOR OFPICE UE DALY
MM&MEQ&
{Pursiant to MRS 78.1955)
1. Name of gorpadaficn:
Sigmg Lebs, Ine.

2. By resolution of the board of directors pursuant fo a provision in the aaﬁc:bso‘lmryeraﬁun this
cerificate astabiishes the followdng regarding the voling powers, designalions, preferencis,
lirnltations, restricians and relalive rights of the follswing class or serias of sb:ﬂ:& ) :

The undmmed Niark Cola, does herehy centify that:

1. He i the duly setieg Chief Exeeutive Officer of Sigma Labs, inc.rumo:mommd and existing
undér Chapter 78 6f the Névaga Revised Statutes (e

2, The Camoration is sutharized Lo issye 10,000,000 sharms dfpmfeged stock, Beze of which Qigrse huve

Bree issved.
3. Purguant to agthority conferred upen the Bogtd uf DHrectors by the Ammdadw:keam Artietes of
Incorporation ¢f the ion, &5 : st o the pi of G {18,195 of Chagitis

78 of the Nevada Revised Stanites, 5aid Board crfD'lmtDrs by wnenimous wiitien consent on Februsry 13,
2017, adopted 2 resobation establishinia the sights, pmf'armm privileges mrimmcﬁmnsof, and the
numiber of shapes comprisitip, the Carporation's Serios A Preferred Stock, which resohition is as follaws:

3. Effective date of fiing: (optional} : sy
{rest notBe |ater than 90 days aflec the sartficate is Sled)
4, Signatare: (required)

X//%g /ﬁf

Slgrintiire. of Officer ~._
Filing Fee; §176.4 W

IMPORTANT: Faiture b ricluzio ey of Ve above i ubiit with tho proper feas may 2ouAe hia Ring i be rejacted. :
This form sl be SCEOMEeNad. iy HGrOon e fros oo ‘Wmm :
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Exhibit 3.1 Certificate of Designation

3of 13

CERTIFICATE OF DESIGNATION OF RIGHYS, PREFERENCES AND PRIVILEGES

OF
SERIES A PREFERRED STOCK
OF SIGMA LABS, INC.
4 Nevaida corporation
The undersigned, Merk Cola, does hereby eertify that:

L. Hels the duly acting Chicf Executive Officer of Sipma Labs, Ine., a corporation.
wrganized and existing under Chapter 78 of the Nevada Revised Statutes (the *Corporation™).

2 The Corporstion is authorized w issue 19,000,000 shares of preferrsd stack,; rione
of which shares have bees issued.

% Pmmnitﬂauﬂmﬂymnfﬁlwdwnnﬂ!gma!duﬁDwmbymzﬁmdedmd

Restaied Auticles of Incoiporation of the C o the
prosisions of Settion 78, 195 of Chapter 78 of the Ncmﬂ& Revised ﬁmm, said Board of

Drirectors, by unsnimews wrilten-Gotisént on Peébrugry 13, 2007, adupted o resclution establishing
the rights, prefersiices, privileges snd restrictions of and the number of shapés comprising, the
Corperation's Series A Preferred Stock, which resolution it as. follows:

RESOLVED, that & serics of Preferred Stock of the Corporation, having the rights,
preferences, privileges and restrictions, and the numbér of shm‘mcomtlrunng sueh series-and the
designation of such serigs, set foeth bslow be, and it herehy is, autherized by the Board of
Directors of the Corporation. pursiant to euthority given by the Corporation’s Amended and
Restated Articles of Incorporation, as amended.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors hereby fixes gnd

determings the number of shevés constitufing, and fhe rights, preferences, privileges and
restrivtions relating 1o, a new series of Prefewed Stock as Tollows:

036720812 2910532

hitps:/fwww.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/788611/00010787821 70002...
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Exhibit 3.1 Certificate of Designation

Sertion1.  Definitions. For the purposes bersof, the fallowing texnts thall heve the
following meanings:

“Affiliate™ mecans any Person thet, directly or indireetly theough one or more
intermediaries, ¢unttols or is controlled by or is under conupon control with & Person, gs such
termis are used in and construed under Bule 405 of the Sesurities Act.

“Alternyte Consideration” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 7d).

“Attribution Parties” shafl have the mganing set forth s Seotion 6(d).

“Beneficial Qwniership Limitation” shall hiave the menning sef forth in Section 6(d).

"Business Daw" means any day except any Saturday, any Sunday, aiy day which i3 o
federal legal hioliday in the United Swtes or any diy on which banking tstitsitions in the State of
Mewr York are authorized or required by law op other governmental action te ¢lose.

“Buy-In" shall have the meaning st Forth in Section 6(e)(iv).

“Commission™ means the United States Securities and Exchange Comamission.

“Crmmon Steck™ mesns the Corporation’s common stock, par value $0.001 par share,
and-stock of any other class of securities inta which such securities may hersafier be reclassified
or changed.

“Common Stock Eaquivalents™ meéans any seeurities of the Corporation which would
eatitle the holder thereof to acquite ot any itme Cemmon Stock, inckiding, witliout Hmitation,
any debt, preferrad stack, rights, optiofs, wattdnls oF other instrument that ie at any time

convertible info or excrgisable 6t exchanpeably for, or stherwise entitles the halder theveof to
receive, Common Stock.

“Conversion Date” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 6a).
“Conversion Price” shall have the mianing set forth in Section 6{5).

L?_og@:sm_ﬁhm“ means, eo]]mve]y, the shares of Commen Steck issuable upoen
wonversion of the shares of Preferred Stock in accordanes with the tsiins hersof.

“Distrintion” has the messing set forth in Section 7(c).

“Exchange Act” mieans. the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the miles
and regulations promulgated thereunder.

“Fundamental Transscfion™ shall have the meaning set forth in Section 7).
“Hplder” shal] have the meaning gives such termi in Scction 2.
"[ssuc Price” shall be $4.12.

Q30710020 210532

hitps://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/788611/0001078782170002...

4013

4/17/2018 7:12 AM




Exhibit 3.1 Certificate of Designation

50f13

“Liguidation” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 5:

“New Yeork Courts” shall have the toeaning sct forth in Section 8(d},
“Notige of Counversion™ shall have the meaning set forth in Section 6(a).

“Diiginl # tiicans the date ufﬂw first {ssuanieé of any shares of the Proferred

Stock less of the muaber of wansfiss of any particular sharey of Proferred Stock and
regardless of the number of certificates which may be fssued to evidente sach Preferred Stock,

“Person” memis an individual or corporstion, parmership, trust, Incorporated or
unincorporated assacialion, joint wepre, limited Hability company, joint stock sompany,
governmment (ot an agency or subdivision theseof) or other entily of any kind,

“Preferted Stock™ shall bave the meaning set forth.in Section 2.
“Purchase Rights” shall have the meaning set forth in Section by,

“Becurifies Act” means the Stcusitics Ast of 1933, &s amended, and the: rales and
tegulations promulgated thereunder:

“Shiare Defivery Date” shalt hiave the sioaning set forth in Section 6(¢).
“Standerd Segilement Period” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 6(c).
“Successor Entity” shatl have the meaning set. forth in Sectivn 7{d].

“Trading Day” means a day on which the prineipal Trading Marketis open for business.

“IWM” means Aty of the following markets or exclunges on whish the
Common Stoek is listed of quoted for trading on the: date in questiors the NYSE MKT, die
Nasdag Capital Market, the Nascaq Globat Market, the Nasdaq (ilobal Select. Markel; the New
York Stock Exchange, OTCQB or OTCQX (or any suceessors to any of the foregoing).

ransfer Agent” means Interwest Transfer Company, [ne., fhe current transfer agent of
the Cmpany, with & mailing address of 1981 Murray Holladay Rmd  Suite: 16D, Salt Lake City,
Ut 84117, and asiy successer ransfér agent of the Compamy.

Section 2, ;mount and: Par V: The series of peeferred stock shall be
designated 25 83 Sories A Cmvmi'bte Prefered Stock (the “Preferted Stock”) and the number of
shares so designated shall be up 1o 1,621,500 (which mmber of shares shall not be subjest to
imgrease withiowt the written consent of the holders of 2 majority of the then-outstanfing shares of
the Prefored Stock (cachi, a “Helder” and collectively, the “Holdéts™)). Each shaie of Proferred
Srock shall have & par value of $0.001 per share,

Section3.  Dividends Holders shall be ewtitled to teceive, and the Corporstion shall
pay, dividends with respect to their shares of Preferred Stock as and when paid to the holders of
Commen Stock on an as converted basis, ignorisg for sioh purpeses any Bmitations on
conversions hereunder:

GRTIHON 1910532
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Sectiond,  Vofing Rights. Except as otherwise provided beréin of as otherwise
required by taw, the Prefecred Stock shall have no voting rights. Howevar, as long as any shates
of Preferred Stock are outstanding, the Corporation shall not, withaur the affirmative vete of the
Haolders of 2 majority of the then ouitanding shares of the Prefemed Stock, (4} alter or change
adversely the powers, preferences or rights given fo ihe Prefirred Stock of alter or amend Tis
Cerfificate of Desigation, (b) arherd its arilcles ¢f incofporation or ottier charter documients in
any manner that adverscly affects any rights of the Holders, (o) inercese the nusiber of
?mhonaed shaves of Preferred Stock, or (4) enter into any sgrepment with respeet to gny of the
oregoing

Section 3. Liguidetion. Upon sny lguidation, dissolution or windingup of the
Corpomt:on. whether voluntary or tnvaluntary (a “Liguidation”, the Heldeos skall be entitled io
receive disiributions ot of the assess, whether capital or suplus, of the Corperation on & porf
passu basis with the bolders of ‘Comirion Stick, on an as-if converted to Common Stock basis,
ignoring for suck purposes any restrictions on conversion hereunder,

Section. 6,
sions af lder, Sach share of Preforred Stock shall be
convertible, at aﬂynmc mﬂ from ume to ﬁmc ﬂomﬂxdaﬁerﬂﬁ@nn“ln&[ Issue Dite at
the optisn of the Holder theresf] into that fiurnber of shares of Commen Stock (subjeet'to:
the Hmilations set forth in Section 6(d)) determined by dividing the Issud Prite by the
Conversion Price. Holders shall effect conversions by provigding the Carpomtion with the
furm of conversion notise atfached hereto 4s Anex A (a "Notice of Contersion™). Bach
Molice of Conversian shall specify the nimber of shiares of Proferred Stock: to be
converted, the number of shares of Preferred Stock swned prior to the conversicn. at
issue, the number of shares of Preferred Stock owned subssgient to the don gt
issue and the cate op which such corversion is i be effectsd, which dats may ot be
prior io the dae the applisable Holder delivers by facsinile, cinail or wwng‘h( courier
such Notice of Conversiot 10 the Corporatien (such daie, the “Cuny
Conversion [ate is speeified in a Notice of Cotiversion, the Conversion
date that such Notice of Conversion to the Corporation is desmed delivered hersunder,
Na ink-original Nofice of C ion shall be teguired, nor shall any medallion
guerantee {or other type of guarasitce or notarization) of afy Motee of Conversion form
be required. The calculations and eritsies set forth in the Notice of Conversion shall
control i the absente of manifest or mathematical grror. To effect conversions of shares
of Preferved Stock, a Holder shall mot be required to sumrender the corlificate(s)
representing the shires of Preferred Stock to the Corporstion unless all of the shares of
Preferred Stock represenfed thereby are so cowverted, in which case such Holder shall
defiver the certificate representing, such shares of Prefered Stock prompily following the
Conversion Date at issue. Shares of Preferred Stock. conwerted into Common Stock oF
redeemed in accordanca with the terms hereof stiall be canceled and shall fot be reissued.

B) Conversiosi Price. The conversion price for the Prefeed Stock shull
gqual $4.12, subject to adjustment herein (the “Conversion Price™).

Q30720012 TIMISRY
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Holder’s Affilistes (such Persons, “Atfribution Parties™) would benefieially own in
excess of the Beneficial Ovwnership Limitation. For puiicses of the forggoing seniénce,
the tmber of shares of Common Stock bersficially owned by such Holder and its
Affiliates and Atiribution Parties shall ineludé the mumber of ehares of Comnpn Stoek
issuable npon conversion of the Preferred Stock: with respect to-which such determination
is being made, b shall exclide fhe munber of shares of Comiton Stk whilch are
issuable mpon (i) conversion of the remaining, unconverted Preferred Stock beneficially
owned by such Holder or any of its Affiliates or Atwibution Parties and (i) exercise ot
conversion of the unexercised or uncemverted portion of any other securides of the
Corporation subifcet to 4 limitation om conversion or exercise anelogous to the limitation
contained Hepetn {including, witheut limitation, the Preferred Stock) bencficially ewned
by such Holder or any of its Affiliatss or Attributio Partics. Exoa@tas set fertt in the
prewdwzmtaﬂse.formu'pwsofms Hott 6(d), benefie shadl be
calenlated in accordance with Section 13(d) of the Exchange Act and the niles and
raagulmm promulgated theesrnder, To the extent that the Imitation confsined in thig
Segtion 6(d) applics, the deiermination of whether the Preferred Stock is converfible fin
relation fo other seéuritiés otined by such Holder together with may Affiliates and
Atgibution Partics) and of Bow many shares of Preferred Stock ave convertible shall b in
the sole discretion of such. Holder, and the submission of a Wotice of Conversion shall be
deamied to be such Holdet's determination of whether the sbares of Proferred Stock may
be converted (in relation to otlier securities owned. by such Holder together with any
Afﬁhabesmﬂﬁt\ﬁhmcn?aﬂics}mdhwmws}mes of the Proferred Stock are
convertible, in cach case subjest to the Bevefivial Ownersiip Limifation. To erisure
complinnee with this restriction, cach Holder will be deemed to represent to the
Corporaiion each time it delivers n Natice of Conversion that such Nofice of Cotversion
has not violated the restricons set forfh In fhis. pamgm;nhamd the Carporation shall have
ne ohligation to verify or confirm the = y of sugh doterminati In addifion, a
defermination as to any group sfaii &5 contemplated above shall be determined i
dcoordance with Section 13(d} of the Exchange At and the rules and regulations
prosulgated thereymder. For purposes of this Section 6(d), in determining the natmber of
outstanding shares of Comman k. a Holder may rely on the number of outsinding
shares of Commen Stock as smred in the most recent of the following: () the
Corporation’s. miost re¢ent periodic or anmual report filed with the Commission, as te
case may be, (i) a more secent public anm oy the Cor ion or (i} a more
recent written notice by il Corporatior or the Transfer Agent sefting forth the number of
shares of Common Stogk ourstanding. Upon the written or oral request of 2 Holder, the
Corporation shall withitl vwo Trading Days sonfivi orally and in wifting té sich Holder
the mmbcr of shavés of Common Stock then outstanding. [n any case, the number of
g shaves of C Stock shall be determined afier piving effect to the
conversion or execise of seotirities of the Carporation, incliding the Prefered Stock, by
such Holder or ifs Affiliates or Attribution Parties sincé the date as o which stich number
of outstanding shares of Common Stock was reported. The “Beneficial Ownesship
Limitation™ shail be 4.99% of the number of shares of the Common. Stock outstanding
immediately after giving effect to the issuance of shares of Common Stork issusble upon
conversion of Preferred Stock held by the applicable Holder, A Holder, upon notice to
the Ccrpnmimﬂ, may ingrzase or decrease the Bencfieidl Owmiership Limitation
provisions of this Section 6(d) spplicable fo its Preferred Stock provided that the
Bensficlal Uwnership Limitation in no event exceeds 9.99% of the number of shares of
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other business combination) (each & “Fundamestal Transgotinh™), then, upon any
subsequent conversion of tis Preferrad Stock, the Holder shall have the: right 1o receive,
for each Comversion Shers that would have been issusble upon steh conversion
immediately prior to the oceurrence of sugh. Fundwmm;sé Trarsaction {without regard to
any limitation it Section: 6{d} on the: cenversion of this Prefered Steek), the number of
shares of C Stock of the suctess o&acquulagmmcmﬁm oro-fthe Corparation,
if it is the surviving corporation, and any additi {the: *Aliemnate
Considerafion”) reesiwshle as 1 regult of such Fundamental Tmmcuon by arha]hder of the
rumbef of shares of Common Stock for which this Preferred Stoek is convertible
lmmctlmbct)r peior to such Funtd@riental Trmsaction (mmou! mgu] to any limitation in
Section 6(d) on the conversion of this Preferred Stock). For purposes of any such
ersion, the determination of the Conversion Price shall be sppropriately adjnsted 1o
apply to such Aliernare Consideration based os the amount of Aliemate Consideration
issuablé in respect of one share of Common Stack in such Pundamentat Fransaction, and
the: Corporation shall apporion the Conversion: Price anbag the Alternate Consideration
in a régsonable manner reflacting the relative valus of any different comporients of the
Alternate Consideration. [f holdess of Common Stock #re given wmce as to the
securities, cash or property to be received in a Fuadamental Tr thmth;HoIdﬁ-‘
shall be given fie same choice as to the Alternate Cansideration it regeives. lipan dmy
conversion of this Prefetred Stoek followitig such Fimdameatsl Transaction. T the
extent nécessary to effectnate the Foregoing provisions, any suceessor to the Uerporation
or survivitrg enkity in such Findamental Trenszetion shall file a new Cenificate of
Designation with the samg termns and conditions and issue o the Holders new preferred
stook consistent with thé foregoing provisiais and ewidencing the Holders” right to.
conveit such preferred stock info Alternate Consideration, The Corporation shalf eatise.
any successor Gnlity in a Fundaméntal Transsciion n which e Corporation is nat the
susvivar (the “Successor Bnfity”) to assume in ’wrmng alt of the obligations of the
Corporation under this Certificate of Designation 1n ¢ with the provisions of
this Seeton 7(d) prier i such FPundamental Tmmon aivd shall, at the option of the
fioider of fhis Prefermed Stock, deliver to the Holder in skchiange fuﬂbza!’zmd.sm.a
security of the Successor Entity evidénted by a writtsn fnstrument substantially smilar in
form and substanoe to thig Proferted Stock whick is convertible for & corfesponding
numnber of shares of capital stock of such Suecessor Entity (or s parinl entity) gqmvalcnl
fo the thares of Common Stock sequirable and receivable tpon convérsion of this
Preferred Stock. (witheit tegard to eny Himiitations on the conversion of this Preferred
Stock) prior to such Fundamental Transaction, and with a covversion price which gfinlies
the: conversion price hereunder to such shares of capital sioek (but taking into account the
relative value of the shares of Common Slock pursuant {o sucl; Fundsmental Transaction
and the valuc of such shares of capital steck, such numbier of shatcs Qfﬁ@@i’ia{ stock and
sisch coriversion price being for the prrpose of protecting the cconomsie value of this
Preferred Stock immodiatély prior 0 the Consumimation of such Pundarental
“Transaction, and which is feasonably satisfactory in form and substance o the Holder:
Upon the oeourrence of eny such Fundamental Transaction, the Stostssor Bmtity shall
; d tg, and be substimted for {so that fom and after the date of such Fundamental
Transaotion, the provisiens of flis Cenificate of Designation refering to the
“Corporatipn™ shall réfer instead fo the Successor Extity), and may exercise every right
and power of the Corporation and shall assume all of the obligstions of the Corporation

1
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ander this Certifieate of Designation. with the same effect.as if such Sucoessor Entity had

been nanted as the Corporation herein.
8} Calewletiops, All calculations iinder this Section 7 shall be made to the

rearest cent or the gearest L/I00th of a share, ax the case may be. For purposes of this
Bection 7, the munber of shares of Common Stock deemsd to be issned and oufstanding
a5 of & given date shall be the sum of e number of shares of Common Stock (exchiding
any treasury shares of the Corporation} issued and swstanding,

) Noti

i Adiustment tp Copversion Price. Whenever the Conversion Price
is adjusted pursuast 10 koy privision of this Seation 7, the Cotpotation shefl
prompily delivér fo each Helder by facsimile or email a nofics setting forth die
Cenversion Price after such adjustinent and setting forth & brief statement of the
facts mq,mring such adjustment,

Notice: to Alfow Cogvetsion by Holder, If (A) the Corporation
shall deﬂ!:ae a dividend (or sny other distnbution in whatever form) on the
Comeen Stock, (B) the Corporation shall declare a specisl fonrscurring cash
dividend on or a redemption of the Comniofi Stock, {C) the Corporation shall
authorize the granting to all hodders of the Commeon Stock of tights or warrants io
subscrbe for o1 purchase any shiares of capital stock of any class or of any righits,
(D) the approval of mny steckhotders of the Corporation shal] e required in
conacetion with any reclassification off thé Comumon Stock, any comsalidation or
merger to wWhich the Corporation is a party, any sale of tansfer of all or
substantiafly all of the assets of the Corpotition, or amy comipulsory shure
exchange whereby the Common Stoek is converted into other securities, cash or
propety or (E) the Corporation shall muthorize the voluntary or invuhumtary
dissolution, liquidation or witdisg up of e affairs of thie Corporation, thew,
cach rase, the Corponation shall cause to be filed #t each office sr apency
miaintained for the purpose of conversign of this Preforred Stock, and shall cavse
to be delivered by facsimile or email to each Holder at its last ficsimifle mumber
or email address s it shall spwupmthc.mﬁboulm of the Carparation, at
Teast twenty (207 calendar days prior to the applicable record or effective date
‘hereinafter specified; a nodee smimg (x}lhjs da!e on wtuch & record is 1o b aken
for the purpose of such dividend o, rights or wais ar if
4 record is mttobetaken,thedmasofwhchth:hhld&‘abflhecmm Stack
of reerrd to be entitled to such dividend, distributions, redemption, rights or
warranis gre o be determined or {y) the dafe on whith such reclassification,
consalidation, mesger, sale, transfer or sharc cachanige is cxpected to become
effective of close, and the date as of which it is expesied that holdess of the
Compign Stock of tecord shall be entifled to exchenge their shares of the
Ceminon Stock for securities, cash or other property delivirable upon such
reclassification, onsolidation, merger, sale, transfer or share ciuﬂiangm, provided
that the failure to debiver such mofice or any defect therein or in the delivery
thereof shall not affect the validity of the corperaté action réqaired to be specified
in such notice. To the extent that any notice provided hereunder constitutes, or

jvd
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contains, materisl, non-public information repuding the Corpuration, the
Corporation shall simultanesusty file such notice with the Commission pursusat
to a Current Report on Form 3-K. The Helder shal rémain eatitled to vonvert ile
Preferred Stock {or any part hereof) during the 20-@ay period commencing of the
datz of such notice through the effective date: of the event triggering such notice
exeept us may otherwise be expressly set forth herein.

Sgetion 8. Misgellaneous.

a) Motices, Amy and all notices or other communivations. it defiveries 1o be
provided by the Holders hereunder m;:lm[mg, wmm: I!mm{m, any Motiee of
Conversion, shall be in writing and deli by imil w&m.a.ll,orswt
by a natiohally recognized dvernight colrier smw: addressed to the Corporation, at
Sigma Labs, lnc., 3600 Pisen del Sol, Santa Fe, New Mexico 37507, Attention: Mark
Cola, ¢-mail adch’csscolw@mgmlabsiwcom o such other -mail sddress or address ag
the Corporation may specify for such purposes by notice to the Holders defiversd it
gccordence with this Section B(a). Any and all noflices or ather commumigations or
deliveries to be provided by the Corporation hereunder shell e in wiiting sl delivered
personally, by facsimils or e-mail, ar sent by & nationally recognized overnight courler
scrvice addressed to each Holder at the facsimile number, ¢-mail address or address of
such Meolder eppewring on the books of the Corpomon Any votice o7 other
commirieation or deliveries lse;eunﬂer shall be deemed gweh and effective on the
earliest of (i} the date of transmission, if such natice or convenunication is delivered via
facsimile at the fmesimile nmber or e-mail st the e-mail sddress sef fouth in this
Seeilon 8{a) prior to $i30 pan, New York City fime) on any date, (i} the next Trading
Day sfter the date of trénsmission, if' such nofice or eommunication iy delivered vig
facsimile gt the facsimile number or el at the e-mail address sef forth i this
Sestion 8¢y on a day fhat is not & Trading Dy or later than 538 pu. (New Yok Ciy
timmie) on 4ny Trading Day, (i) the second Tradmg Day followiig the date of nmafling, i
sent by U.S. nationnlly recognized overight equrier servies; or (iv) upon detusl receipt
by the party 1o whom such telice is required io be given.

b) #bsolute Obligation. Except as exprelsly provided herein, no provigion of
this Certificate of Designetion shail alter or impair the obligation of the Corpogation,
which s absolate and uncondjtiomal, to pay liquidated damages, accrued dividends and
accraed interest, as applicable, on the shares of Preferred Stock st the time, place, and
rate, and in the coin or currency, herein preseribied.

c) Lost or Mutitated Preferved Stock Certificate. I a Holder's Preferred

Stock. certificate shall bc muh]atnck Tost, stolen or desfroyed, the Corporation shiall

seute and deliver, i and sitbstitution for end upon cancellation of & mutilated

certificate, or in ligu of or in substitution for a lost, stolen or destrayed sertificate, a now

certificate for the shares of Preferred Stock so: mutilated, lost, siolen of destroyed, but

anly upon receipt of evidencs of such loss, theft or destrustion ef such certificate, and of
the gwmership hareof reasonably satisfactory 1 the Corporation.

dy Coverning Lew.  All guestions concerning the construction, validity,
eafercement and interpretation of this Certificate of Designation shall be governed by aod

13
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k) Headines. The headings contained herein ave for comveniente paly, do not
comstitute a part of this Certificate of Designation and shal not be deemed 16 fimit or
affect any of the provisions hereof.
i Status of Converted ar Redeemed Preferred Stock, I any sheres of
Preferred Swck shall be converted, redesined or reacquired by the Corperation, such
shiates hall resume the status of authorized hut unissued shares of preferred stock and
shidl nig lomger be desipnated as fts Serles A Canvertibls Preferred Stock.
R ns st to s T B ESEY
i
]
i
15 £
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The undersigned declaces under penalty f pagury that the matters set oat in the
foregoing Certificets are true of his own knvwledge, Exeouted at Sanfa Fe, New Mexdoy, o this

15th day of February 2017.
L/{%ﬁ{mﬂ

Name: Mark J. €gla
Titls: Presi ind Chicf Bxeniitive Officer

CAUTRNE: J9HEA T
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ANNEX A.
NOTICE OF CONVERSION

(1O BE EXBCUTED BY THE REGISTERED HOLDER IN ORDER TO CONVERT SHARES
OF PREFERRED STGCK)

The undersigned hereby ¢lects to convert the sumber of shares of Series A Comvertible Prefetred
Stock indicated below into shares of common steck, par value $0.001 per share (the *Common
Stock™), of Bigma Labs, Inc, a Mevada corposstion (the “Corporation™), averding to the
conditions bereof, as of the date waitten helow, [¥ shares of Commen Sfock are to be issued in the
name of & Person other than the tridersigned, the undersipned will pay al] transfer taxes payable
with reapect thereto and is delivering herewith such cedificates and opinions as may be required
by m;ecmwbom No fee will be charged to the Holder for any comversion, exdept forany such
transfer taxes.

Conversion calovladons:
Dade to Efféct Conversivn:

Number of shares of Preferred Stock owned priorto Conversien:
Number of shares of Preferred Stock 1o be Converted:
Issue Price of shares of Prefered Stoek to be Converted:
Number of shares of Common Stack 1o b Issued:

Applieable Conversion Prise:

Number of shares of Preferred Stock teasit 1o C fon:
Adedress for Delivery:

oE
DWAC Instrustions:
Biker no:
Account no:
[HOLDER]
By
Nagrier
Title:
17
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Certificate of Designation For

Nevada Profit Corporations
{Pursuant to NRS 78.1955)

1. Name of comporation:
Sigma Labs, Inc.

2. By resolution of the board of directors pursuant te a provision in the articles of incarparation this
certificate establishes the following regarding the voting powers, designations, preferences,
limitations, restrictions and relative rights of the following class or series of stock.

The undersigned, John Rice, docs hereby certify that: 1. He is the duly acting Chairman and Chief
Exceutive Officer of Sigma Labs, [nc., a corporation enganized and existing under Chapter 78 of the
Nevada Revised Statutes (the “Corperation™. 2. The Corporation is authorized to issue 10,000,000 shares
of preferred stock, par value $0.001 per share, 1,621,500 of which Shares are designated Series A Preferred
Stock and none of which shares have been issued or are outstanding, 3. Parsuant to authority conferred
upen the Board of Directors by the Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Cotporation, as
amended, and pursuant to the provisions of Section 78.195 of Chapter 78 of the Nevada Revised Statutes,
said Board of Directars, by unanimous writien consent on April 3, 2018, adopted a resolstion establishing
the rights, preferences, privileges and resirictions of, and the number of shares comprising, the :
Corporation’s Series B Preferred Stock, which resolution is as follovs:
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CERTIFICATE OF DESIGNATION OF RIGHTS, PREFERENCES AND PRIVILEGES
OF
SERIES B CUNV'ER'_TIBLE PREFERRED STOCK
OF SIGMA LABS, INC.
a Nevada gorporation

The undersigned, John Rice, does hereby certify thar

1. He is the duly acting Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Sigma Labs, Inc.,
a corporation organized and existing under Chapter 78 of the Nevada Revised Statutes (the
“Corporation™).

% The Corporation is authorized to issue 10,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par
value $0.001 per share, 1,621,500 of which shares are designated Series A Preferred Stock and
none of which shares have been issued or are ouistanding.

3. Pursuant to authority conferred upon the Board of Directors by the Amended and
Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Corporation, as amended, and pursuant to the
provisions of Section 78.195 of Chapter 78 of the Nevada Revised Statutes, said Board of
Direstors, by unanimous written consent on April 5, 2018, adopted a resolution establishing the
rights, preferences, privileges and restrictions of, and the number of shares comprising, the
Corporation's Setles B Preferred Stock, which resolution is as follows:

RESOLVED, that a series of Preferred Stock of the Corporation, having the rights,
preferenees, privileges and restrictions, and the number of shares constituting such series and the
designation of such scries, set forth below be, and it hereby is, authorized by the Board of
Directors of the Corporation pursuant to authority given by the Corporation's Amended and
Restated Articles of Incorporation, as amended.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors hereby fixes and

determines the number of shares constituting, and the rights, preferences, privileges and
restrictions relating to, a mew series of Preferred Stock as follows:
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TERMS OF PREFERRED STOCK

Section1.  Definitions. For the purposes hereof, the following terms shall have the
following meanings:

“Affiliate” means any Person that, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, controls or is ¢ontrolled by or i3 under common control with a Person, as such
terms arc used in and construed under Rule 405 of the Securities Act.

“Alternate Consideration™ shall have the meaning st forth in Section 7(d).

“Attribution Parties™ shall have the meaning set forth in Section 6(d).

“Ben -eﬁcial Ownership Limitation™ shall have the meaning st forth in Section 6(d),

Business Dav" means any day except any Sawrday, any Sunday, any day which is a

federal legal holiday in the United States or any day on which banking institutions in the State of
New York are authorized or required by law or other governmental action to close.

“Buy-In" shall bave the meaning set forth in Section 6(c)(iv).

“Commission”™ means the United States Securities and Exchange Commission.

“Common Stock™ means the Corporation’s common stock, par value $0.001 per share,
and stock of any other class of securitics into which such securitics mey hereafier be reclassified

or changed.
“Common_Stock Equivalents” means any securities of the Corporation which would
entitle the holder thereof to acquire at any time Common Stock, including, without limitation,

any debt, preferred stock, rights, options, warrants or other instrument that is at any time
convertible into or exercisable or exchanpeable for, or otherwise entitles the holder thereof to

receive, Common Stock,
“Conversion Date” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 6(a).
“Conversion Price” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 6(b).

“Conversion Shares™ means, collectively, the shares of Commen Stock issuable upon
conversion of the shares of Preferred Stock in accordance with the terms hereof,

“Distribution” has the meaning set forth in Section 7(c).

“Exchange Act™ means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the rules
and regulations promulgated thereunder.

r ion™ shall have the meaning set forth in Section 7(d).
“Holder™ shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.
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“Issue Date™ means the date of the first issuance of any shares of the Preferred Stock,
regardless of the number of transfers of any particular shares of Preferred Stock, and regardless
of the number of certificates which may be issued to evidence such Preferred Stock

“Liguidation” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 5.

“New York Courts” shali have the meaning set forth in Section 8(d).

“Notice of Convérsion™ shall have the meaning set forth in Section 6(a).

“Person” means an individual or cerporation, partnership, trast, incorporated or
unincotporated association, joint venture, limited liability company, joint stock company,
government (or an agency or subdivision thereof) or other entity of any kind,

“Purchase Righis” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 7(b).

“Securities ACt” means the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and the rules and
regulations promulgated thereunder.

“Series B Preferred Stock” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2.

“Share Delivery Date” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 6(c).

“Standard Settlement Period” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 6(c).

“Stated Value™ shall mean $1,000.

“Successor Entity™ shall have the meaning set forth in Section 7(d).

“Trading Day” means a day on which the principal Trading Market is open for business,

“Trading Market” means any of the following markets or exchanges on which the
Commion Stock is listed or quoted for trading on the daté in queéstion: the NYSE MKT, the
Nasdag Capital Market, the Nasdaq Global Market, the Nasdag Global Select Market, the New
York Stock Exchange, OTCQB or OTCQX (or any successors to any of the foregoing).

“Transfer Agent” means Interwest Transfer Company, Inc., the current transfer agent of
the Company, with a mailing address of 1981 Muitray Holladay Road, Suite 100, Salt Lake City,
Utah 84117, and any suc¢essor transter agent of the Company.

Secton 2. pation, Ameunt Par Value. The series of preferred stock shall be
designated as its Serzes B Convertible Preferred Stock (the *Series B Preferred Stock™) and thie
number of shares so designated shall be 1,000 (which number of shares shail not be subject to
increase without the written congent of the holders of a majority of the then-outstanding shares of
the Series B Preferred Stock (each, a “Holder” and collectively, the “Holders™)). Each share of
the Serics B Preferred Stock shall have a par value of $0.001 per share and & stated value of
$1,000 per share (the “Stated Value™).
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Section 3. Dividends.

) Holders shall be entitled to receive, and the Corporation shall declare, on
each Conversion Date {with respect only to Preferred Stock being converted) cumulative
dividends at the rate per share (as a percentage of the Stated Value per share) of 10% per
annum, payable in cash within 10 days following each Conversion Date as set forth in
this Sectien 3{a). Netwithstanding the forcgoing, dividends payable pursuant to this
Section 3{a) shall cease to acurue as of the second annual anniversary of the Issue Date;
provided, however, any such dividends that have accrued prior to such date shall be paid
on each Conversion Date thereafter as provided herein. The foregoing dividends on ihe
Preferred Stock shall be calculated on the basis of a 368-day year, consisting of twelve 30
calendar-day periods, and shall accrue daily commencing on the applicable Issue Date,
and shall be deemed to acerue from such date whether or not declared and whether or not
there are profits, swrplus or other funds of the Corporation legally available for the
payment of dividends. Dividends shall cease to accrue with respect to any Preferred
Stock converted, provided that, the Corporation actually delivers the Conversion Shares
within the time period required by Section 6{c)(i) herein.

b) Holders Series B Preferred Stock also shall be entitled to receive, and the
Corporation shall declare and pay, dividends with respect to their shares of Preferred
Stock as and when deelared and paid to the holders of Comimon Stock on an ag-converted
basis, ignaring for such purposes any limitations on conversions hereunder,

Segtion4.  Voting Rights, Except as otherwise provided herein or as otherwise
required by law, the Series B Preferred Stock shall have no voting rights. However, as long as
any shares of Series B Preferred Stock are outstanding, the Corporation shall nof, without the
affirmative vote of the Holders of a majority of the then outstanding shares of the Series B
Preferred Stock, (a) alter or change adversely the powers, preferences or rights given to the
Series B Preferrad Stock or alter or amend this Certificate of Designation, (b) amend its articles
of incorporation or other charter documnents in any manner that adversely affects any rights of the
Holders, (c) increase the number of authorized shares of Series B Preferred Stock, or (d) enter
into any agreement with respect to any of the foregoing,

Section 3. Liquidation. Upon any liguidation, dissolution or winding-up of the
Corporation, whother voluntary or involuntary (a “Liguidation”}, the Holders shall be entitled to
receive distributions out of the assets, whether capital or surplus, of the Corporation on a pari
passt basis with the holders of Common Stock, on an as-if converted to Common Stock basis,
ignoring for such purposes any restrictions on eonversion hereunder.

Section 6, onversion,.

a) Conversions at Option of Helder. Each share of Series B Preferred Stock

shall be convertible, at any time and from time to time from and after the Original Issue
Date at the option of the Holder thereof, into that number of shares of Common Stack
(subject to the limitations set forth in Section 6(d)) determined by dividing the Stated
Value by the Conversion Price. Holders shall effect conversions by providing the
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Corporation with the form of canversion notice attached hereto as Annex A (a “Notice of
Conversion™). Each Notice of Conversion shall speeify the number of shares of Series B
Preferred Stock to be converted, the nutnber of shares of Series B Preferred Stock owned
prier 1o the conversion at issue, the number of shares of Series B Preferred Stoek owned
subsequent to the conversion at issue and the date on which such conversion is to be
effected, which date may not be prior fo the date the applicable Holder delivers by
facsimile, email or overnight courier such Notice of Conversion to the Corporation (such
date, the “Conversion Date™). If no Conversion Date is specified in a Notice of
Conversion, the Conversion Date shall be the date that such Notice of Conversion to the
Corporation is deemed delivered hereunder. No ink-original Notice of Conversion shall
be required, nor shall any medallion guarantee (or other type of guarantee or notarization)
of any Notice of Conversion form be required, The calculations and éntriés set forth in
the Notice of Conversion shall control in the absence of manifest or mathematical error.
To effect conversions of shares of Series B Preferred Stock, a Holder shall not be
required to surrender the certificate(s) representing the sharcs of Series B Prefirred Stock
to the Corporation unless all of the shares of Serics B Prefarred Stock represented thereby
are 50 converted, in which case such Holder shall deliver the certificate representing such
shares of Series B Preferred Stock promptly following the Conversion Date at issue.
Shares of Series B Preferred Stock converted into Cornmon Stock or redeemed in
accordance with the ferms hereof shall be canceled and shall not be reissued.

b} Convergion Price. The conversion price for the Series B Preferred Stock
shall equal $1.00, subject to adjustrhent as previded herein (the “Conversion Price”).

¢) Me ics of Conversion.

the cartier of @ Ihree G Tradmg Days and (n) the number of Trading Days
comprising the Standard Settlement Period afler each Conversion Date (the
“Share Delivery Date™), the Corporation shall deliver, or cause to be delivered, to
the converting Holder the number of Conversion Shares being acquired upon the
conversion of the Series B Preferred Stock, which Conversion Shares shall be free
of restrictive legends and trading restrictions. The Corporation shall deliver the
Conversion Shares electronically through the Depository Trust Company or
another established clearing corporation performing similar functions. As used
herein, “Standard Setilement Period” means the standard seftlement period,
expressed in a number of Trading Days, on the Corporation’s primary TFrading
Market with respect to the Common Stock as in effect on the date of delivery of
the Notice of Conversion.

ii. Failure to Doliver Conversion Shares. If, in the case of any Notice
of Conversion, such Conversion Shares are not delivered to or as directed by the
applicable Holder by the Share Delivery Date, the Holder shall be entitled to eleot
by written notice to the Corporation at any time on or before its receipt of such
Conversion Shares, to rescind such Conversion, in which event the Corporation
shall prompdy return to the Holder any original Series B Preferred Stock
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certificate delivered to the Corporation and the Holder shall promptly retium to the
Corporation the Conversion Shares issued to such Holder pursuant to the
rescinded Notice of Conversion,

4 &l 1 Ja

=

ii. igati Abso hite : Partial 1 | pges. Fhe
Corporation’s obligation to issue and deliver the Con Shares upon
conversion of Series B Preferred Stock in accordance with the ferms hereof are
absolute and unconditional, jrrespective of any action or inaction by a Holder two
enforce the same, any waiver or consent with respect to any provision hereof, the
recovery of any judgment against any Person or any action to enforce the same, or
any sctoff, counterclaim, recoupment, limitation or termination, or any breach of
alleged breach by such Holder or any other Person of any obligation to the
Corporation or any violatien or alleged violation of law by such Holder or any
other petson, and irrespective of any other circumstance which might otherwise
limit such obligation of the Corporation to such Holder in connection with the
issuance of such Conversion Shares; provided, however, that such delivery shall
not operate as a waiver by the Corporation of any such action that the Corporation
may have against such Holder. In the event a Holder shall elect to convert any of
all of the Stated Value of its Series B Preferred Stock, the Corporation may not
refuse conversion based on any claim that such Holder or any one associated or
affiliated with such Helder has been engaged in any vielation of law, agreement
or for any other reason, unless an injunction from a court, en notice to Holder,
regiraining and/or enjoining conversion of all or part of the Serfes B Preferred
Stock of such Holder shall have been sought and obtained, and the Corporation
posts a surety bond for the benefit of such Holder in the amount of 150% of the
Stated Valuc of Scties B Preferred Stock which Is subject to the injunction, which
bond shall remain in effect until the completion of arbitration/litigation of the
underlying dispute and the pioceeds of which shall be payable to such Holder to
the extent it obtains judgment. In the absence of such injunction, the Corporation
shall issue Conversion Shares and, if applicable, cash, upon a properly noticed
conversion. If the Corporation fails fo deliver to a Holder such Conversion Shares
pursuart to Section 6(c)(i) by the Share Delivery Date applicable to such
conversion, the Corporation shall pay to such Holder, in cash, as liquidated
damages and not as a penalty, for each $5,000 of Stated Value of Seres B
Preferred Stock being converted, $50 per Trading Day (inereasing to $100 per
Trading Day on the third Trading Day and increastag to $200 per Trading Day on
the sixth Trading Day after such damages begin to accrue) for each Trading Day
after the Share Delivery Date until such Conversion Shares are delivered or
Holder rescinds such conversion. Nothing herein shall limit a Holder’s right to
pursue actual damages or declare a Triggering Event pursuant to Section 10
hereof for the Corporation’s failure to deliver Conversion Shares within the
period specified herein and such Holder shall have the right to pursue all remedies
available to it hereunder, at law or in equity including, without limitation, a decree
of specific performance and/or injunctive relief, The exercise of any such rights
shall not prohibit a Holder from seeking to enforce damages pursuant to any other
Section hereof or under applicable law.
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v Compensation for Buy-In on Failure to Timely Deliver Conversion
Shares Upon Conversion. In addition to any other rights available to the Holder, it
the Corporation fails for any reason to deliver to a Holder the applicable
Conversion Shares by the Share Delivery Date pursuant to Section 6(c)(i), and if
after such Share Delivery Date such Holder is required by its brokerage fimm to
purchase (in an open market transaction or otherwise), or the Holders brokerage
firm otherwise purchases, shares of Common Stock to deliver in satisfaction of a
sale by such Holder of the Conversion Shares which such Holder was entitled to
receive upon the conversion relating to such Share Delivery Date (a “Buy-In"),
then the Corporation shall (A) pay in cash to snch Holder (in additian to any other
remedies available to or elected by such Holder) the amount, if any, by which (x)
such Holders total purchase price (including any brokerage comimissions) for the
Comman Stock so purchased exceeds (¥) the product of (1) the aggregate number
of shares of Commion Stock that such Holder was entitled to receive from the
conversion at issue multiplied by {2) the actual sale price at which the sell order
giving rise to such purchase ebligation was executed (including any brokerage
commissions) and (B) at the option of such Holder, either reissue (if surrendered)
the shares of Series B Prefirred Stock equal to the number of shares of Series B
Preferred Stock submitted for conversion (in which case, such conversion shall be
deemed rescinded) or deliver to such Holder the number of shares of Common
Stock that would have been issued if the Corporation had timely complicd with its
delivery requirements under Section 6(c)(i). For example, if a Holder purchases
shares of Common Stock having a total purchase price of $11,000 o cover a Buy-
{n with respect 10 an attempted conversion of shares of Series B Preferred Stock
with respeet to which the actual sale price of the Conversion Shares (including
any brokerage commissions) giving rise to such purchase obligation was a total of
$10,000 under clause (A) of the immediately preceding sentence, the Corporation
shall be required to pay such Holder $1,000. The Holder shall provide the
Corporation written notice indicating the amounts payeble to such Helder in
respect of the Buy-In and, upon request of the Corporation, évidence of the
amount of such loss. Nothing herein shall limit a Holder’s right to pursue any
other remedies available to it hereunder, at law or in equity including, without
limitation, a decree of specific performance and/or injunstive relief with respect to
the Corporation’s fajlure to timely deliver the Conversion Shares upon conversion
of the shares of Series B Preferred Stock as required pursuant to the terms hereof,

. Reservation of Shares Issuable Upon Conversion. The Cerporation

covenants that it will at all times reserve and keep available out of its authorized
and unissucd shares of Common Stock for the sole purpese of issuance upon
conversion of the Series B Preferred Stock, each as herein provided, free from
preemptive rights or any other actual contingent purchase rights of Persons other
than the Holder (and the other holders of the Series B Preferred Stock), not less
than such aggregate number of shares of the Common Stock as shall (subject to
the terms and conditions set forth in the Purchase Agreement) be issuable (taking
into acconnt the adjustments and restrictions of Section 7) upon the conversion of
the then outstanding shares of Series B Preferred Stock. The Corporation
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covenants that all shares of Common Stack that shall be so issuable shall, upon
issue, be duly authorized, validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable,

vi.  Practional Shares. No fractional shares or scrip representing
fractional shares shall be issued upon the conversion of the Series B Preferred
Stock,  As to any fiaction of a share which the Holder would otherwise be
entitled to purchase upon such conversion, the Corporation shail at its election,
either pay a cash adjustment in respect of such final fraction in an amount equal 1o
such fraction multiplied by the Conversion Prics or round up to the next whole
share.

vii,  Transfer Taxes and Expenses. The issuance of Conversion Shares
on conversion of this Series B Preferred Stock shall be made without charge to
any Holder for any documentary stamp or similar taxes that may be payable in
respect of the issue or delivery of such Conversion Shates, provided that the
Carporation shall not be required to pay any tax that may be payable in respect of
any transfer involved in the issuance and delivery of any such Conversion Shares
upon conversion in a name other than that of the Holders of such shares of Series
B Preferred Stock and the Corporation shall not be required to issue or deliver
such Conversion Shares unless or until the Person or Persons requesting the
issuance thereof shall have paid to the Corporation the amount of such tax or shall
have established to the satisfaction of the Corporation that such tax has been paid.
The Corporation shall pay all Transfer Agent fees required for same-day
processing of any Netice of Conversion and all fees to the Depository Trust
Company (or another established clearing cotporation performing similar
functions) required for same-day electronic delivery of the Conversion Shares.

4 Beneficial O hip Limitation. The Corporation shall mot affect any
conversion of the Series B Preferred Stock, and a Holder shall not have the right to
convert any portion of the Series B Preferred Stock, to the extent that, after giving effect
to the conversion set forth on the applicable Notice of Cotversion, such Holder (together
with such Holder’s Affiliates, and any Persons acting as a group fogether with such
Holder or any of such Holder's Affiliates (such Persons, “Attribution Parties™)) would
beneficially own in excess of the Beneficial Ownership Limitation. For purposes of the
foregoing sentence, the number of shares of Common Stock beneficially owned by such
Holder and its Affiliates and Attribution Parties shall include the number of shares of
Cammon Stock issuable upon conversion of the Series B Preferred Stock with respect to
which such determination is being made, but shall exclude the number of shares of
Common Stock which are issuable upon (i) conversion of the remaining, unconverted
Stated Value of Series B Preferred Stock beneficially owned by such Holder or any of its
Affiliates or Attribution Parties and (ii) exercise or conversion of the unexercised or
unconverted portion of any othier securities of the Corporation subject to a limitation on
conversion or exercise analogous to the limitation contained heréin (including, without
limitation, the Series B Preferred Stock) beneficially owned by such Holder or any of its
Affitiates or Attribution Parties. Except as set forth in the preceding sentence, for
purposes of this Section 6(d), beneficial ownership shall be caleulated in accordance with
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Section 13(d} of the Exchange Act and the rules and regnlations promulgated thereunder.
To the extent that the limitation contained in this Section 6(d) apptlies, the determination
of whether the Series B Preferred Stock is convertible (in relation 1o other securities
owned by such Holder together with any Affiliates and Atiribution Parties) and of how
many shares of Series B Preferred Stock are convertible shall be in the sole discretion of
such Holder, and the submission of a Notice of Conversion shall be decmed to be such
Holder's determination of whether the shares of Seres B Preferred Stock may be
converted {in relation to other securities owned by sich Helder together with any
Alfiliates and Attribution Parties) and how many shares of the Series B Preferred Stock
aré convertible, im each case subject to the Beneficial Ownership Limitation. To ensure
compliance with this restriction, each Holder will be deemed to represent to the
Corporation each time it delivers a Notice of Conversion that such Notice of Conversion
has not violated the restrictions set forth in this patagraph and the Corporation shall have
no obligation t verify or confirm the accuracy of such determination. In addition, &
determination as to any group status as contemplated above shall be determined in
accordance with Section 13(d) of the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations
promulgated therevmder. For purpases of this Section 6(d), in determining the number of
outstanding shares of Common Stock, 4 Holder may rely on the sumber of outstanding
shares of Common Stock as stated in the most recent of the following: (i) the
Corporation's most recent periodic or anmual report filed with the Commissien, as the
case may be, (ii) a more recent public announcemest by the Corporatien or (iii) & more
recent written notice by the Corporation or the Transfer Agent setting forth the number of
shares of Commen Stock outstanding. Upon the written or oral request of a Holder, the
Corporation shall within two Trading Days confirm: orally and in writing to such Holder
the number of shares of Common Stock then outstanding. In any case, the number of
outstanding shares of Common Stock shall be determined after giving effect to the
conversion or exercise of securities of the Corporation, including the Series B Preferred
Stock, by such Holder or its Affiliates or Atiribution Parties since the date as of which
such number of owstanding shares of Common Stock was feported. The “Beneficial

Ownership Limitation” shall be 4.99% of the number of shares of the Common Stock
putstanding immadiately after giving effect to the issuance of shares of Common Stock
issuable upon conversion of Series B Preferred Stock held by the applicable Holder, A
Holder, upen notice to the Coiposation, may increase or decrease the Beneficial
Ownership Limitation provisions of this Section 6(d) applicable to its Series B Preferred
Stock provided that the Beneficial Ownership Limitation in no event exceeds 9.99% of
the number of shares of the Common Stock outstanding immediately after giving effect
to the issuance of shares of Commen Stock upon conversion of this Series B Preferred
Stock held by the Holder and the provisions of this Section 6(d) skall continue to apply.
Any such increase in the Beneficial Ownership Limitation will not be effective until the
61st day afier such notice is delivered to the Corporation and shatl only apply to such
Holder and no other Holder. The provisions of this paragraph shall be construed and
implemented in a rnanner otherwise than in strict conformity with the terms of this
Section (d) to correct this paragraph (or any portion hereof) which may be defective or
inconsistent with the intended Beneficial Ownership Limitation contained herein or to
make changes or supplements necessary ot desirable to properly give effect to such
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limitation. The limitations contained in this paragraph shall apply fo a successor holder of
Series B Preferred Stock.

Section7.  Certa it ts.

a) Stock Dividends and Stock Splits, If the Corporation, at any time while
this Serics B Preferred Stock is outstanding: (i) pays a stock dividend or otherwise makes
a distribution or distributions payable in shares of Common Stock on shares of Comimon
Stock or any othér Common Stock Equivalents (which, for avoidance of doubt, shall not
include any shares of Common. Stock issued by the Corporation upon conversion of, or
payment of a dividend on, this Sertes B Preferred Stock), (ii) subdivides outstanding
shares of Common Stock into a larger number of shares, (i) combines (including by way
of a reverse stock split) outstanding shares of Common Stock into a smaller number of
shares, or (iv) issues, in the event of a reclassification of shares of the Common Stock,
any shares of capital $totk of the Corporation, then the Conversion Price shall be
multiplied by a fraction of which the numerator shall be the number of shares of
Common Stock (exeluding any treasury shares of the Corporation) outstanding
immediately before such event, and of which the denominater shall be the munber of
shares of Commeon Stock outstanding immediately after such event. Any adjustment
made pursuant to this Section 7(a) shall become effective immediately after the record
date for the determination of steckholders entitled to receive such dividend or distribution
and shall become cffective immediately after the effective date in the case of 2
subdivision, combination or re classification,

b) Subsequent Rights Offerings, In addition to any adjustments pursuant o
Section 7(a) above, if at any time the Corporation grants, issugs ot sells any Common
Stock Equivalents or rights to purchase stock, wairanits, securities or other property pro
rata to the record holders of any class of shares of Common Stock (the Iﬁm
Rights™), then cach Holder of Series B Preferred Stock will be entitled to acquire, upen
the terms applicable to such Purchase Rights, the aggregate Purchase Rights which such
Holder could have acquired if such Holder had held the number of shares of Common
Stock acquirable upon complete conversion of such Holder’s Series B Preferred Stock
{without regard to any limitations on exercise hereof, including without limitation, the
Beneficial Ownership Limitation) immediately before the date on which a tecord is taken
for the grant, issvance or sale of such Purchase Rights, or, if no such record is taken, the
date as of which the record holders of shares of Common Stoek are to be determined for
the grant, issus or sale of such Purchase Rights (provided, however, to the extent that
such Holder's right to parficipate in any such Purchase Righit would result in such Holder
exceeding the Beneficial Ownership Limitation, then such Holder shall not be entitled to
participate in such Purchase Right to such extent {or beneficial ownership of such shares
of Common Stock as a result of such Purchase Right to such extent) and such Purchase
Right to such extent shall be held in abeyance for such Holder until such time, if ever, as
its right thereto would not result in the Holder exceeding the Bereficial Ownership
Limitation).

10
630720015 3157064




c) Pro Rata Distributions. During such time as the Series B Preferred Stock is
outstandiig, if the Corporation shall declare or make any dividend or other distribution of
its assets (or rights to acquire its assets) to holders of shares of Common Stoek, by way of
return of capital or othérwise (including, without Limitation, any distribution of cash,
stock or other securities, property or options by way of a dividend, spin off,
teclassification, corporate rearrangement, scheme of arrangement or other similar
transaction) (& “Distribution™), at any time after the issuance of the Series B Preferred
Stock, fthen, in ¢ach such ease, the Holder shall be entitled to participate in such
Distribution to the same extent that the Holder would have participated therein if the
Holder had held the number of shares of Common Stock acquimble upon complete
conversion of this Series B Preferred Stock (without regard to any limitations on
conversion hereof, including without limitation, the Bemeficial Ownership Limitation)
immediately before the date of which 4 record is faken for such Disuibution, or, if no
stich record is taken, the date a5 of which the record holders of shares of Common Stock
are to be determined for the participation in sugh Distribution (provided, however, {o the
extent that the Holder's right to participate in any such Distribution would result in the
Holder exceeding the Beneficial Ownership Limitation, then the Holder shall not be
entitled o participate in such Distribution to such extent {or in the beneficial ownership
of any shares of Commen Stock as a result of such Distribution to such extent) and the
portion of such Distribution shall be held in abeyance for the benefit of the Holder witil
such time, if ever, as its right thereto would not result in the Holder exceeding the
Beneficial Ownership Limitation),

4 Fundamental Transaction. If, at any time while this Series B Preferred

Stock is outstending, (i) the Corporation, directly or indirectly, in onc or more related
transactions effects any merger or consolidation of the Corporation with or into another
Person, (ii) the Corporation, directly or indirectly, effects any sale, lease, license,
assignment, wansfer, conveyance or other disposition of all or substantially all of its
assets in one or a series of reldted transactions, (iil) any, direct or indirect, purchase offer,
tender offer or exchange offer (whether by the Corporation or another Person) is
completed pursuvant to which holders of Commen Steck are permitted to sell, tender or
exchange their shares for other securities, cash or property and has been accepted by the
holders of 50% or more of the outstandmg Common Stock, (iv) the Corporation, directly
or indirectly, in one or more related transactions effects any reclassification,
reorganization or recapitalization of the Common Stock or any compulsory share
exchange pursuant to which the Common Stock is effectively cenverted into or
exchanged for other securities, cash or property, or (v) the Corporation, directly or
indirectly, in one or more related ransactions consummates a stock or share purchase
agreement or other business combination (including, without limitation, a reorganization,
recapitalization, spin-off or scheme of arrangement) with another Pérson whereby such
other Person acquires more than 50% of the owtstanding shares of Common Stock (ot
including any shares of Common Stock held by the other Person ot other Persons making
or party to, or associated or affiliated with the other Persons making or party to, such
stock or share purchase agreement or other business combination) (each 2 “Fundamental
Transaction™), then, upon any subsequent conversion of this Series B Preferred Stock, the
Holder shall have the right to receive, for each Conversion Share that would have been
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issnable upon such conversion immediately prior to the occurrence of such Fundaniental
Transaction (without regard to any limitation in Section 6(d) on the conversion of this
Series B Preferred Stock), the number of shares of Commmon Stock of the successor or
acquiring corporation or of the Corporation, if it is the surviving corporation, and any
additional consideration (the “Alternate Consideration™) receivable as a result of such
Fundamental Transaction by a holder of the number of shares of Common Stock for
which this Series B Preferred Stock is convertible immediately priot to such Fundamental
Transaction (without regard to any limitation in Section 6(d) on the conversion of this
Series B Preferred Stock). For purposes of any such conversion, the determination of the
Conversion Price shall be appropriately adjusted to apply 10 such Alternate Consideration
based on the amount of Alternate Consideration issuable in respect of one share of
Common Stock in such Fundamental Transaction, and the Corporation shall apportion the
Conversion Price among the Alternate Consideration in 2 reasonable mannér reflecting
the relative value of any different components of the Alternate Consideration. If holders
of Common Stock are given any choice as fo the securities, eash or property to be
received in a Fundamental Transaction, then the Holder shall be given the same choice as
1o the Alternate Consideration it receives upon any conversion of this Series B Preferred
Stock following such Fundamental Transaction. To the extent necessary to effectuate the
foregoing provisions, any successor to the Corporation or surviving entity in such
Fundamental Transaction shall file a new Certificate of Designation with the same terms
and conditions and issue to the Holders new preferred stock consistent with the foregoing
provisions and evidencing the Holders' right to convert such preferred stock into
Alternate Consideration. The Corporation shall ¢ause any successor catity in a
Fundamental Transaction in ‘which the Corporation is not the surviver (the “Successor
Entity’) to assume in writing all of the obligations of the Corporation wmder this
Cenificate of Designation in aceordance with the provisions of this Section 7(d) prior to
such Fundamental Transaction and shall, at the option of the holder of this Scries B
Preferred Stock, deliver to the Holder in exchange for this Series B Prefétred Stock a
security of the Successor Entity evidenced by a written instrument substantially similar in
form and substance to this Series B Preferred Stock which is cenvertible for a
corresponding number of shares of capital stock of such Successor Entity {or its parent
entity) equivalent 1o the shares of Common Stock acquirable and réceivable upon
conversion of this Series B Preferred Stock {without regard to any limitations on the
conversion of this Series B Preferred Stock) prior to such Fundamental Transaction, and
with a conversion price which applies thi¢ conversion price hereunder to such shares of
capital stock (but taking into account the relative value of the shares of Common Stock
pursuant to such Fundamental Ttansaction and the value of such shares of capital stock,
such number of shares of capital stock and such conversion price being for the purpose of
protecting the economic value of this Series B Preferred Stock immediately prior to the
vonsimmation of such Fundamental Transaction), and which is reasonably satisfactory in
form and substance to the Flolder. Upon the occurrence of any such Fundamental
Transaction, the Successor Entity shall succeed to, and be substituted for (so that from
and after the date of such Fundamental Transaction, the pravisions of this Certificate of
Designation referring to the “Corporation™ shall refer instead to the Successor Entity),
and may exercise every right and power of the Corporation and shall assume all of the
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obligations of the Corporation under this Certificate of Designation with the same effect
as if such Successor Entity had been named as the Corporation herein.

e} Caleulations. Al caleulations under this Section 7 shall be made to the
nearest cent or the nearest 1/100th of a share, as the case may be. For purposes of this
Section 7, the number of shares of Common $tock deemed to be issued and outstanding,
as of a given date shall be the sum of the number of shares of Commion: Stock (sxcluding
any treasury shares of the Corporation) issued and outstanding,

H Notice to the Holders,
i Adjustment to Conversion Price. Whenever the Conversion Price

is adjusted pursuant to any provision of this Section 7, the Corporation shall
promptly deliver to each Holder by facsimile or email a notice setting forth the
Conversion Price after such adjustment and setting foxth a brief statement of the
facts requiring such adjustiment,

il Notice to_Allow Conversion by Holder. If (A) the Corporation
shall declare a dividend (or any other distribution in whatever form) on the
Common Stock, (B) the Corporation shall declare a special nonrecurring cash
dividend on or a redemption of the Common Stock, {C) the Corporation shall
authorize the granting to all holders of the Common Stock of rights or warrants 1o.
subscribe for or purchase any shares of capital stock of any class or of any rights,
(D) the approval of any stockholders of the Corporation shall be required in
connection with any reclassification of the Common Stock, any consolidation er
merger to which the Corporation is a party, any salé or transfer of all or
substantially all of the assets of the Corporation, or any cempulsory share
exchange whereby the Common Stock is converted into other securities, cash or
property or (E) the Corporation shall authorize the veluntary or involuntary
dissolution, liquidation or winding up of the affairs of the Corporation, then, in
cach case, the Corporation shall cause to be filed at each office or agency
maintained for the purpose of conversion of this Series B Preferred Stock, and
shall cause to be delivered by facsimile or email to each Holder at its last
facsimile number or email address as it shall appesar upon the stock books of the
Corporation, at least twenty (20) calendar days prior to the applicable record or
effective date hereinafier specified, a notice stating (x) the date on which a record
is to be taken for the purpose of such dividend, distribution, redemption, rights or
warrants, ot if a record is not to be taken, the date as of which the holders of the
Common Stock of record to be entited to such dividend, distributions,
redemption, rights or warrants are to be determined or (y) the date on which such
reclassification, consolidation, merger, sale, wransfer or share exchange is
expected to become effective or close, and the date as of which it is expected that
holders of the Commen Stock of record shall be entitled to exchange their shares
of the Common Stock for securities, cash: or other property deliverable upon such
reclassification, consolidation, merger, sale, transfer or share exchange, provided
that the failure to deliver such notice or any defest therein or in the delivery
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thereof shall not affect the validity of the corporate action required to be specified
in such notice, To the extent that any notice provided hereunder constitutes, or
contains, material, non-public information regarding the Corporation, the
Corporaiion shall simultancously file such. notice with the Commission pursuant
to & Current Report on Form §-K. The Holder shall remain entitled to convert the
Series B Preferred Stock (or any part hereof) during the 20-day period
comtencing on the date of such notice through the effective date of the event
wiggering such notice except as may otherwise be expressly set forth herein.

Section 8. Miscellansous.

a) Notices. Any and all notices or other communications or deliveries to be
provided by the Holders hereunder including, without limitation, any Notice of
Conversion, shall be in writing and defivered personﬂlly, by facsimile or e-mail, ar sent
by a nationally recognized ovemight courier service, addressed to the Corporation, at
Sigme Labs, Inc., 3900 Pasco del Sol, Santa Fe, New Mexico 87507, Atisntion: John
Ricve, e=mail address rice@sigmalabsine.com or such other e-paail address or address as
the Corporation may specify for such purposes by notice to the Holders delivered in
accordance with this Section 8(a). Any and all notiees or other comimunications or
deliveries to be provided by the Corporation hereunder shall be in writing and delivered
personally, by facsimile or e-mail, or sent by a nationally recognized evernight courier
service addressed to each Holder at the facsimile number, e-miail address or address of
such Holder appearing on the books of the Corporation. Any notice or other
communication or deliveries hereunder shail be deemed given and effective en the
carliest of (i) the date of transmission, if such notice or communication is delivered via
facsimile at the facsimile number or ¢-mail at the e-mail address set forth in this
Section 8(a) prior to 5:30 p.m. (Néw Yaork City time)y on any date, (if) the next Trading
Day after the date of wansmission, if such notice er communication is delivered via
facsimile at the facsimile number or e-mail at the e-mail address set forth in this
Section 8(a) on a day that is not a Trading Day or later than 5:30 p.m. (New York City
time) on any Trading Day, (iii) the second Trading Day following the date of mailing, if
sent by U.S. nationally recognized overnight cowrier service, or (iv) upon actual receipt
by the party to whem such notice is required to be given.

)] Absotute Obligation. Except as expressly provided herein, no provision of
this Certificate of Designation shall alter or impair the obligation of the Corporation,
which is absolute and unconditional, to pay liquidated damages, acerued dividends and
accrued interest, as applicable, on the shares of Series B Preferred Stock at the time,
place, and rate, and in the eoin or currency, herein preseribed.

i ; Ser . If a Holder’s Series B
?refer“red Stock ccmﬁmte shall be mlmla.ted, Lost, smlen or destroyed, the Corporation
shall execute and deli¥er, in exchange and substifution for and upon cancellation of a
mutilated certificate, or in lieu of or i substitution for a lost, stolen or destroyed
certificate, a new certificate for the shares of Series B Preferred Stock so mutilated, Jost,
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effect, and if any provision is inapplicable to any Person or circumstance, it shall
mevertheless remain applicable to all other Persons and circumstances,

oy} Next Business Day. Whenever ahy payment or other obligation hereunder
shall be due on a day other than a Business Day, such payment shall be made on the next
suceeeding Business Day.

h} Headings. The headings contained heiin are for convenience only, do not
constitute a part of this Ceriificate of Designation and shall not be deemed to limit or
affect any of the provisions hereof.

i) Status of Cor edeemed Prefewred Stock. If any shares of Series
B Preferred Stock shall be converted, redeemed or reacquired by the Corporation, such
shares shall resume the status of authorized but wnissued shares of preferred stock and
shall no longer be designated as its Series B Preferred Stock.

Ehkrddbedbbdiobehisd

[Signature Page Follows]
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The undersigned declares under penalty of petwry that the matiers set out in the
foragoing Certificate are true of his own knowledge. Executed at Santa Fe, New Mexico, on this

_b*day of April 2018
g

Nar/me: Jofn Rice
Title: »Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

[Signarure Page to Certificate of Designation)
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ANNEX A
NOTICE OF CONVERSION

(TO BE EXECUTED BY THE REGISTERED HOLDER IN ORDER TO CONVERT SHARES
OF PREFERRED STOCK)

The undersigned hereby elects to convert the number of shares of Series B Convertible Preferred
Stock indicated below into shares of common stock, par value $0.001 per share (the “Common
Stock™), of Sigma Labs, Inc., a Nevada corporation {the “Corpomtion™), according to the
cenditions hereof, as of the date written below. If shares of Commen Stock are to be issued in the
name of a Person other than the undersigned, the undersigned will pay all transfer taxcs payable
with respect thereto and is delivering herewith such certificates and opinions as may be required
by the Corporation. No fee¢ will be ¢harged to the Holder for any eonversion, except for any such
transfer taxes.

Conversion caleulations:

Date to Effect Conversion:

Number of shares of Preferred Stock owned prior to Conversion:

Number of shares of Preferred Stock to be Converted:
Stated Value of shares of Preferred Stock to be Converted:

Mumber of shares of Common Stock to be Issued:

Applicable Conversion Price:

Number of shares of Preferred Stock subsequent to Conversion:

Address for Delivery:
or

DWAC Instructions:
Broker no:
Account no;

[HOLDER]
By:
Name;
Title:
18
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CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference into the Registration Statements on Form S-8 (file nos.
333-174897, 333-197616. 333-212612 and 333-222369) for Sigma Labs, Inc., of our report dated March 31, 2017,
relating to the December 31, 2016 financial statements of Sigma Labs, Inc. included in this annual report (Form 10~
K) of Sigma Labs, Inc. for the year ended December 31, 2017.

Prdedot] A leg ¥ //m? 7
/s! Pritchett, Siler & Hardy, P.C.

PRITCHETT, SILER & HARDY, P.C.

Salt Lake City, Utah

April 17,2018







ﬁ PrimeGlobal

Haynie &
Company

Certified Public Accountants {aprofessional corporation)
50 West Broadway, Suite 600 Salt Lake City, UT 84101 (801) 532-7800 Fax (801) 328-4461

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statements No. 333-174897,
333-197616, 333-212612, and 333-222369 on forms S-8 of Sigma Labs, Inc. of our report
dated April 17, 2018, relating to our audit of the financial statements which appear in this
Annual Report on Form 10K of Sigma Labs, Inc. for the year ended December 31, 2017.

Haynie & Company 2

Salt Lake City, Utah
April 17,2018

Printess. Row 5374 South Fashion Pointa O, Sule 120
Ba11g South Dges i B4403
(801}







Exhibit 31.1
Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
1, John Rice, certify that:
1. T have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Sigma Labs, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of
the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results
of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e)
and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this
report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the
registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over

financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and
the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely
affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting.

Date: April 17,2018

By: /s/ John Rice

Name: John Rice
Title:  Interim Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)







Exhibit 31.2
Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
I, Nannette Toups, certify that:
1. T have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10- K of Sigma Labs, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of
the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results
of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e)
and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this
report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the
registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over

financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and
the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely
affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting.

Date: April 17,2018

By: /s/ Nannette Toups

Name: Nannette Toups
Title:  Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)







Exhibit 32.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
In connection with the accompanying Annual Report of Sigma Labs, Inc., (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2017 as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), the undersigned officers of the Company certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to §
906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to their knowledge:
(i) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or Section 15(d), as applicable, of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

(i) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: April 17,2018 By: /s/ John Rice

Name: John Rice
Title:  Interim Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer)

Date: April 17,2018 By: /s/ Nannette Toups

Name: Nannette Toups
Title:  Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)







